
OTYOf 
AGENDA 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
CLOSED SESSION - 5:30 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M. 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 17,2015 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL 

WELCOME . . . By YOllr presence in the City COllncil Chambers, YOIl are participating in the process of 
representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City 
COllncil are available at the City Clerk's office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenlle. Your City 
Government welcomes YOllr interest and hopes YOIl will attend and participate in Rio Dell City Council 
meetings often. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in 
this meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hOllrs prior 
to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assllre accessibility to this 
meeting. 

THE TYPE OF COUNCIL BUSINESS IS IDENTIFIED IMMEDIATELY AFTER EACH 
TITLE IN BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLLCALL 

C. ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1) 2015/1117.01 - Conference with Labor Negotiator - City Manager 
Concerning Labor Negotiations with Rio Dell Employees Association, 
Rio Dell Police Officers Association, and Contract Employees 
(Pursuant to Gov't Code Section 54957.6) 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 

E. RECESS INTO CLOSED SESSION 

F. RECONVENUE INTO OPEN SESSION - 6:30 P.M. 

G. ORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

H . PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 





I. CEREMONIAL MATIERS 

J. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and over 
which the Council has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the COl/neil or staff is not intended. items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda may be placed on tIle next regular agenda for 
consideration if tIle Council directs, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of tI,e Councilmembers 
present that the item came up after tIle agenda was posted and is of an urgenClJ nature requiring 
immediate action. Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes. 

K. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Consent Calendar adopting tIle printed recommended Council action will be enacted with one vote. 
TIle Mayor will first ask tile staff, tIle public, and the Council members if tllere is anyone who wishes to 
address any nmlter on the Consent Calendar. TIle matters removed from tI,e Consent Calendar will be 
considered individually in tIle next section, "SPECIAL CALL ITEMS". 

1) 2015/1117.02 - Approve Minutes of the November 3,2015 Regular Meeting (ACTION) 1 

L. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 

M. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/STUDY SESSIONS 

1) 2015/11107.03- Presentation from Keenan & Associates/Discussion and Possible 
Action to Adopt Resolution No. 1277-2015 Authorizing Participation 
in the Public Agency Coalition Enterprise Joint Powers Agreement 
Related to Employee Health Benefits 
(DISCUSSIONjPOSSIBLE ACTION) 18 

2) 2015/1117.04 - Presentation from Eel River Disposal on Solid Waste and Recycling 
Franchise Agreement and current operations (RECEIVE & FILE) 44 

3) 2015/1117.05 - Presentation from Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
Approve Resolution No. 1279-2015 amending and restating Joint 
Powers Agreement of the Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
(ACTION) 58 

N. SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

1) 2015/1117.06 - Contribution of Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) to the Rio Dell/Scotia 
Chamber of Commerce (DISCUSSIONjPOSSIBLE ACTION) 99 

O. ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS 





1) 2015/1117.07 - Approve Resolution No. 1278-2015 approving designation of 
Brook Woodcox, Finance Director as the official representative 
and Karen Dunham, City Clerk alternate representative to the PACE 
JPA Board of Directors (ACTION) 101 

2) 2015/1117.08 - Second reading (by title only) and adoption of Ordinance No. 339-2015 
amending Section 2.60.030(4) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) 
changing the Planning Commission's regular meeting day from the 
fourth Thursday to the fourth Tuesday of the month 
(DISCUSSIONjPOSSIBLE ACTION) 103 

3) 2015/1117.09 - Second reading (by title only) and adoption of Ordinance No. 340-2015 
amending the "Definitions" provisions Chapter 17 of the Rio Dell 
Municipal Code to amend or eliminate some existing definitions and 
include additional definitions (DISCUSSIONjPOSSIBLE ACTION) 108 

4) 2015/1117.10- Second reading (by title only) and adoption of Ordinance No. 341-2015 
amending Section 5.30.520(2)(a) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) 
related to the PEG fee paid by cable operator to support public access 
television (DISCUSSIONjPOSSIBLE ACTION) 146 

P. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

1. City Manager 
2. Chief of Police 
3. Finance Director - Check Register for September and October 2015 
4. Community Development Director 

Q. COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 

R. ADJOURNMENT 

The next reglliar meeting will be on December 1, 2015 
at 6:30 p.rn. in City Hall COllncil Chambers 

157 





RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 3, 2015 
MINUTES 

The regular meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor 
Wilson. 

ROLL CALL: Present: 

Others Present: 

Absent: 

Mayor Wilson, Mayor Pro Tern Johnson, Councilmembers Garnes, 
Marks and Thompson 

City Manager Knopp, Finance Director Woodcox, Chief of Police 
Hill, WaterlRoadways Superintendent Jensen, Wastewater 
Superintendent Chicora and City Clerk Dunham 

Community Development Director Caldwell 

CEREMONIAL MA TIERS 

Swearing in of (2) new Police Officers: Jordan Walstrom and Evie Valk; and (J) new Planning 
Commissioner: Julie Woodall 
Chief of Police Hill introduced Jordan Walstrom and Evie Valk and said he was very proud to 
have these officers on board and that he couldn't have asked for better candidates. 

City Clerk Dunham administered the Oath of Allegiance and their badges were pinned on by 
family members. 

City Clerk Dunham reported that Julie Woodall was unavailable and would be sworn in to the 
Planning Commission at a later date. 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

Nick Angeloff briefly addressed the Council and reminded everyone that it was election night 
and encouraged everyone to get out and vote. He said there were several items on the agenda 
involving the Chamber of Commerce and as President, the Council was aware of his opinion on 
the matters and excused himself from the meeting. 

Sheldon Norberg addressed the Council regarding the potential legalization of the cannabis 
industry and said as the Council is aware, the State of California has taken action to basically 
"bring it out of the trees around us" and into the legitimized nature to which it belongs. He said 
Rio Dell may not have a long-term interest in cannabis but it does present certain opportunities 
through the industry that will provide taxes and jobs in the community without dispensing or 

growing cannabis in the City. He said there are a variety of licenses now being structured by the 
State of California which Rio Dell could set up as an independent City and benefit from. He 
stated that he would be happy to discuss the issue father with the Council at any point and help 
craft legislation to allow Rio Dell to become part of the new economy. 

1 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 2 

Jamra Kan (Emerald Genetics) also addressed the Council on the subject and said he also 
works with Mr. Norberg and is of the opinion that Rio Dell could take advantage of certain 
opportunities that are presented regarding the cannabis industry moving forward. He said one of 
the projects that he is currently involved with is putting on the Humboldt County Cup that is 
taking place on November 21 Sl at Redwood Acres. He extended personal invitations to the 
Council and offered to provide tickets for the event. He noted that there will be cannabis specific 
businesses there and collectives that are farming as well as all the peripheral industries such as 
soil companies, trimming machine companies and environmental engineers; basically the whole 
gambit that has been assisting the economy in Humboldt County since the decline of the logging 
and fishing industry. 

Dean Glaser stated that it is an important day; that being Election Day and said some take it for 
granted, some people ignore it and some people have come to our country to have that right. He 
said because people take it for granted, they should never be complacent. He said Charles 
Ellebrecht who is running for Fortuna High School Board of Trustees and Nick Angeloff who is 
running for Harbor District both lives in Rio Dell and they need people to go to the polls and 

vote. 

He also invited everyone to attend an event put on by the Fortuna Senior Services on Veteran's 
Day at the Veteran's Memorial Building in Fortuna and said there will be a memorial at 2:00 
p.m. for all of the Coast Guard members who lost their lives and recognizing all veterans as well. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Council member Johnson asked that Item I, Minutes of the October 20. 2015 ReglllarMeeting be 
removed from the consent calendar for separate action. 

Motion was made by Thompson/Games to approve the consent calendar including approval of 
Resolution No. 1275-2015 amending the FY 2015-2016 Operating Budget for Rio Dell/Scotia 
Chamber of Commerce Christmas Event Contribution of $200.00; and approval of Resolution 
No. 1276-2015 Providing Workers' Compensation coverage for City volunteers. Motion carried 
5-0. 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 

Approval of Minutes of the October 20. 2015 Regular Meeting 
Councilmember Johnson stated that he had no problems with the minutes but removed them 
from the consent calendar so that he could abstain from voting since he was not present at the 
meeting. 

City Clerk Dunham stated for clarification that council members are not required to abstain from 
voting on minutes of meetings when they are not in attendance. 

2 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 3 

Motion was made by GameslMarks to approve the minutes of the October 20, 2015 regular 
meeting. Motion carried 4-0; I abstention. 

Mayor Wilson announced a change in the order of the agenda and said Item 201511 103.09 would 
be addressed at this time. 

Conduct Public Hearing on Unmet Transit Needs and direct staff to send a letter to Humboldt 
County Association of Governments (HCAOGl relaying the comments made during the public 
hearing 
City Manager Knopp provided a brief staff report and said each year the Humboldt County 
Association of Governments (HCAOG), as the Regional Transportation Planning Agency 
(RTPA) conducts a citizen participation process to assess unmet transit needs within Humboldt 
County. He said this process helps HCAOG properly apply funds provided by the 
Transportation Development Act (TDA). In addition to the County unmet transit needs hearing, 
HCAOG recommends each entity conduct a separate hearing to receive comments specific to 
their jurisdiction. Any comments received are then sent to HCAOG and included in the Unmet 
Transit Needs Report of Findings. He noted that provided there are no unmet transit needs 
identified, all of the funds will be allocated for street improvements. 

A public hearing was opened at 6:39 p.m. to receive public comment on unmet transit needs. 

A gentleman from the Social Services Advisory Committee was present representing HCAOG 
and thanked the Council for moving the item up on the agenda. He stated that the public 
hearings are a very important part of the process in identifying unmet transit needs. He said 
often times people don't see things happening as quickly as they would like but the more 
comments that are made; the better chance there is of meeting those unmet needs. He added that 
he has been involved in the process for 15 years and has seen a lot of new routes added as a 
result of comments received from the public. 

Margie Plant thanked the Council and addressed the Council about an unmet transit need. She 
said she lives in Pepperwood and falls under the new route that was added from 
GarbervillelRedway north. She said she teaches in Fortuna and would very much like to ride the 
transit bus to work at least 2 or 3 times a week. She said the last stop coming north from 
Garberville is the Redcrest off-ramp and if it could go one stop north and stop at the south 
Pepperwood exit, she could walk from her house. As it is now she has to either drive 4 miles 
south to Redcrest or 7 miles north to Scotia to catch the bus so it kind of defeats the purpose of 
saving fuel and reducing gas emissions. She reiterated that she would really like to ride the bus 
to school and model that for her students. She added that she used to ride her bike on the 
highway but because of a couple of close calls of almost getting hit by a vehicle, her husband is 
against it. She said she could make the current route work as far as timing but there are no stops 
on that route until Eureka. She said if it could stop somewhere near Ambrosini School, perhaps 
on Rohnerville Road or near Redwood Memorial Hospital that would be good. 

3 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 4 

She commented that coming home there is the same problem in that there are a lot of places to 
catch the bus but no stops south until Garberville. 

The gentleman representing HCAOG said he would pass her comments on to HCAOG. 

Dean Glaser stated that he was an HT A board member for over 12 years and saw some very 
positive changes over the past 2 years as far as the inner-city small buses rather than just having 
the regular bus traveling from Fortuna area southward. He said there has been a miss-conception 
by the public over the years that when one person comes forward that the entire system is going 
to change for their benefit. He explained HTA works for the most efficient and logical usage of 
the routes to pick up the most people; not change because of one persons passion to be picked 
up. He said Greg Pruitt and his staff are dedicated to being as efficient as possible while meeting 
the public needs. He suggested that anyone writing a letter to HCAOG should keep in mind that 
realistically there needs to be other people writing to them with the same need because changing 
the system for one person is probably not going to happen. He encouraged the public to be 
open-minded and patient when addressing an unmet transit need. 

There being no further public comment, the public hearing closed. 

SPECIAL PRESENT A TIONS/STUDY SESSIONS 

Presentation and Project Update from the City'S Engineer. GHD Engineering 
City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and said the City Engineer, GHD is here to talk 
about some of the City's current projects and as the Council is aware, the major topic is the 
Metropolitan Wells Project for a backup water supply for the City. 

He turned the discussion over to Rebecca Crow and Steve McHaney from GHD to provide a 
project update. 

Rebecca said as the Council is aware, Jesse Willor, the City'S primary engineer left GHD so she 
and Steve McHaney will be taking over as the City'S engineers. She said Steve was the City's 
engineer in 1995 and she did some work in 2001 and they are happy to have the opportunity to 
be back. She said she has been working closely with Jesse Willor on the City'S projects and is 
excited to be able to follow through with the projects. 

She said they wanted to give brief updates on three projects: the Active Transportation Plan 
(A TP) grant; talk a little bit about the direction for water resiliency and the planning for future 
water projects; and then Steve will be talking in more detail about the status of the Metropolitan 
Wells Project. 

4 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
PageS 

start of the fiscal year, there will be some coordination with Caltrans and anticipates submittal of 
the CTC allocation request around May 2016, followed in July with the preliminary approval and 
environmental document phase and getting out the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for that 
phase of the project. She noted that the plan is to select a consultant around September 2016 for 
completion of the preliminary approval and environment document phase around May 2017. 

The next project she touched on was the City's Water Distribution System and Storage and said 
this is one of the City's priorities so they will be looking at scoping that project and exploring 
funding options. She said they will wait for the outcome of the water rate analysis then go back 
to the State for potential funding; if not successful they will look elsewhere. She pointed out that 
GHD is not just moving forward with the City's current projects but also keeping in line with 
future projects as well. 

Steve McHaney then addressed the Council and said that it's really good to be back before the 
Council. As Rebecca mentioned, he started as the City's engineer in 1995 and served in that role 
for almost 15 years. He said he spent a lot of time in front of the Council and got to know the 
Water and Wastewater Superintendents (Randy and Rick) very well as well as many Council 
members over the years. He said when Merritt Perry took over as the City'S primary engineer, 
he provided support to him and one of the projects they both worked on long ago was the City's 
water supply and said he is glad to see the City moving forward with the Metropolitan Wells 
Project because it is a really valuable asset of the City. He said just to provide context, when the 
City went to the water intake system, the intent was not to give up the wells but to solve the 
water needs of the City at the time. He noted that the wells are good to have as an alternative 
water supply and went on to review four major components of the project as: 

1) The overall breakdown of the project budget 
2) Potential project funding sources 
3) The anticipated schedule 
4) Strategies for managing the actual bid costs and available funds 

He then reviewed the overall breakdown of the project budget and identified $38,500 for 
administrative costs; $25,000 for facility planning; $800,000 for construction; $82,000 for 
design; $107,700 for construction administration; and $160,000 for contingency. 

He said the contingency is an important component that they will be revisiting as it gets closer to 
the bidding phase. He stated that contingency is basically for issues that may be encountered 
during the construction process but you need to be careful not to spend the contingency too soon 
and often times the money is held close so as construction goes on there may be enough left in 
the contingency to do some of the items on the wish list. 

Moving on to where the $1,213,200 for the project is coming from, he said the City was 
successful in securing a Department of Water Resources (DWR)INCRP Prop 84 grant for 
$783,000; and a USDA RUS ECWAG grant for $373,000 which leaves the City's contribution at 

5 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 6 

$57,000. He pointed out that the City's contribution is less than 5% of the total project cost and 
in today's day-in-age it is amazing that the City has done so well to be able to fund a project like 
this with 95% of the cost grant funded. He said there have been a lot times where cities are 
having to pony up all of the money and what this does is allows the City to make a much more 
reliable water source for the citizens of Rio Dell and at the same time really managing the 
monthly costs the rate payers will have to pay. He said he wanted to give a lot of credit to the 
City and the City Council for not only the planning but the way they are managing it. 

He said the project has taken a while to get it moving forward but a lot of the credit for getting it 
this far goes to Rebecca as she is an expert in dealing with funding and managed to get the DWR 
grant funds obligated back in September. 

He then talked a little bit about what they think the schedule is going to look like and commented 
that the schedule is not driven by a hard deadline so they want to drive it by what's best for the 
City'S budget. 

He said from the design standpoint, they want to have the 60% design plans to the City for 
review by the end of November and said there are some critical items that still need to be worked 
out with staff. He reported the final design and bid documents are expected to be complete by 
January, 2016, followed by the bidding in February and construction to begin in April with the 
completion by September, 2016. 

He noted that putting the project out to bid after the first of the year is good as work is typically 
slow for contractors then. He said the amount of work on the ground isn't necessarily going to 
take a lot of time but there is some specialized equipment in the treatment plant, some of which 
takes time to get because the equipment is custom built. 

He said the last thing, and one of the most important is what they are doing for managing big 
costs and available funds. He noted the first thing to understand is that actual contractor bids 
will be different that anyone's planning estimate. He said no one controls the contractor's bids 
and many factors affect how they put their numbers together such as the time of year, how busy 
they are, and how the economy is doing at the time. He commented that he has had jobs come in 
with bids anywhere from I % to 30% between the low bid and the high bid with the engineer' s 
estimate somewhere in between. 

He pointed out that the focus should be on the purpose of the project which is drought 
preparedness and the need to have a system that can be readily be put online in an emergency. 
He also said the project provides a foundation for future potential enhancements. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if there was anything that would preclude them from being able 
to be on schedule with the February date for the bid opening. 

6 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 7 

Steve responded that he can't foresee anything at this point in time and said he believes the 
funding is in place. 

Rebecca confirmed that there are signed contracts with DWR and firm commitment with regard 
to the USDA ECWAG grant so the only thing she could see is perhaps there may be some 
administrative conditions with the ECWAG grant that could cause a slight delay in the project. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if they were looking at a 100-120 working day contract. 

Steve responded that is the rough estimate as far as the schedule but they will have to look at it 
relative to what the equipment lee time will be so they will need to get some feedback from the 
manufacturers to see how long it will take to make some of the equipment but 8-12 weeks could 
be an equipment lead time. 

Mayor Wilson called for public comment. 

Melissa Marks asked if there will be an outside party looking at the plans to make sure nothing 
is missed. 

Councilmember Johnson commented that it is not unusual to do that. 

Steve stated that they could certainly do that but that they do have their own third party review 
done by GHD staff that is not involved with the project although there have been occasions 
where they have relied on an outside party to review project plans. He said the issue can be left 
open as an option. 

Presentation from Whitchurch Engineering on BellevieW/Ogle Drainage Study 
City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and said Darren Tolley was present from 
Whitchurch Engineering to discuss the Belleview/Ogle Drainage project and the work they have 
been doing on that project. 

He said Community Development Director, Kevin Caldwell has been the lead on this project had 
a family emergency and was unable to be here. He said the project is still very much in its early 
stages and staff and Council still needs to look at the overall realistic financing plan to move the 
project beyond just getting it shovel ready which could be a variety of options. He commented 
that it seems that this project has been at this same stage in the past and the key now is obviously 
moving it into action but there is still a lot of work to be done in order to do that. He noted that 
as of now, no General Fund dollars have been committed. 

Darren Tolley, Engineering Manager of Whitchurch Engineering thanked the Council for the 
opportunity to work on the City's stormwater conveyance system to help with the 
Belleview/Ogle flooding issues that have been occurring over the years. 

7 



NOVEMBER 3,2015 MINUTES 
Page 8 

He provided an overview of the drawings as presented including 30% design drawings, 70% 
design drawings (Hydrology Study), and cost estimates associated with fundamental features of 
the project per the 70% design. 

He said there is a watershed that drives past Ogle Ave. and basically ends up in a bowl that has 
been created and through topography and bringing in a model of what would flood with just the 
water settling there and ended up with a pattern. He said they started off by taking 100 years of 
hourly stormwater data and created their own 10-year return period. 

He provided a table showing essentially 32 distinct watersheds that contribute to the flooding, 
coming down over land flows to shell and concentrated flows. 

He also reviewed data related to 100 years of storm water data using the TR-55 from the Natural 
Resources Conservation Service which is used consistently throughout the industry to model 
essentially what the City has with regard to runoff. He added that they compiled a lot of data to 
show where pipes were overflowing and where they weren ' t and compiled that data and put that 
data into maps?? and ended up with the areas of localized flooding within City right-of-ways as 
shown. He said with this data, using topography, and walking the neighborhood, they developed 
their own alternatives for a probable solution. 

He further stated that they actually did an activity matrix and looked at complete road 
reconstruction including curb, guller and sidewalk which would be extremely expensive but a 
viable option, all the way to essentially putting in a sump pump to pump out the areas with 
flooding. 

He explained that the plan is to take one-half of the water flow that is currently going through the 
existing 54 inch storm drain system and take it to the City owned parcel on Belleview Ave. and 
put in a new pipe and a new ditch to get the water flowing toward the Eel River and essentially 
keep it from crossing the road any further and flooding out neighbors. 

The project was broken up into two phases. The first involves cleaning out a new channel, 
putting in a new pipe on the City's parcel, installing about five new drainage inlets and acquiring 
easements from a couple of property owners. He said this will alleviate a good portion of the 
flooding however; is not going to solve the entire problem which is why Phase 2 two is 
necessary. 

Darren explained that Phase 2 includes adding in more pipes and drainage inlets, to bypass the 
easement area that is very difficult to maintain and has failed, and to reconnect to the existing 
pipe crossing which will alleviate about on-half of the water flow in that area. Also, the plan will 
be to redirect storm water to the appropriate inlets in attempt to capture the water running off the 
hill into drainage inlets before it gets to the road and starts flooding. 

8 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 9 

Councilmember Thompson commented that there is a new drain system that goes to the church 
at Belleview Ave. and River St. and asked why they are proposing to spend money to change it 
when it works well and takes in an immense amount of water. 

Darren explained that they are not looking at changing it so much as to redirect it so the water is 
not cutting straight across. 

He said they are also proposing to abandon one easement and give it back to the property owners 
if they will agree to maintain it; otherwise the City will have difficulty trying to access the area 
to maintain it. 

Mayor Wilson asked if the drop inlet will also be abandoned. 

Darren responded that they will clean it up and let the property owners still use it. 

Councilmember Johnson asked how many feet per second the flow is at the two crossings on 
Belleview Ave. 

Darren commented that he didn't have the data with him but would provide it at a later time. 

Councilmember Johnson also asked how the TR-55 formula compares to the old rationale 
formulas he learned 50 years ago. 

Darren explained the TR-55 basically gives a better estimate of what you are seeing but does still 
equal to the Q=CIA and that formula is used on a portion of the spreadsheet presented. 

Councilmember Johnson said if they were going to assign a 'c" in that formula, what kind of 
numbers they were looking at for hillside then developed areas. 

Darren estimated a .1 or .2 for hillsides and a .65 or. 75 for urban areas. 

Councilmember Johnson said when was a hydraulics engineer for Cal trans 30 years ago, in the 
wooded areas and pasture lands they used about a .3 so they are talking about almost three times 
as much flow than what he designed it for. 

Darren said he will review the numbers for accuracy. 

He said overall, the proposed system is expected to reduce flooding by about 90% and if the City 
was able to replace the roads and insure those positive drains, the flooding would definitely be 
reduced by 100%. He noted that adding asphalt curbs and swales and valley gutters will be an 
economical improvement for the area. 

9 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 10 

Next was review of the engineering estimates at 70% design and for Phase I the estimate was 
$161,000 and Phase 2 was $231,000. 

In conclusion he said this is the design that Whitchurch Engineering came up with and they are 
certain that it will alleviate a lot of the flooding problems in the Belleview/Ogle neighborhoods. 

Paul Hoffman, 245 Belleview Ave. questioned the size of the proposed drainage pipe and 
whether a 24 inch pipe is large enough. He referred to the picture presented showing flooding 
and said it really doesn't show the real problems and that his property floods much worse than 
what is shown. He commented that he would hate to see the City spend all this money and still 
have his property flood. 

Darren explained when they run the numbers to size the pipe they add about 30% so he feels 
very confident that the 24 inch pipe will be adequate. 

Water/Roadways Superintendent Jensen said to take into consideration that the water can't 
escape so the accumulation of water will be standing and ponding. 

Darren explained that when the 54 inch pipe is full and flowing everything else is backing up so 
essentially what they will be doing is taking one-half ofthe flow away from that pipe and 
moving it to the other side. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if the designation o f Phase I and Phase 2 is driven by the City'S 
funding. 

Darren said the request was to look at ways to mitigate some of the flooding right away then fox 
the rest later. 

Paul Hoffman said he liked the plan for Phase I and felt it would alleviate some of the flooding 
to his property. He asked for the plan as to when the project might get started. 

Mayor Wilson stated that one of the big issues is that the City has money to pay for the study to 
get the project "shovel ready"' and now has to pursue grant funding for the actual construction. 

City Manager Knopp inteJjected that there is still a lot of work that has to be done to find and 
identify grant dollars and said there may be the need to form a Benefit Assessment District to 
come up with enough money to provide a grant match or pay for at least a portion of the costs to 
do the project. He said one of the things the engineer has done that is really positive is breaking 
the project into phases and coming up with a realistic plan that is achievable to actually get 
"boots on the ground and shovels in the dirt" to get some of the drainage issues solved. 

Mayor commented that the staff report indicates that there have been three other studies related 
to the same issue. 

10 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 11 

City Manager Knopp said in this particular case, no general fund dollars were spent and grants 
paid for the studies. He said technology has changed since the previous studies were done as 
well as the neighborhood itself with additional development so the plans need to be updated, 
especially if the City pursues outside funding. He noted that the City Council did set aside 
money in the current budget to use toward moving the project forward and is a priority project. 
He said this project has been on the radar for quite some time and the Council does want to see it 
move forward. 

Councilmember Games asked what fund or funds the City's match would come out of should the 
project move forward and grant funds are pursued. 

City Manager Knopp said the City has $45,000 set aside to move the project to completion 
(beyond the 70%) and how the project is to be financed beyond that is unknown. He said 
because it is a much localized benefit for a specific neighborhood it is likely there will need to be 
a neighborhood contribution for it to be successful. He said as far as grant funding, there may be 
Prop 1 dollars available but need to do a lot of additional research to come up with a solid plan. 

The Council continued with questions on concentration for the various water sheds and 
maintenance issues with regard to the sediment caused by the water runoff from the hillside. 

City Manager Knopp said this underscores part of the need for some of the needed technology 
talked about which includes a more reliable vactor truck to help clean out the gutter systems and 
said even with reliable equipment it will take a lot of man hours to maintain the system. 

Councilmember Thompson asked that as things progress and costs are developed that a specific 
plan is developed that the Council can buy into that when the pipes are put in, the area won't 
continue to flood. 

Darren stated that there are expensive modules such as Vortex systems that remove sediment and 
agreed that maintenance will be an issue. 

Councilmember Johnson noted that there are several upslope properties and asked if there is 
anything that will preclude those property owners from logging. 

City Manager Knopp said as far as he knows they would have the right to engage in logging 
activities and it would have an impact on the amount of sediment running off the hillside. 

Melissa Marks questioned the I & I problems and said her understanding was that part of the 
reason for identifying the project as a priority was to alleviate some of the I & I. 

Dean Glaser stated that it is always nice to price down a project in order to come up with an 
amount acceptable for the City to achieve but in a scenario such as this, you never know what 
Mother Nature will bring and advised the Council to plan for the unknown. He said in 2002, we 

11 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 12 

ended up having a 500 year event and so he is always an advocate for over-kill rather than under 
sizing pipes. He recommended the Council get Whitchurch Engineering to come back with an 
estimate to increase the pipe to 36 inch as opposed to the 24 inch pipe as proposed. He said 
citizens expect the Council to do the right thing the first time and when you cut comers to save 
money it usually comes back to bite you. He agreed with the formation of an assessment district 
as it is problematic to have all citizens pay for improvements to one specific neighborhood. 

Council member Marks asked if there is any way to conduct a field trip so the Council can look at 
the area on the ground. 

City Manager Knopp indicated that it can be arranged. 

Presentation from JLM Energy regarding Solar and Wind Power for the City' s Wastewater and 
Water Treatment Facilities 
Wastewater Superintendent Chicora provided a brief staff report and said he was approached 
regarding the possibility of providing solar and wind power to the City's Wastewater and Water 
Facilities and after researching the local area was forwarded to JLM Energy. He said this is the 
same company that is installing the solar and wind turbines at Bear River Casino and after 
talking with them and explaining what the City would like to do, they came and did a site survey 
and an energy audit and came up with a plan to reduce energy usage at the plant. 

He then introduced Tony Holtz and Juan Petrenko from JLM Energy to provide a presentation on 
their findings from the energy audit and site survey. 

Juan Petrenko began by stating that the motto of JLM Energy is '·Declare your energy 
independence" which is what they strive for with each of their customers. He explained a little 
bit about their company and Zefr turbines which he said are the only wind turbines of their size 
with a self-preservation mode. He noted that all of their system components are put together at 
their facility in Rocklin. CA and they just completed a project at Intel Communications at their 
global headquarters in Santa Clara to power their visitor center. 

He continued with a summary of the proposed project and said 

Tony Holtz then reviewed the PG&E data from 2009-2015 for the water and wastewater 
facilities including historical rates and the demand charge breakdown per kilowatt for the various 
peak periods. He explained that the maximum peak charge is applied to the single highest power 
reading at any time during the month in addition to the time-based charges. 

He continued with a description of the proposed solar and wind power system for the wastewater 
and water facilities and identified the 79.04 Kw PV systems for the treatment plant and a 2.08 
Kw PV system for the Metropolitan site with four to seven wind turbines. 

12 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 13 

The estimated savings for the first year was estimated at $22,326 for the treatment plant and 
$545 for the Metropolitan site. The estimated savings including 81 Kw of solar, turbines and 
energy storage was estimated at $12,273,687 over 25 years. 

Mayor Wilson asked if the system would need to be purchased outright or if financing options 
were available. 

The response was that either option is available and that there are also State rebates available. 

Next was review of the financing cash flow including the energy savings by year, payments, 
annual cash flow and total cash flow. 

Presentation from Food for People regarding services provided in Rio Dell 
City Manager Knopp stated that the person that was to provide the presentation was in 
attendance at the beginning of the meeting but had to leave and asked that he convey to the 
Council that the Food for People program provided food to almost 2,500 individuals and 764 
households in the community of Rio Dell which is equal vent to $20,000 lbs. of food over the 
past year. 

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

Contribution of Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) to the Rio Dell/Scotia Chamber of Commerce 
Finance Director Woodcox provided a staff report and said at the last meeting Nick Angeloff, 
Rio Dell/Scotia Chamber of Commerce President, asked for Council's consideration of 
contributing a percentage of the City'S Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) revenue to assist the 
Chamber in carrying out normal business activities. She said the City has provided contributions 
in the past anywhere from a single annual contribution of$500 to 10% of the annual TOT 
revenue. She stated that the City'S total annual TOT revenue averages around $11,000. 

She said the contributions to the Chamber were discontinued in 20 I 0 when the Council agreed to 
continue to provide the 10% contribution with the stipulation that the Chamber provides 
financial/treasurer reports and they withdrew their request. 

She further reported that in July, 2013 the Chamber requested a 25% cash match contribution for 
a Headwaters Grant which the City Council approved. With that amount and the TOT 
contributions, the total contributions to the Chamber of Commerce from 2006 to present total 
$8,266.93. 

Included was a timeline of contributions to the Chamber and City Council minutes from 2006 to 
2013 approving the various contributions? 

Finance Director Woodcox pointed out that TOT revenue goes to the General Fund to support 
General Fund activities. 

13 



NOVEMBER 14,2015 MINUTES 
Page 14 

Mayor Wilson stated without representation from the Chamber present, he recommended the 
Council receive and file the report and defer action to provide them the opportunity to present 
their plea. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if the Chamber was prepared to provide financials. 

Melissa Marks commented that she thought the stipulation of the Headwaters Grant was that the 
Chamber would provide financial reports to the Council on a quarterly basis. 

The consensus of the Council was to defer action as suggested. 

ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSIPUBLIC HEARINGS 

Introduction and first reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 339-2015 amending Section 
2.60.030(4) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMC) changing the Planning Commission 's 
regular meeting day from the fourth Thursday to the fourth Tuesday of the month 
City Manager Knopp provided a brief staff report in the absence of the Community Development 
Director and said that staff informed the Planning Commission at their meeting on September 24, 
2015 that Julie Woodall was considering making application for the vacant Planning 
Commission position. Due to her work schedule she would not be able to attend Thursday night 
meetings so the Planning recommended changing the meeting date to the fourth Tuesday of the 
month to accommodate her schedule should she be appointed to the Commission. 

A public hearing was opened to receive public comment on the proposed ordinance. 

There being no public comment, the public hearing closed. 

Motion was made by Johnson/Games to introduce and conduct the first reading (by title only) of 
Ordinance No. 339-2015 amending Section 2.60.030(4) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code 
changing the Planning Commission's monthly regular meeting day from the fourth Thursday to 
the fourth Tuesday of the month and to continue consideration, approval and adoption of the 
proposed Ordinance to the meeting of November 17,2015 for the second reading and adoption. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

Introduction and first reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 340-2015 amending the 
"Definitions" provisions Chapter 17 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to amend or 
eliminate some existing definitions and includes additional definitions 
Finance Director Woodcox provided a brief staff report in the absence of Community 
Development Director Caldwell and said as the Council is aware a number of new or modified 
use types were identified as part of the recently completed Land Use Matrix. Staff and the 
Planning Commission is recommending that the existing Definitions found in Chapter 17 of the 
Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMC) be expanded to not only reflect the new or modified use 
types, 

14 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 15 

but also be expanded to include other definitions of tenus commonly used in administering the 
City's Zoning Regulations, Title 17 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMC). 

A public hearing was opened to receive public comment on the proposed ordinance. 

There being no public comment, the public hearing closed. 

Motion was made by GameslMarks to introduce and conduct first reading (by title only) of 
Ordinance No. 340-2015 amending the "Definitions" provisions, chapter 17 of the Rio Dell 
Municipal Code (ROMC) to amend some existing definitions, include additional definitions and 
eliminate some definitions, and to continue consideration, approval and adoption of the 
ordinance to the meeting of November 17,2015. Motion carried 5-0. 

Introduction and first reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 341-2015 amending Section 
5.30.520(2)(a) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMe) related to the PEG fee paid by cable 
operator to support public access television 
City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and said since April of2014, Suddenlink has been 
operating under State Cable franchises in accordance with the Digital Infrastructure and Video 
Competition Act of2006 (DIVCA) which requires payment of PEG access fees that equal 3% of 
the gross cable revenues paid to the County and local cities. Suddenlink however; has only been 
paying 1% since May of2014 and therefore is not in compliance with the local DIVCA 
ordinances. 

He said Access Humboldt contracted with Sue Buske of the Buske Group as a consultant to 
conduct negotiations with Suddenlink on behalf of the local cities and county. He said the 
attached resolution and settlement and release agreement is the result of those negotiations. 

He provided a brief review of the tenus and conditions of the Settlement and Release Agreement 
and recommended the Council approve the terms as described. 

A public hearing was opened to receive public comment on the proposed ordinance. 

Melissa Marks asked if Access Humboldt is the only entity the funds can go to. 

City Manager confirmed that they are since they are the only entity under the agreement. 

Dean Glaser stated that the Buske Group came together and fought hard for the cities and said 
1.401% is good because it saved the cities a huge expense in legal fees. He said the City 
Managers networked together and also got the City Attorney's on board. 

There being no further public comment, the public hearing closed. 

15 



NOVEMBER 3,2015 MINUTES 
Page 16 

Motion was made by JohnsonlThompson to introduce and conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 
341-2015 (by title only) amending Rio Dell Municipal Code Section 5.30.520(2)(a) and related 
authorization for the City Manager to sign the Settlement and Release Agreement with 
Suddenlink regarding PEG Access Funding, and to continue consideration, and approval of the 
ordinance to the meeting of November 17,2015. Motion carried 5-0. 

REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

City Manager Knopp provided a report on recent activities and events and said as the Council is 
aware he has been out of town for the past couple of weeks however; last Thursday citizens 
began receiving protest ballots on the proposed water rate increase in the mail. He said he 
wanted to make it clear for the record that the ballots were not sent by the City and that the 
mailing went out with no return address to indicate who sent them. 

He said the process is outlined by State law and the City followed the provisions for property 
related fees noting that if over 50% protest votes are received, the City can't move forward with 
the rate increase. 

He said he wanted to explain why the City did not include a ballot in the Prop 218 notice that 
went out to all property owners and rate payers and said it was because it was not part of the 
noticing requirement. 

Councilmember Thompson asked if an organized group protesting a proposed rate increase is 
required by law to register with the City Clerk. He said since several hundreds of dollars was 
spent to send out the protest votes wondered if staff should look into the legality of it. 

Council member Games questioned the purpose and whether those protest votes will still count. 

Council member Johnson pointed out that when you run for City Council you are required to 
report to the Fair Political Practices Commission any campaign contributions over $500 and 
would assume that this person or persons would fall under the same category. 

Mayor Wilson addressed Prop 218 and citizen's right to vote and said he is not particularly fond 
of some of the provisions under Prop 218. He asked for a consensus of the Council with regard 
\0 pursuing legal avenues regarding the mailing of the protest ballots by an unknown group of 
citizens. Three Council members said to leave it alone and one had no comment. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if staff could notify the Council as to milestones regarding the 
number of protest votes the City receives. 

Dean Glaser commented that if there is a bandit group of citizens it seems those votes would be 
ineligible and said duplicate votes would have to be set aside. 

16 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 17 

Mayor Wilson explained the City has the process outlined for tabulating the protest votes and 
staffis set up to deal with any duplicate or ineligible votes. 

Councilmember Games stated that any vote that come in will not be ignored if it is deemed valid. 

City Manager Knopp said the message staffhas received from the Council is very clear and will 
be followed. 

Mellissa Marks said she owns several properties and supports the rate increase and asked if she 
can send in "yes" votes for those parcels since renters move on. She was told that only "No" 
protest votes count. 

Finance Director Woodcox provided a report of recent activities in the finance department and 
said she was reevaluating staffing in her department and said having finance staff assist in the 
police department 3 days/week has become burdensome. As such, they are exploring the idea of 
hiring a part-time person in the police department. 

COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 

Councilmember Johnson reported that he will be attending a Last Chance Grade Stakeholders 
meeting in Crescent City the following day and said the League of California Cities is 
sponsoring a workshop on Cannabis legislation on November 16, 2015 at the Warfinger Building 
in Eureka and suggested no more than two Council members attend to avoid potential violation 
of the Brown Act. 

Mayor Wilson reported on his attendance at Redwood Region Economic Development 
Commission (RREDC) and said it was his tum to speak on a subject and he talked about the 
City's proposed rate increase. He said the board was extremely surprised to hear what the MHI 
is being reported for Rio Dell. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion was made by JohnsonlMarks to adjourn the meeting at 8:55 p.m. to the November 17, 
2015 regular meeting. Motion carried 5-0. 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

17 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
(707) 764-5480 (fax) 
E-mail: cm@riodellcity.com 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
November 17, 2015 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

THROUGH: Kyle Knopp, City Managr 

FROM: Brooke Woodcox, Finance Director 

DATE: November 17, 2015 

em Of 

~ DELL -

SUBJECT: Discussion and Possible Action to Adopt Resolution No. 1277-2015 Authorizing 
Participation in the Public Agency Coalition Enterprise Joint Powers Agreement 
Related to Employee Health Benefits. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Resolution 1277-2015 authorizing participation in a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) with 
the Public Agency Coalition Enterprise Joint Powers Authority for the purpose of providing 
health insurance coverage for the City's employees. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT 

None at this time. The agreement will mitigate rising health insurance costs for 12 months, and 
potentially into the future. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

On October 20, 2015 City Manager Kyle Knopp brought to the Council's attention that City staff 
had been exploring different healthcare options. This had come about due to healthcare costs 
that have been continually rising with the largest increase that the City had ever seen (27%) in 
December 2014. This increase was soon mitigated through voluntary action and agreement by 
employees for decreased healthcare benefits beginning in February 2015. 

Resolution 1277·2015 
K~enan iJnd Assodates Healthcare Benefits JPA 

18 



Once again the City is anticipating an increase in health care costs in February 2016 that may be 
as high as 11%, however this factor isn't confirmed. Keenan and Associates, the insurance 
provider that City staff has been exploring, has the potential to lessen the impact of increasing 
health care costs. 

Keenan and Associates have been providing health care benefits for over 30 years through joint 
powers agreements (JPA). They serve as the provider for the JPA known as Public Agency 
Coalition Enterprise (PACE). By joining PACE the City's employees will have the benefit of having 
a plan that closely resembles their previous plan and is administered through the Anthem Blue 
Cross network. Employees will see increased health care benefits through the extensive list of 
in-network-providers. 

The proposal presented by Keenan and Associates will be less out of pocket expenses for the 
employee with the added benefit that the cost to the City, despite the change in providers, 
doesn't change. Keenan and Associates have guaranteed these rates for 12 months. Keenan 
and Associates 5 year average renewal rate is 3.2% in comparison to the City's current plan that 
is estimated to increase up to 11% in February. Keenan's lower rate of increases will have a 
positive effect on the budget and additionally, a positive financial impact for employees. 

It is staff's opinion that Keenan and Associates healthcare proposal is a step in the right 
direction towards fiscal responsibility and the City's commitment to providing employees with 
robust healthcare benefits. The proposal, which all employees have unanimously agreed to, 
allows the City to maintain quality health insurance for employees while endeavoring towards 
present and future sustainability. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A) Resolution 1277-2015 
B) Public Agency Coalition Enterprise (PACE) JPA Bylaws (current) 
C) Keenan and Associates Proposal 

Resolution 1277·2015 
Keenan and Associates Healthcare BeneHts IPA 

19 



RESOLUTION NO. 1277-2015 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF RIO DELL APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND 

AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE PUBLIC AGENCY COALITION 
ENTERPRISE (PACE) MEDICAL BENEFITS PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF RIO DELL, a public agency duly organized and 
existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the "Entity"), has 
determined that it is the best interest and to the advantage of the Entity to participate in 
medical benefits offered by the Public Agency Coalition Enterprise (the "Authority"); 
and the Entity understands a condition of participation in Medical Benefits is a minimum 
of two years; and 

WHEREAS, the "Authority" became operational on April 1,2012 in accordance 
with the provisions of California Government Code 6500 et. seq., for the purpose of 
providing best-value benefit solutions and other coverage protection programs; and 

WHEREAS, participation in the "Authority" medical programs requires the 
execution of the attached joint exercise of powers agreement ("Agreement") which states 
the purpose and participation requirements for the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the laws of the State of 
California to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in 
connection with the consummation of the transactions authorized hereby di exist, have 
happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required 
by law, and the Entity is now duly authorized and empowered, pursuant to each and 
every requirement oflaw. to consummate such transactions for the purpose. in the 
manner and upon the terms herein provided. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Rio Dell hereby approves as follows: 

Section I : 

Section 2: 

Findings. The Entity' s City Council hereby specifically finds and 
determines that the actions authorized hereby relate to the public affairs 
of the Entity. 

Memorandum of Understanding. The agreement to be executed and 
entered into by and between the Entity and the Authority in the form 
presented at this meeting and on file with the Entity's City Clerk, is 
hereby approved. The Entity's City Council hereby authorizes and 
directs the City Manager, for and in the name on behalf of the Entity, 
to execute and deliver to the Authori ty the Agreement, to be effective 

Resolution No. 1277-2015 PACE Medical Benefit Program Page 1 

20 



Section 3: 

Section 4: 

Section 5: 

Section 6: 

November 3,2015. 

Program Participation. The entity's City Council approves participating 
for a minimum of two years in the Authority's medical benefits program. 

Other Actions. The City Council authorizes and directs the City Manager 
to execute and deliver any and all documents which is necessary in order 
to consununate the transactions authorized hereby and all such actions 
heretofore taken by the City Manager in conformance with this Resolution 
are hereby ratified. 

Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
passage. 

The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of November, 2015 by the following 
vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

J, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify 
the above to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 1277-2015 adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Rio Dell on November 17, 2015. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

Resolution No. 1277-2015 PACE Medical Benefit Program Page 2 

21 



AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS 
PUBUC AGENCY COALITION ENTERPRISE 

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

PREAMBLE 

The Public Agency Coalition Enterprise Joint Powers Authority ('PACE" or 'JPA'') is established 
for the putpose of the establishment, operation, and maintenance of a joint progrnm for employee 
benefits coverage, and such other coverages and associated services as the Board may later 
determine, by its members ("Members''), and to provide a forum for discussion, srudy, 
development, and implementation of programs regarding employee benefits, insurance, and self
insurance. PACE shall comply with the provisions of Sections 6503.5 and 53051 of the 
Government Code requiring the filing of a statement with the Secretary of State. 

ARTICLE I 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

A. A Board of Directors (''Board'') is hereby established to direct and conrrol PACE. The 
number of directors shall equal the number of Members. As additional Members are added, 
the number of directors shall be adjusted accordingly without need to amend these bylaws. 

B. Each Member of PACE shall appoint one of its employees to serve on the Board, and shall 
notify PACE in writing of the appointment. The Insurance Advisory Committee described 
in Article VIII ("lAC") shall also appoint one of its members to serve on the Board. 

C. Each Director shall serve an indefinite tenn which shall end upon the occurrence of any of 
the foUowing events: 
1. Written notice from the appointing Member that it has appointed a replacement for 

the director; 
2. The director ceases to be an employee of the appointing Member, or the lAC, if 

service as lAC representative; 
3. The director provides written notice of resignation; or 
4. The director is involuntarily removed from office by a majority vote of the Board. 
Any vacancy on the Board shall be fiUed by the Member that appointed the Director leaving 
the vacancy. 

D. The Board shall meet at least annually and at other times as special meetings are called. The 
date, time, and place for each such regular meeting shall be fixed by resolution of the Board 
of Directors, which resolution shall be publicly posted prior to the meeting on a public 
buUetin board to be designated by the Board and filed with each Member. All meetings of 
the Board of Directors shall be called, held, and conducted in accordance with the terms and 
provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act, Sections 54950, et seq., of the California 
Government Code ("Act''), as from time to time amended, and in accordance with rules 
adopted by the Board, provided that such rules are not inconsistent with the Act. The Board 
shall cause minutes of its meetings to be kept, and shall prompdy transmit to the Members 
true and correct copies of the minutes of such meetings. 

1 
PACE 22 



E. The Board, by resolution, shall designate a specific location at which it will receive notices, 
correspondence, and other communications, and shall designate one of its Members as an 
agent for the purpose of receiving service on behalf of PACE. 

F. Each Director shall have one vote and, unless otherwise provided under these Bylaws, the 
action of a majority of Directors at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute 
the action of the Board. A quorum shall consist of a majority of Directors present at any 
regular or specially called meeting of the Board. 

G. In addition to those standing committees established by the Bylaws, the Board may appoint 
and dissolve working committees whose function shall be as designated by the Board. 
Working committees shall not have authority to act on behalf of the Board, but shall present 
information, offer input, and/or make suggestions and recommendations to the Board. 
Unless otherwise prohibited by law or these Bylaws, membership in a working committee is 
not restricted to Directors. Any employee of a Member may serve on a working committee, 
provided, however, that each working committee shall have at least one (I) member who is a 
Director. The President shall appoint the chair and all members of each working committee. 

H. No Director shall receive any compensation in exchange for service as a Director, provided, 
however, that the Directors shall be reimbursed, in accordance with policies to be adopted by 
the Board, for all legitimate e.'qlenses incurred in the performance of their duties. 

I. The JPA may secure insurance coverage for the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE II 
POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

A. The Board may establish rules governing its own conduct and procedure, and have such 
expressed or implied authority as is not inconsistent with, or contrary to, the laws of the 
State of California, these Bylaws, or the Joint Powers Agreement ("JPA Agreement.") 

B. The Board of Directors shall directly or by contract take such action and provide for services 
required to effectively implement all aspects of this joint program. 

C. Unless otherwise prohibited by law or these Bylaws, the Board may delegate to the 
Executive Committee the authority to act on Behalf of the Board on any matter that is to be 
brought before the Board. 

D. The Board shall designate and engage a Program Manager to oversee the day-to-day 
activities of the JP A. 

2 
PACE 23 



ARTICLE III 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

A. Once the Authority has reached seven [1) Members, the Board shall establish an Executive 
Committee. The size of the Executive Committee shall be as set by resolution of the Board. 
The Executive Committee shall be comprised of the PACE Officers and such other 
Directors as are elected by the Board. Until such time as the Executive Committee is 
established, the powers and duties of the Executive Committee as designated in these Bylaws 
shall be the responsibility of the full Board of Directors. 

B. The non-Officer members of the Executive Committee shall be elected by a majority vote of 
the Directors and shall serve a term ending on December 31 of odd numbered years. In the 
event of a vacancy on the Executive Committee, the vacancy shall be filled by the majority 
vote of the Executive Committee. Any individual elected to fill a vacancy shall serve for the 
remainder of the unexpired term. 

C. The Executive Committee may conduct regular, adjourned regular, special, and adjourned 
speci'll meetings, provided, however, that it will hold at least two regular meetings each fiscal 
year. Such meetings llL~y be held concurrent with PACE meetings. The date, time, and place 
for each such regular meeting shall he fixed by resolution of the Executive Committee, 
which resolution shall be publicly posted prior to the meeting on a public bulletin board to 
be designated by the Executive Committee and filed with each Member of PACE. 

All meetings of the Executive Committee shall be called, held, and conducted in accordance 
with the terms and provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Section 
54950, et seq.) (''Brown Act") of the California Government Code, as said Act may be 
modified by subsequent legislation, and as the same may be augmented by rules of the 
Executive Committee not inconsistent therewith. 

D. Except as otherwise provided or permitted by law, all meetings of the Executive Committee 
shall be open and public. The Executive Committee shall cause minutes of its meetings to 
be kept, and shall promptly transmit to the Members of PACE true and correct copies of the 
minutes of such meetings. 

E. Each member of the Executive Committee shall have one (1) vote and, unless otherwise 
provided in these bylaws, the action of a majority at any meeting at which a quorum is 
present shall constitute the action of the Executive Committee. A quorum shall consist of a 
majority of Directors present at any regular or specially called meeting of the Rxecutive 
Committee. 

F. No individual shall receive any compensation in exchange for service on the Executive 
Committee, provided, however, that the members of the Rxecutive Committee shall be 
reimbursed, in accordance with policies to be adopted by the Board, for all legitimate expenses 
incurred in the performance of their duties. 

3 
PACE 24 



ARTICLE IV 
POWERS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

A. The Executh'e Committee may establish rules governing its own conduct and procedure, 
and have such expressed or implied PACE as is not inconsistent with or contrary to the laws 
of the State of California, these Bylaws, the Agreement, or any rule, policy, procedure, 
action, or directive of the Board. The Executive Committee shall have no power to overrule 
or invalidate any action validly taken by the Board. 

B. The Executive Committee shall have the duty to act on behalf of the Board in between the 
meetings of the Board, but ooly as described in Part C below. 

C. The powers of the Executive Committee include: 
1. Appoint and dissolve working committees; 
2. Directly or by contract provide for services required to effectively implement all 

aspects of this joint program; 
3. Review, approve and/or tenninate any contract to which PACE is a party, except 

that the JP A's contract with the Program Manager may ooly be approved or 
tenninated by the full Board; 

4. Approve admission of new Members; 
5. Approve the health benefits insurance and insurance-related programs to be offered 

to the Members; 
6. Work with the Program Manager, as appropriate, to oversee PACE's insurance 

programs and day-to-day operations; and 
7. Any other power necessary to conduct the business of PACE unless such power is 

specifically reserved to the Board. 

ARTICLE V 
OFFICERS 

A. The Officers of PACE shall be elected by the Board, and shall be the Presidcnt, Vice 
President, and Secretary/Treasurer. Each officer shall serve a term ending on December 31 
of even numbered years. Any person elected or appointed as an Officer may be removed at 
any time, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Board. Any vacancy in an Officer 
position shall be filled by the Board. 

B. The President shall be the chief executive officer and shall have general supervision and 
direction of the business of PACE, shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Board are 
carried into effect, and shall have other powers and perform such other duties as may be 
prescribed from time to time by the Board. The President shall also be a Member of all 
working committees established by the Board or Executive Committee. 

C. The Vice Prcsident shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be prescribed 
from time to time by the Board or the President. In the absence or disability of the 
President, the Vice President shall be vested with all the powers and authorized to perform 
all the duties of the President. 

4 
PACE 25 



D. The Secretary/Treasurer shall have the following duties: 

1. Attend all meetings of PACE and record all votes and the minutes of all meetings; 
2. Give, or cause to be gi,'en, notice of all meetings of PACE when notice is required 

by law or these Bylaws; 
3. Act as the chief financial officer of PACE and assume the following duties described 

in Sections 6505.1 and 6505.5 of the California Government Code: 
1. Receive and receipt for all money of PACE and place it in a County 

Treasury and/or a commercial account as approved by PACE to the 
credit of PACE; 

u. Be responsible for the safekeeping and disbursement of all money of 
PACE; and 

w. Pay, when due, out of money of PACE, all legitimate and verifiable 
sums payable by PACE. 

4. Verify and report in writing on the first day of July, October, January, and April of 
each year, or as soon as possible thereafter, to PACE, the amount of money he holds 
for PACE, the amount of receipts since his last report, and the amount paid out 
since his last report. 

5. Act as Custodian of PACE property; and 
6. Perform such other duties as may be prescribed from time to rime by law or by 

PACE or the President. 

ARTICLE VI 
MEMBERSHIP 

A. Membership in PACE is open to any commercially insured or self-insured California public 
agency. Membership shall be deemed to be effective when the prospective Member has: 
1. Been approved by the Board or Executive Committee; 
2. Has executed the Agreement; and 
3. Agreed in writing to be bound by these Bylaws. 

B. For purposes of Section A above, "public agency" means any city, srate, county, or local 
government or an agency of city, srate, county, or local government, public school district, 
community college district, county board of education/county superintendent of schools, 
regional occupational programs/centers, or other public entity or any joint powers authority 
comprised of any of the foregoing and serving the interests of the public entities detailed in 
this section. 

ARTICLE VII 
PROGRAM MANAGER 

A Program Manager shall oversee the day-to-day operations and administrative functions of PACE. 
The Program Manager shall also act as PACE's benefits consultant and insurance broker for the 
organization. Given its extensive experience as an insurance broker/consultant and in the 
management of pooled insurance programs and joint powers authorities, Keenan shall serve as 
PACE's Program Manager. Keenan shall serve at the pleasure of the Board and may be removed as 
the Program Manager if such removal is authorized by unanimous consent of all Directors. The 
compensation of the Program Manager will be set each year by the Board. Members shall comply 

5 
PACE 26 



with any initiatives or programs implemented by the Program Manager on behalf of PACE, 
including, but not limited to, the use of the BenefitBridge data platform to facilitate enrollment and 
the transmission of eligibility data. 

ARTICLE VIII 
INSURANCE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. There shall be created an Insurance Advisory Committee ("lAC") whose purpose shall be to 
advise and consult with the Board with respect to the interests and concerns of non
management employees of the Members. Each Member shall designate up to two (2) 
individuals from the organization to serve on the lAC. Individuals shall serve on the lAC at 
the pleasure of the appointing Member and any individual so serving may be removed and 
replaced by the appointing Member at any time for any reason. 

B. The lAC shall appoint two (2) members of the Committee to serve as Directors of the 
Authority. Except as expressly described in this Article VII, any individual representing the 
lAC on the Board of Directors shall have the same duties, responsibilities, and conditions of 
tenure as each other Director. 

C. The lAC shall select one individual to serve as its Chair. The Chair shall preside over all 
meetings of the lAC. 

D. The lAC shall function only in an advisoty capacity and shall have no authority to take any 
action or make any decision on behalf of the Authority. 

E. All meetings of the lAC will be called, held and conducted in compliance with the provisions 
of the Brown Act. 

F. The lAC members shall not receive compensation for their service on the Committee. 
Expenses incurred by an lAC member at the direction or request of the Board shall be 
eligible for reimbursement only if approved in advance. 

G. The lAC shall meet at least once annually. Additional meetings may be convened upon 
request of the Chair or any lAC member, or at the request or direction of the Board. 

ARTICLE IX 
WELLNESS INITIATIVES 

Each Member shall promote the health and well-being of its employees through participation in the 
wellness initiatives adopted by PACE. In furtherance of such initiatives, and to support a wel1ness 
program among its own employees, each Member shall: 

PACE 

1. Create a wellness leadership team representing management and labor, which meets 
monthly and assists with providing direction for the program design, 
implementation, and evaluation; 

2. Establish an employee wellness committee to provide involvement of the workforce 
in program design and advocacy; 

6 
27 



3. Conduct an audit of the wellness environment in the organization, and identify 
actions to be taken to support a culture of wellness; 

4. Conduct an assessment of employee wellness needs, interests. and challenges; 

5. Develop a multi-year wellness program blueprint - including mission, goals, and 
objectives - to provide an action plan for implementing and evaluating the program, 
and for sustaining the program to achieve a positive return on investment; 

6. Create a wellness program bmnding; 

7. Develop a strategy for engaging employees in the program, including an incentives 
program plan; and 

8. Identify metrics for monitoring and evaluating the program's progress and outcomes. 

ARTICLE X 
FINANCE 

A. PACE shall opemte on a fiscal year from January 1st through December 31st. 

B. No less than 120 days before the end of the fiscal year, the Executive Committee shall adopt 
an operating budget ("Operating Budget") for the following fiscal year. A copy of the 
Opemting Budget shall be transmitted to each of the Members. 

C. As necessary, an Opemting Account shall be established and rrulintained by the Program 
Manager for any the monies that may be received by PACE. Funds from the Operating 
Account shall be used for the payment of the operating expenses of PACE. 

D. Each Member shall be responsible for the payment of its own insurance premiums. 

E. Each Member sball be responsible for a pro rata share of the fees of the Program Manager 
and such other expenses as may be authorized by the Board. The amount of each Member's 
share shall be calculated on a per employee per month basis. 

ARTICLE XI 
INSURANCE COVERAGE AND OTHER SERVICES 

A. The Program Manager shall, upon Board recommendation, solicit and obtain quotes from 
insurance catriers for presentation to the Board. 

B. The Board sball determine the catrier(s) and insurance options that will be made available to 
the Members. 

C. Coverage shall renew as of the first day of each fiscal year. 

7 
PACE 28 



D. Each commercially insured Member must purchase its benefits insurance coverage through 
the JPA. unless the selected carrier(s) refuses to offer a quote for such Member, in which 
case the Member may either elect to continue as a self-insured Member or be terminated 
from membership in PACE, pursuant to Article XII. 

E. Each member may select from the available commercial insurance coverage options in 
accordance with the guidelines set up by carrier(s) and/or the JPA. Once its options have 
been selected, a Member may not change its selected options for n period of 3 years, 
provided, however, that under extenuating circumstances a Member may request that this 
requirement be waived. Any Member requesting a waiver must present its request in writing 
to the Executive Committee explaining the circumstances and the reasons why the waiver 
should be granted. The Executive Committee shall have the sole authority to determine, in 
its absolute discretion, whether or not to grant the waiver. The decision of the Executive 
Committee shall be final. 

F. Each commercially insured Member will be responsible for the timely payment of its 
insurance premiums. Failure to pay premiums when due is grounds for termination of 
membership in the JP A. 

G. PACE will make available the third party administration (TP A) services to its self-insured 
Members. Self-insured 11'A services will be provided by the PACE Program Manager. 
Members will be expected to utilize the services of TPA PACE's Program Manager unless 
an exception is granted in writing by the Board. 

H. Self-insured Members securing TPA services through PACE will have access to the pricing 
negotiated by the TP A and the applicable network. 

I. Self-insured Members will be required to accept the terms and conditions of the TP A service 
agreement entered into by PACE and the Program Manager. 

J. Each self-insured Member will be fuJIy and solely responsible for the payment of its claims 
and \vill be responsible for funding a claims payment account for use by the 11' A. 

K Self-insured Members will be billed direcdy by the TP A for the TP A services and will be 
solely responsible for payment of the 11' A fees. 

ARTICLE XII 
ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS 

A. The Secrewy /Treasurer is the designated depository of PACE funds in compliance with 
California Government Code 6505.5 and 6505.6. 

B. PACE is stricdy accountable for all funds received and dispersed by it and, to that end, 
PACE shall establish and maintain such funds and accounts as may be required by good 
accounting practice or by any provision of law or any resolution of PACE. Books and 
records of PACE in the bands of the Secrewy/Treasurer shall be open to inspection at all 
reasonable times by representatives of the Members. As soon as practical after the close of 

8 
PACE 29 



each fiscal year, PACE shall give, or cause to be given, a complete written report of all 
financial activities for such fiscal year to each Member. 

C. The Board of Directors shall make, or contract with a Certified Public Accountant to make, 
an annual audit of the accounts, records, and financial affairs of PACE. In each case the 
minimum requirements of the audit shall be those prescribed by the State Controller for 
special districts under Section 26909 of the California Government Code and shall conform 
to generally accepted auditing standards and accounting principles. When such nn audit of 
accounts and reports is made by a Certified Public Accountant, a report thereof shall be filed 
as a public record with each of the Members of PACE. 

ARTICLE XIII 
TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP 

A. Any Member who has been a member of PACE for at least two (2) years may teaninate its 
membership and its participation in the Joint Powers Agreement by providing notice in the 
manner prescribed in Section B below. Teanination will be effective as of the last day of the 
then-current fiscal year. 

B. Notice must be given at least 60 days before the end of the fiscal year. Notice must be in 
writing signed by the chief executive of the Member and submitted with a copy of a 
resolution of the Member's Board of Trustees authorizing the termination. The Board has 
the right to impose a termination fee upon any Member who fails to provide notice in the 
manner required by these Bylaws. 

C. Any Member withdrawing from PACE shall not be eligible to reapply for membership for a 
period of three (3) years. 

D. The terminating Member will not be eligible to renew any insurance coverage obtained 
through PACE at the rates available to PACE Members 

E. A Member may be involunrarily terminated from PACE upon a two-thirds (2/3) majority 
vote of the Executive Committee at any meeting at which a quorum is present. 

F. Grounds for involuntary termination include, but are not limited to, the following: 

PACE 

1-. Failure or refusal to abide by the Agreement or ByL'Iw, and/or any amendment 
thereto; 

2. Any action which in the opinion of the Board is contrary to best the interests, goals 
and/ or objecti,·es of PACE and its Members. 

3. Failure of a Member to disclose a material fact to PACE or its Program Manager 
which, in the opinion of the Board, constitutes fraud, misrepresentation or 
concealment for the purposes of obtaining coverage with PACE. 

4. Failure to qualify for any insurance coverage offered through PACE, if not 
continuing as a self-insured Member securing TP A services through PACE; 

5. Failure for more than 60 days to pay any of its share of the Program Manager's fees; 
6. The cancellation of insurance obtained through PACE for non-payment of 

prenuurns, or 

9 

30 



7. Failure for more than 60 days to make any payment due for TP A services secured 
through PACE. 

Involuntary tennination shall have the effect of eliminating the Member as a signatory to the 
Agreement and as a Member of PACE. Tennination shall be effective upon such other date 
as the Board may specify, but in no case less than thirty (30) days after notice of involuntary 
termination is given. In the event that termination occurs before the last day of the fiscal 
year, any insurance obtained by the tennin.ted Member through PACE shall continue until 
the first day of the month following the tennination date. 

ARTICLE XIV 
DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY AND FUNDS 

In the event of the dissolution of PACE, the complete rescission, or other final termination of Joint 
Powers Agreement by all Members then a party to the Agreement, any properry interest remaining 
in PACE following a discharge of all obligations shall be disposed of pursuant to a plan adopted by 
the Board of Directors with the objective of returning to each Member a pro tata share of the 
remaining interest. The pro rata share shall be determined by the length of time each entity has been 
a Member. 

ARTICLE XV 
INVESTMENT OF FUNDS 

A. PACE shall have the power to invest or cause to be invested, in compliance with Section 
6509.5 of the California Government Code, such funds as are not necessary for the 
immediate operation of PACE as allowed by Section 53601 of the California Government 
Code. 

B. The level of cash to be retained for the actual operation of PACE shall be determined by the 
Board. 

ARTICLE XVI 
AMENDMENT 

A. Amendment to these Bylaws may be proposed by any Member of the Board. 

B. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, amendments to these Bylaws must be 
adopted by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of all Directors. Any amendments duly adopted by the 
Board shall be binding upon all Members of PACE. Any amendment that would alter the 
rights of the Members or would fundamentally change the purpose of the JP A as established 
in the Preamble to these Bylaws, must be approved by the unanimous consent of all 
Directors. The effective date of any amendment will be on the first day of the next month 
following adoption, unless otherwise stated. 

10 
PACE 31 



ARTICLE XVII 
SEVERABILITY 

Should any portion, tenn, condition, or provision of these Bylaws be decided by a coun of 
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of California, or be 
otherwise rendered unenforceable or ineffecrual, the validity of the remaining portions, terms, 
conditions, and provisions shall not be affected thereby. 

ARTICLE XVIII 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

These Bylaws shall become effective immediately upon their adoption by the Board. 

Approved: August 6, 2014 
Amended and Restated: Feb. 25, 2015 
Approved: April 28, 2015 

PACE 
11 

32 



--Q) 

o 
o --
0:: 

en 
Q) 
u .-
2: 
Q) 

en 

-oLO 
.. >- 0 
~EN 
-0£"": 
Q) ::l ...... 
cOL
Q) (/) Q) CJ)_..o 
Q) Q) E 
L- 3: Q) 
0.. 0 > 

I 0 Z 

33 



w 
~ 

Keenan 
Companies 

Keenan 

Keenan 

Principal Market Segment and Services 

950+ Public Agency Clients 

117 Healthcare Clients 



IN 
VI 

An Overview of Our Company 

• Keenan has been serving California public agencies for 
42 years 

• More than 950 California Public Agency clients 

• 650 employees, 9 offices statewide staffed to offer daily 
individual and personal service to an agency and its 
employees 

• Privately held; employee owned 

• Enables Keenan to take a long term approach 

• Built to exclusively serve the insurance and consulting 
needs of California public agencies 

• A commitment to innovation 



w 
'" 

Background 

• Staff contacted Keenan to inquire about alternatives to 
save money 

• Meeting to understand the current plans and rates 
offered 

• Data provided 

• Keenan Medical JPA Cost Savings with the same or 
enhanced Medical benefits 
- Presentation to staff 



w 
'" 

Keenan Medical JPA 

o Serving California Public Entities since 1982 

• Providing services to 40+ employer groups 

• Currently provides a variety of Anthem medical plan 
options 

• 3 and 4 tier rate structures 

• Large Group with over 8000 members - offers rate 
stability_ 

• The City will have representation on the Keenan Medical 
JPA Board 



w 
00 

Savings and Stability 

• Savings 
- $15,000 annually 

- Approximately one month's of the City's medical premium 

• Stability 
- The City currently offers a Small Group age rated medical 

plan because the group is under 100 employees 

o Small Group age rated plans have volatility in terms of 
rate increases and changes to plan design 

- Keenan Medical JPA is rated as a Large Group medical plan 
with composite rates 

• Composite rate types include Employee only, Employee 
plus one dependent and Employee plus family 

- Wellness Programs help control costs of the Keenan Medical 
JPA 



W 
<0 

Benefits to Employees 
• Benefits are enhanced with lower monthly costs 

• The lower Out of Pocket Maximum benefit is superior to 
the current plan 
- Current plan: $2,500 Individual/$5,000 Family 

- Keenan Medical JPA: $1,500 Individual/$3,000 Family 

• Well ness programs 



t: .-> 
Q) 

o 
(]) () 

u~ .- co >......, 
s.... CJ) 

C Q) ~ 
CU(j)O 

a5 0> ~ 
Q) C Q) 

~ ·0 ~ 
O>~ 
c~ 

Oc 
:::J 
o 
() 
() 

« 

40 



.". ... 

Keenan's Proven Results 

County 

City 

City 

Book of 
Business 

City 

City 

County 

Saved Over $2,000,000 in life and AD&D premium without 
changing a benefit 

Saved City 17% on Ancillary benefits. 

Saved City 14% on Ancillary benefits. 

Saved in excess 5% when renegotiated medical 
renewals 

Saved City $1.4 million dollars without changing benefits 

Saved over 10% by moving to a Medical JPA 

Saved 50% of the retiree costs by implementing a 
Medicare Exchange 



.;:. 
IV 

Your Keenan Service Team 

Howell Southmayd 
Vice President 
Employee Benefits/Municipalities 
(28 years industry experience) 

Steve Gedestad 
Municipality Practice Leader 
(35 years industry experience) 

Tom Edwards 

Crystal McDevitt 
Account Manager 
Employee Benefits/Municipalities 
(11 years industry experience) 

Stacey Comerchero 
Senior Account Manager 
Employee Benefits/Municipalities 
(30 years industry experience) 

Senior Vice President 
Benefits Underwriting and 
Actuarial Analysis 
(30 years industry experience) 



.,., 
IN 

Thank You 
Howell Southmayd, Vice President 

Keenan & Associates 
2868 Prospect Park Drive, Suite 600 

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 
(925) 683-5048 mobile 

hsouthmayd@keenan.com 



Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Al'ellue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcitJ',com 

November 17,2015 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

OTYOF 

J.HN~ 
~ 

SUBJECT: Presentation from Eel Ri isposal on Solid Waste and Recycling Franchise 
Agreement and Current Operations 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Receive the presentation and ask questions. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

Representatives from Eel River Disposal (ERO) have been invited to give a short presentation on 
Solid Waste and Recycling Services provided in Rio Dell. 

The current agreement for Solid Waste and Recycling services was entered into with ERO on 
January 1,2007 and terminates on December 31 , 2016. As called for in the contract, the garbage 
rates undergo an annual adjustment. Over the next few months the City will need to either 
negotiate and extension of the current contract or issue a Request for Proposal for these services 
from interested and qualified providers. 

Attached to the agenda are: 

I.) Franchise Revenue from 2012-2016. 
2.) Recycling Revenue from 2014-2016. 
3.) A description of the methodology used to allocate tonnage from commingled collection 
routes. 
4.) A definition of terms used in the annual rate adjustment, rate sheet, and quarterly reporting. 
5.) The most recent quarterly report. 
6.) A Letter from ERO describing the annual rate increase which was approved by the City 
Council on June 16, 2015. 

//I 

44 



~ 

EEl RIVER DISPOSAL FRANCHISE TAX FEES FROM 2012·2016 

I Dept Rev/Exp by Month I June 3D, 2012 
REVENUE Julv August Sept October Nov I!!!< J!!l f!l! M!!£h ~ May June I2!!! 
4120 Fees - Franchl.e - 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,597.00 0.00 0.00 3,755.00 0.00 0.00 3,905.00 0.00 3,813.00 15,070.00 
Garbage 

~ 

Total Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,597.00 0.00 0.00 3,755.00 0.00 0.00 3,905.00 0.00 3,813.00 15,070.00 

Dept Rev/Exp by Month 
June 3D, 2013 

REVENUE July August Sept October Nov Dec Jan Feb March ~ May June Total 

4120 Fees - Franchise - 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,744 .00 0.00 0.00 3,735.00 0.00 0.00 3,647.00 0.00 3,713.00 14,839.00 
Garbage 

= Total Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,744.00 0.00 0.00 3,735.00 0.00 0.00 3,647.00 0.00 3,713.00 14,839.00 

4120 Fees - Franchise - 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,750.00 0.00 0.00 3,887.00 0.00 0.00 3,957.00 0.00 3,551.00 15,145.00 
Garbage -Total Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,750.00 0.00 0.00 3,887.00 0.00 0.00 3,957.00 0.00 -2:551.00 15,145.00 

Dept Rev/Exp by Month 
June 3D, 2015 

VENUE July August Sept October ~ I!!!< Jan Feb March &!!!! May June I2!!! 
4120 Fees - Franchlse- 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,994.00 0.00 0.00 3,845.00 0.00 0.00 4,149.00 0.00 3,581.00 15,568.00 
Garbage 

~ 

Total Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,994.00 0.00 0.00 ~845.oo 0.00 0.00 4,149.00 0.00 3,581.00 15,568.00 

To Date 2016 

I Dept Rev/Exp by Month I June 3D, 2016 
REVENUE July August Sept October ~ I!!!< J!!l f!l! March April May ~ I2!!! 
4120 Fees - Franchise - 0 .00 0.00 0.00 4,023.00 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,023.00 

Garbage 
~ -- - --- -

0 .00 Total Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,023.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 .00 0.00 4,023.00 



EEL RIVER DISPOSAL RECYCLING FEES FROM 2014-2016 
Dept Rev/Exp by Month 

June 30, 2015 
REVENUE July August Sept October Nov Dec Jan Feb March April 
4190 Fees -Integrated 0.00 0.00 0.00 296.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 358.60 0.00 318.60 
Waste Management 

= ~ = = = Total Revenue 0.00 0.00 D.DD 296.00 0.00 0.00 D.DD 358.60 D.DD 318.60 

Dept Rev/Exp by Month 
June 30, 2016 

REVENUE July August Sept October Nov Q!!E Jan E!!! ~ April 
4190 Fees - Integrated 0.00 0.00 0.00 323.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.DD 0.00 0.00 
Waste Management 

===- ~ =- ~ = Total Revenue D.DD D.DD D.DD 323.30 D.DD D.DD 0.00 D.DD O.DD D.DD 

May 
0.00 

-== 
D.DD 

May 
0.00 

~ 

O.DD 

June 
281.70 

281.70 

June 
0.00 

D.DD 

Total 
1,254.90 

1,254.90 

!!!!l!! 
323.30 

323.30 

\0 

"'" 



Methodology Used to Allocate Tonnage from Commingled Collection Routes 

Percentage Allocated To Each Jurisdiction 

Fortuna 60% 
County 22% 
Rio Dell 11% 
Ferndale 7% 

Weight Factor Used For Average Density 

30 Pounds per 30 Gallon Can 
202 Pounds per Cubic Yard 

The franchise collection route tonnage is allocated to each jurisdiction using the 
above percentages. This formula can be verified by can size and count, bin size 
and count using the weight factor above. Our routing software identifies the 
container size per jurisdiction and calculates the weight so that audits can be 
performed. 

47 



Exhibit E 

Rate/cont: Rate per container 

Rate w/FF: Rate with franchise fee 

Eel River Disposal- Rio Deli 

Definitions 

Monthly Rate w/ff: Monthly rate with franchise fee 

Rate Sheet 

ERD Haul Cost Avoidance: Savings from not hauling materials to Eureka 

Fortuna Host Fee: Amount paid to the city of Fortuna for "hosting the transfer station" 

Quarterly Reporting 

P1: 111 PET plastic containers 

P2: 112 HOPE plastic containers 

Gl: Giass containers 

Aiu: Aluminum cans 

TIN: Tin cans 

CB: Cardboard 

NP/MA: Newspaper and magazines 

P 3-7: 113-/17 plastic 

P BAGS: Plastic bags 

GARB: Garbage 

48 



CITY OF RIO DELL QUARTERLY REPORnNG 

Daleolrepor\: /()-O·I cr-
U,led below are lI1elolal pounds 0' recycling separoled by maletlallype and allo '001<0 (SSR Is Single 
Slream Recycling, CH I. CIIy HIli.) 

PI .: . P2 GL Alu nN CB NPIMA P3-7 , PBAGS 

JUlSSR 443.9 ' " 373.5 3598.1 197.6 1375.0 3960.~ 6020.2 9115.2 691.2 
JULCH 119.0 119.0 1_.0 ~9.o 721.0 1127.0 2380.0 280.0 175.0 

AUGSSR 801.4 ~51.1 3806.6 279.2 837.7 5176.7 5928.5 1288.6 986.6 
AUGCH 1~7.9 1~7.9 • 17~0.0 60.9 896.1 1~00_7 2956.0 348.0 217.5 

SEPSSR 660.2 " ~95.2 3961.4 306.5 919.8 6882.8 8508.1 1414.8 : -1081.1 
SEPCH 138.4 138.~ 1628.0 57.0 838.4 1310.5 2787.8 325.8 203.5 

TOTALS 2111 1725 15938 lao 5588 18656 26562 ~642 3315 
- - . . -- ,_ .- . 

GARB 

1955.1 
830.0 

2341.3 
783.0 

2570.2 
732.6 

IOU 
.. - . ,- - -.. -

PAYMENT FOR SINGLE STREAM RECYCLING (SSR) AT $ 10.00 PER TON . $ 323.30 

TOTAL TONNAGE OF WASTE GENERATED IN THE CITY LIMITS OF RID DELL 328.08 

aUARTERL Y SUMMARY OF COMBINED SOLIO WASTEIRECYCLING SUBSCRIBERS 662 

QUARTERLY SUMMARY OF RECYCLING ONLY SUBSCRIBERS 61 

~ -;tt, 

TOTAL 

19600 
7000 

21~8o 
6700 

23580 
61~0 

81600 
. . - - . -... _-- P. '· . __ _ .. 



May 27, 2015 

City of Rio Dell 
Mr. Kyle Knopp 
675 Wildwood Ave 
Rio Dell. CA, 95562 

EEL RIVER DISPOSAL & 
RESOURCE RECOVERY 

725-5156 

RE: Rate increase to be cm:cti\'c 7-1-15 

Dear Kyle: 

Please find enclosed new rate sheets relkcting our propllscd rate change based upon the 
CPI, this year the change is -.1 %. Ther.! was 3U incrc~;e in the disposal rate. last year 
the rate was $ 112.93 p<:r ton and this year it is $ 113.8il per ton. The rate chang.e should 
be effective July 1.2015. 

If you should have any questions I can be readll!d at ;25-5156. 

Sincerely. 

Karen Smith 
Ollice Manager 

P.O. 80)( 266 • Fortuna, CA 95540 • (707) 725-5156 

30 50 



07101115 

ERDFEES: 

ERD labor Cost 

lORD Operalion 

ERD Scale Maintenance 

lORD Haul Cosl Avoidance 

lORD Capital COSI 

lORD Return on Investmenl 

HWMAFEES 

Operalions 

Indirect Expenses 

Parro! 

Cap~al Expenditures 

Transportation 

Landfill 

Household Hazardous Waste Program 

County/Cily Recycling Programs 

Table Bluff Mainlenanu 

Counly local Enlorcement Agency (lEA) 

Cleanup Fees 

Cummings landfill MaIntenance. Monitoring 

County Rural Container Subsidy 

Admlnlstralion 

Olher Fees (Forluna Host ree all , t 5 per Ion) 

TOTAL 

RIO DELL 

0.,07 7S " of CPI 
54 3a 75" of CPI 
50 77 7S" of CPI 

-51071 7S "of CPI 
5588 FIXED FEE 
5669 7S" of CPI 

55457 

S17.21 

5629 

5493 

5094 

52,66 
5057 

54,67 

54,52 

51 91 

51.15 

5113.80 

31 51 



City of Ricl Dell , 13.80 Per Ton 
Disposal Rilla. Effective 7·1·15 

E)(. HI~IT ... 

Bag Service 1 Bag 
Regular 51 .92 

Monthly Ral. 
20·Gallon Can 1 Can 

1xWeekly 55.19 

Monlhly Rale 

32..(;allon Can 1 Can 2 Cans 3 Cans 4Cans 
lXWeekly $8.31 51661 $24.92 $3322 

2XWeetdy S16.61 53322 549.83 56644 

Monthly Rate 

Bins No Rental 1 Yard 1.5 Yard 2 Yard 3 Yard 4 Yard 6 Yard 8 Yard 
lxWe.tdy 552.43 $78.64 510~. 81i 51:7.28 5209.71 5314.57 5419.42 
2xWeekly $104.86 5157.28 520£'.7" 5314.57 5419.42 5629.13 5838.85 
3XWeekly 5157.28 $235.93 531~.5:' 5471.85 5629.13 5943.70 $1,258.27 

32 52 



City of Rio Dell Bold numbers 
Collect/·,n Rat. effective 7-1-15 

EXHIBITS -0.001 

Bag Service 1 Bag 
Regular 54.49 

$4.49 

Curbside Recyclin9 56.15 

$S.14 

Monthly Role 

20-Gal/on Can 1 Can 
1.Weekly 515.29 

$15.27 

Monthly Role 

32-Gallon Can 1 Can 2 Cans 3 Canr. <I Cans 
1xW.ekly $17.49 $24.50 53394 539.98 

2XWeekly 530.51 546.32 56523 577.33 

$17.47 $24.48 $33.91 $39.94 
$3D.48 $46.27 $65.16 $77.25 

Monthly Rots 

Bins No Rental 1 Yard 1.5 Yard Z Y.n d 3 'lard 4 Yard S Yard 8 Yard 
lxWeekly 529.50 54424 553.05 3;68.5'. 5116.05 $177.16 5236.77 
2.WeeIdy 552.65 587.91 $117.35 $175.93 $234.91 $351 .95 5469.30 
3XW •• kly 588.59 5131 .95 $175.93 $264.03 $351 .95 5527.88 5704.27 

$29.47 $44.20 $58.99 $88.50 $117.93 5176.98 523S.53 
$52.60 587.B2 $117.23 $175.75 5234.68 $351.S0 546B.B3 
58B.50 S131.B2 $175.75 $263.77 $351.60 $527.35 $703.57 

Bin Rental 1 Yard 1.5 Yard 2 Yard 3 Yard 4 Yard 6 Yard BYard 
S19.67 522.39 $25.17 $30.70 536.11 547.50 555.36 

$19.65 $22.37 $25.14 $30.67 $36.07 $47.45 $55.30 

33 53 



City ,of Rio Dell 
Cornbineci Rate To be effective 7·1·14 

EXHIBITC 

Bag Service 1 Bag 
Regular 56.40 

Curbside Recycling $6.14 

Monthly Rate 

20-GaJlon Can 1 Can 
1xWeekly 520.47 

Monthly Rate 
32-GaJlon Can 1 Can 2 Cans 3 Cans 4 Cans 

I.Weekly 525.78 541 .09 551l 82 5;'3.16 
2XWeekly 547.09 579.50 $115(0 $143.70 

Monthly Rat. 
Bins No Rental 1 Yard 1.5 Yard 2 "ard 3 Yard 4 Yard 6 Yard 8 Yard 

I.Weekly S81.90 5122.84 $153.85 5245.n 5327.6-1 5491 .55 5655.96 
2xWe.kly 5157.45 $245.11 $326.94 5·190.32 5654.10 5980.73 51.307,68 
3XWeekly 5245.78 5367.74 $430.31 S735.61 59BO.7:l 51,4;1 .05 $1.961.83 

Bin Rental 1 Yard 1.5 Yard 2 Yard 3 Yard 4 Yard 6 Yard 8 Yard 
S19.65 $22.37 525.14 $3').5:- 53607 S<;7.45 555.30 

34 54 



Bureau of Labor Statistics Data 

Home J Subjects I Data Toots J putntnll~ns I EC::II'lIlJP; F:ulea3 t::5 

Databases, Tables & Calculators by Subject 

Change Output Options: Fron 12!»5 vi TD" ~t:~: ($:I 

o include grap/15 0 \I>:ludt! ar.nual"'<8g;!S 

Data extracted on: May 21.2015 (6:17:12 pt.1) 

Consumer Price Ind. x • All Urban Consume", 

~Le. ld! ctPJ~JO JOS~~ 
Not sea.scnally A::j.a:ed 
Azaa: U.S. etti' 1 "' 'i:=cl~4 
It..: All it~;r.~ 

.... ~od: 19;2-9~·10 : 

Downloild: Gl!!ll 

12-Month Perant Change 
S-r~.. Id: CUU~OOOOSA~ 
tI::It Seasonally ,"\~j:J!J:ol:f 

A:M: U.!. city d-n=~l) \! 

It..: All ite-:'l$ 

aa.. Pariodl !9a2-5~·10J 

Down'oad, m!ll!! 

! E _!:?.I .. . ~i ':~~ _. -Ill . 
!J 1.5 , 2.t · 12 
J . .:- .- !:".C'· '· :t r. 33 

!t . 11 , . 13 . B 

~:;:;r.;.t.;:;;t-~~::--:o;,~~~~,,;:::+:,:,::."';~j ... :; l.!. t ) t , 

~~~~jj~~tt~t~~2~~~~~~.:::t ~ ~_(;:e- r ···ii-·-l r 

TOOLS 
Area~.11 a Glara 
IndustrIeS II <l Glilr.c:e: 

CALCULATORS 
: ... far, , 
1,.::;" '.0"1 O'..l~o(f1 

."- - " ' , - ~ • -:- - - p-, 
• __ .J _ • • _ . _ . _ • 

HEU' 
~ce': ~ ,t .. l,;.I ~ 

;'A.I;': 

http;lIdata.bls.gov/pdq/SurveyOulllutServlet 

5ewBlS.gov 

StudE-nts I 6!lta 

Page 1 of2 

Mor' FgnnatUng Options .. 

RESOURCES 
Ins;:e,:to ' G,n~rill lOIG\ 

E't..'d~et . n: Pcr'crmaro;. 

5/27.'::'01 ~ 35 55 



EXHIBITE 

SIZE TON RATE Rate/cont Mon'hly R;t~ Rate w/FF Monthly Rate wlff 

1#IGAL-202ll/yD 

20 Gallon 0.01 S 113.80 114 493 1.20 5.19 
32 Gallon 0016 S 113.80 182 7.83 1.92 8.31 
40 Gallon 0.02 S 113.80 226 9.305 2.40 10.38 
64 Gallon 0032 S 113.80 364 1573 383 16.61 
1 Cu Yd 0.101 S 11380 1149 49.31 12.10 5243 
1.5 Cu Yd 0.1515 S 113.80 1i 24 7471 18.15 78.64 
2CuYd 0.202 $ 113.80 22 99 9961 24.20 104.86 
3CuYd 0.303 5 113.80 3448 14942 36.30 157.28 
4CuYd 0.404 5 113.80 45.98 19923 48.39 209.71 
6CuYd 0.606 5 113.80 6896 29884 72.59 31457 
8CuYd 0808 S 113.80 9195 39845 96.79 41942 

36 56 



EXHIBIT f 
SEaVICE TO TBB Cl1Y 

RIO Dl!LL:FIIANCEISI! AGREEMENT 

CONntAC:rOJl sbalJ pnnide crnr wiIb sold Wf.5te collectian ofllP to twelw 
32-pl1ano:mspcrw=i;. 'JboarYJI'IB1i= I tilJmdiJl"cooe ..... pcryar.arYn*".tbozilbt 
kI CCIIIIrol1lle IccIIIoD I!IIdfiequeacr oEpiclc '" v;mDn ~ aba'/'O sI3Ied IimiIs. Locatj,." afbias ani to be 
,le'igl "" byCIIY~ limo to lime ia ~ CONTB'ACrORshIII aJso pmv.idt:~cIq Ie:'Iice 10 
CI'lY. 'DID list oFnpdejaIs 1bIt CXlNlltACIOlt is ~ed to picbIp jbr SllChm:yc1iDi coll=ticmsbal1 
oot ~ !bit cSiabljslw:d hi this Agreement, or 1I:l it is tim. ti= to time amended (See uc&m 
2.01.03.os inreprd to recycliug CI:'9lce.) 

Caz=t CmLOCllicZls: as oflll!llll!Y, 2Ql)1 

Polled a: ChyHall 
CQporatioD Yard 
Public Cas JDC3Ied IfIroasbroI to!r.D. 

CON'l'RACI'OR will aIIo provide &Cr\'I= "'* cby pfS"yearmr a c1e111l up evmt. Thace rem
;rill incIudD diIpoul biDS IIIId ~ biDS.1l=)"atiD; lIll1 iu:IDde meIals. ~ wdl!pard, a!Jd 
rpplillDCM CON'IR.ACTOR. wiIl}llOYido labcrto __ r.sidcuIs wih airmwtrrjaJ CGNTRAC'l'OR. 
willlIIIt be Jequi1ed to accept Iils, hmrdmIs ... m' .. llqukh, btmellold gIIbage, CGiliiiiClcIa1 water, or 
waste fi'OIIll'lJlOOe!ingpngecls.l'azticipnts w!ll be: tcqUlrI:d to ~ tblt1bJy 1I!tnsldea!s 'aftio 
Dell. The CIl'YrilpaymrctitprGl COIt3 oftbo dis;?oIcd material &om tbcewa, &ut1ril1DOtpsymr 
1IaIIspanIIfaD, orCON'IR./.crOR'.1abar. an" ami CCoNl'RACl'OR will waD: IDJdba' lD mnimi ... 
~ IIIIIl wjujlllite dispoal. CI'lY will be ~Ie for Cig "jzj "I IIIIIl pubIiI:izIDa.~ mD. 
Cl'IY will del!ormjn~!be date ibrthe ew:c:~ 

. , 

Page 16 of 16 



Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Avellue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcity.com 

November 17,2015 

TO: 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

t.:AlJfOftfIAA 

SUBJECT: 

Rio Dell City Council :t.: 
Discussion and Possible ion Approving Resolution 1279-2015 Amending and 
Restating Joint Powers Agreement of the Redwood Coast Energy Authority 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Approve Resolution 1279-2015 and authorize the Mayor to execute the Amended and Restated 
Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) of the Redwood Coast Energy Authority (RCEA) 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

RCEA was established to provide regional development and implementation of energy programs 
that reduce demand, increase efficiency and advance the use of renewable resources for the 
benefit of local residents, businesses and institutions. On May 6, 2003 the City Council 
authorized execution the RCEA IPA via Resolution No. 842-2003 and the City of Rio Dell has 
been a member ever since. Interest in development of a community choice aggregation (CCA) 
program in Humboldt County has arisen. In 2002, the state provided local communities with the 
opportunity to procure electric power for their residents through establishment of community 
choice aggregation programs under Assembly Bill (AB) 117. Unlike a traditional municipal 
utility in which the city or county owns all of the infrastructure to generate and distribute power 
and service customer needs, community choice aggregation programs utilize the existing wires 
and equipment of incumbent investor-owned utilities. In Rio Dell's case, this would be Pacific 
Gas and Electric Company (PG&E). The community choice aggregation program purchases 
power, which is then delivered, metered and billed by PG&E. A joint powers authority can 
function as a community choice aggregator. Based on interest from member agencies the RCEA 
Board has approved revisions to the JP A which will allow RCEA to implement a CCA program. 

The Amended and Restated JPA of the RCEA includes revisions as shown as attached. Briefly 
they are as follows: 

1. Updates the Recitals, reformats the JP A, and regroups provisions into subject matter 
"Articles". 

2. Acknowledges RCEA's authority as a community choice aggregator and provides the 
necessary powers to implement a CCA program. 

58 



3. Acknowledges that CCA program costs will be borne entirely by the CCA program 
revenue. 

4. Establishes CCA program participant guidelines, including a CCA program partial 
weighted voting protocol. There is no change to the voting structure for other RCEA 
matters. 

Upon approval of the Amended and Restated IP A any member agency will have the option to 
participate in the CCA program by adopting an ordinance indicating its election to participate. It 
is anticipated that once the amended JP A is approved, RCEA will prepare a template ordinance 
for member agencies to use to opt into the CCA program. The recommended action is to approve 
the Amended and Restated JPA of the RCEA and authorize the Mayor to execute the amended 
JP A. In accordance with the initial JP A, the Amended and Restated JP A will become effective at 
the time two thirds (2/3) of the member agencies approve the Agreement. 

There is no financial impact to the City of Rio Dell. Other agencies involved in this effort 
include the County of Humboldt, Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District and the cities of 
Trinidad, Fortuna, Ferndale, Eureka, Blue Lake and Arcata. 

Attachments: 

Resolution 1279-2015 
"Track Changes" IP A 
Attachment A: Complete Proposed JP A 
Community Choice Energy Roadmap 

II/ 

59 



RESOLUTION NO. 1279-2015 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO AN AMENDED AND RESTATED 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT REFERRED TO AS THE REDWOOD COAST 

ENERGY AUTHORITY 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rio Dell first authorized membership in the 
Redwood Coast Energy Authority Joint Powers Agreement on May 6, 2003 through Resolution 
No. 842-2003; and 

WHEREAS, the Energy Authority's original purpose was to create a sustainable structure for 
developing and implementing local energy efficiency programs that serve the residents, 
businesses and institutions of Humboldt County; and 

WHEREAS, interest has developed in Redwood Coast Energy Authority serving as a 
Community Choice Aggregator where the Authority or its designee would purchase power which 
is then metered and billed by the incumbent investor-owned utility; and 

WHEREAS, changes in the original Joint Powers Authority Agreement are necessary in order 
to facilitate the Redwood Coast Energy Authority becoming a Community Choice Aggregator. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Rio Dell hereby enters into an 
amended and restated joint powers agreement, herein attached as "Attachment An with the 
Redwood Coast Energy Authority, and authorizes the Mayor to sign the Joint Powers 
Agreement. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on November 17,2015 
by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the 
above to be a full , true and correct copy of Resolution No. 1279-2015 adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Rio Dell on November 17,2015. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

Resolution No. 1279-2015 1 of 1 

60 



This Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of the Redwood Coast Energv Authoritv is made and 
entered into pursuant to the provisions of California Government Code Section 6 -00 et seq .. and supersedes 
the ori ginal Joint Powers Al!Teement effective April 22, 2003, This Amended and Restated Joint Powers 
Agreement ("Agreement"l is effective as of , 20 . 

PttffiUaRl lB lhe laiRI E~jerl2ise erPawef5 As. flto!? Ael"'\ -f·he uRiJefSigneEi, all efwhieh Bre "uelie ft~eneies 
wifflffi Ike: tth!8hiRg eflhe }'tel, a£f~e'8 feRft ajeint fJ8WePJo ageney Ie he fca 6 wn 8S t:he Reel\\safl Geest 
Iffier~th".il)', 8~, sel refill belaw. 

RECITALS 

A. The Redwood Coast Energy Authority ("RCEA" or "Authority") was formed in 2003 by the County 
of Humboldt and the Cities of Arcata, Blue Lake, Eureka, Ferndale, Fortuna, Rio Dell. and Trinidad, and 
the special district of the Humboldt Bav Municipal Water District (each a "Member," collectivel y, the 
"Mcmbers"mu! CalifeFf\ in Pl:lblie Ytilit i ~s Cet-nmissian (UCI1UC") 8ReI tho! leesl Ge\'emmeRI 
GelHmissioR fllGCH

) , a CalifefHia RBAPfBrit tntll\befShi" Brgof1iauisR, RBve 10 undertakes a pilot project 
created and funded bv the California Public Utilit ies Commission ("CPUC"1 and the Local Government 
CommissionJ.:LGC"), a Califomia nonprofit membershi organization , designed to encourage the 
formation of regional organizations to promote energy efficiency, conservation and increased local self
reliance. The GPUC has made f~ftds ayailOOl<H<Hhe bGG la help laeal ga',emmeRt. eslaelisll ana apeRile 
sueA eR BFc 6fliZlllio" OR a pilat basis in lI ~mba"k .. Ge""I)', "nd lhe bGG has pra .. ia.<I .~p.Ft ad' i_e-!<) 
Fl~reseFlteli\'es KSR1 £lit! Cettnty eflhmleslelt aRe tk~ Cities efAfeala, QI1:Je bake, J;HFI!l£e, F-effl~8Ie, 
fefl1:ltt8 , Ria gell. aRB TPiaiaaEl, aha ll~e spee iaf aislFielafdu? IhuHeehlt Bay MHRieif'sl 'Vater QislFi el 
(eelleeti'"ely th< ·· I H l e ft!st~8 Ageneies") ta h~t" eftate $tiel! 81~ Bfg8Hii'!;8tieA. 

B. The IAI ~f'SI.~ AgeReit!5Throu2h its activities since fonnation . the RCE has G.si •• 10 established 
Humboldt County and its communities as leaders in reducing energy demand, increasing enerb'Y 
efficiency, and advancing the use of clean, efficient and renewable local resources to increase regional 
self-reliance, 

C. The RCEA 1111 •• ,,31.9 Members AgeRei.5 desire to further the RCEA £oals by implementing and 
administering a common Community Choice Ag!!I'eealion program pursuant to California Public Utilities 
Code Sections 331.1 and 366.2 an electric service enterorise which shall be available 10 those Member 
cilies and the Counties that elect to bc'Come program participants. feffll sjaiRI ~"'o\'1!fS ege"8)' 19 feeeiw 
ellli adR,i"i .... GPUG funds "ew 8 ' ailael. ref regioual e"ergy effiei"".), eCli " lies, 8AGIa dewle(Hl!e 
eSfJ8eility te stistain aeEl eSptlREI stieh aelivHies B'l"er rime 18 aeeefll,lish th< gBIlls suited aeave 

NOW THEREFORE, based on the mutual covenants, conditions and terms recited herein. which are 
made a material part of this agreement, the undersigned public agencies, collectively referred to herein as 
the "Members," enter into this Amended and Restated Joint Powers AL'Teement and agree as follows : 

AGREEMENT 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page I of 12 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

61 



ARTICLE \ - AljTIIORIT\' FORMATION 

.11 Formation or Humboldt County Regional Energy Alliance. Pursuant to the Act, the Members 
hereby create a joint powers agency to be known as the Redwood Coast Energy Authority ("RCEA") . 

.12 Separate Public Entitv. The RCEA is a public entity separate from the Members within the meaning 
of Govemment Code Section 6507 . 

.13 Parties to tbis Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, each Member intends to, and does, 
contract with every other Member which is a signatory to this Agreement and, in addition, with every 
public agency that becomes a Member under Section ~...J.. The withdrawal of any Member from this 
Agreement does not affect its validity or enforceability as to the remaining Members, nor any remaining 
Member's intent to contract with any of the others. 

1.4 Membership. In addition to the original forming Members. anv public agency as defi ned in 
Government Code Section 6500 which is located whollv or "artlv within the boundaries of Humboldt 
Countv or any adjacent county is eli gible for membership in the RCEA. Upon approval by a simple 
majority vote of the full Board. any such public agency ma Y become a Member if; 

fa) its ~ovcmin g bodv dul y approves membership and agrees to all of the tenns oftbi. Joint 
Powers AL'Teement. and 

(hl an authorized officer of such agency executes this Agreement on its behalf. 

ARTICLE 2 - PURPOSES AND POWERS 

42.1 Purpose. The purpose of the RCEA is to develop and implement sustainable energy initiatives that 
reduce energy demand, increase energy efficiency, and advance the use of clean, efficient and renewable 
resources available in the region for the benefit of the Member agencies and their constituents. To further 
that purpose, the RCEA will work toward the following goals; 

a. To lead, coordinate and integrate regional efforts that advance secure, sustainable, clean and 
affordable energy resources. 

b. To develop a long-term sustainable energy strategy and implementation plan. 

c. To increase awareness of, and enhance access to, energy conservation, energy efficiency, and 
renewable energy opportunities available to the region. 

d. To add value to, but not duplicate, energy services offered by utilities and others serving the 
region in a manner that docs not conflIct WIth acting as a communi tv choice a!!gregator. 

e. To keep key decision makers and stakeholders infonned of policy, regulatory, and market 
changes that are likely to impact the region. 

f. To support research, development, demonstration, innovation, and commercialization of 
sustainable energy technologies by public and private entities operating in Humboldt County. 

g. To develop regional capabilities to respond to energy emergencies and short-term disruptions 
in energy supply, infrastructure, or markets that could adversely affect Humboldt residents and 
businesses. 

S. ~hlHhersh i@. lfl 8dtlitiea ta the ePl:.i .. al t:eFfflitlg ~1efft8efS . 88:)' I'tiohe BorAey 85 ddhtetl iR GeVi'mMiRt 

CeEil S~etiElFt &590 'Nhieh is leeBt~d '1i"~81J)' 8r peF4l) '"i.ftIR .he eatfoRtJaries ef Uumbeldl Ce12:"f)' 8r eny 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 2 of 12 
JOI:-lT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

62 



aejeeest eetuuy is eligible' ~f memhcrship in the RG{;.A •. Ullea a~flrE.t\'t11 by 8 S:'A~file majePit)' 'Ia"! efthe 
ftill Ba ,us, 8ft)' sl::l:ea JHlblie agE:'Aey FRey oeeam@ 8 }'fen~eer if: 

iC5 geVeFRiAg bad)' Ehtly 8fJpFaViS ffielllbers1=tip8Rd agFC'e05 ee allef.he h!ffilS af.his JaiAt Jlawer5 
AgreeffteAe, aMi 

an 81:1~haFilea. eilieer efstteh ageHey e.'ieeUI2S tRis Agfei!AleRt 8n its beR8t~. 

(02.2 Powers. The RCEA is authorized, in its own name, to do all acts necessary to fulfill the purposes of 
this Agreement including, without limitation, each of the following: 

a. receive grants, contributions and donations of property, funds, services and other forms of 
assistance from any public or private source; 

b. make and enter into contracts; 

c. incur debts, liabilities and obligations; provided, that no debt, liability or obligation of the 
RCEA is a debt, liability or obligation of any Member except as separately agreed to by such 
Member; 

d. acquire, hold, construct, manage, maintain, sell or otherwise dispose of real and personal 
property by appropriate means, excepting therefrom the acquisition of real property through 
the exercise of eminent domain; 

e. sue and be sued in its own name; 

f. employ agents and employees; 

g. lease real or personal property as lessee and as lessor; 

h. receive, collect, invest and disburse moneys; 

L issue revenue bonds or other forms of indebtedness, as provided by law; 

j. adopt ordinances: 

k. adopt. im plement, manage and tcnninate a Community Chotcc Aggregation program in 
accordance "ith Public Ut ilities Code Section 366.2, et seq C'CCA Pro!!ram·'). 

I. submit documentation aod noticL'S. register. and com['lly with orders. tariffs and agreements for 
the establishment and implementation orthe CC A Program and other ener!!V programs: 

~m, make and enter into service agreements relating to the provision of services necessary to 
plan. implement. o!?Crate and administer the CCA Program and other enemY prOk'11lms. 
including the acquisition of electric power supply and the provision of retail and regulatory 
supnol1: services 

,t,!Lassign, delegate or contract with a Member or third party to administer or execute this 
Agreement or to perform any of the functions of the Board, as permitted by law; and 

Ji,o. exercise all other powers necessary and proper to carry out the provisions of this Agreement. 

These powers shall be exercised subject only to the limitations set forth in this Agreement, any bylaws, 
applicable law (including local zoning, building, or other ordinances or regulations arising from the 
jurisdiction in which the RCEA is engaged in any specific activity), and any restrictions upon the manner 
of exercising such powers imposed by law upon the County of Humboldt in the exercise of similar 
powers. 

ARTICLE 3 - INTERNAL GOVEIU,ANCE 

+3.1 Board of Directors. There is hereby created a Board of Directors ("Board"), which shall serve as 
the governing body of the RCEA, and shall exercise or oversee the exercise of all powers and authority on 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 3 of 12 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

63 



behalf of the RCEA as sel forth herein. Each Member shall designate one person as a member of Ihe 
Board ("Director") and one person as an alternale member of the Board ("Alternate Direclor"). The 
Alternate Director may serve and vote in place of the appointing Member's Director who is absent or who 
disqualifies himlherself from participating in a meeting of the Board. Directors and Alternates shall serve 
at the pleasure of the appointing Member and may be removed at any time, without cause, at the sole 
discretion of that Member. They shall not be compensated for their service, hut may be reimhursed for 
expenses reasonably incurred in the performance of their Board functions, and appropriately documenled. 
Each Director and Alternale Direclor may be an elected official of the governing body of the Member that 
he or she represents or a non-elected representative. Each Director and Alternate Director shall serve on 
the Board from the firs t meeting of the Board after appointment by the Member, until his or her successor 
is selected by that Member. 

8J..1 Procedural and Operational Rules. The Board may adopt bylaws or resolutions to govern its 
meelings and operations, or may separalely adopt a statement of operating policies, provided that such 
bylaws, resolutions or statements are consistent \vith this Agreement. 

9J..l Principal Office. The principal office of the RCEA shall be established by the Board. The Board 
may change the location of the principal office upon giving at least 15 days written notice to each 
Member. 

-WJ..J. Ouorum and Voting. A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 
business. The Board shall act by motion, resolution or ordinance. Except as otherwise expressly provided 
by this Agreement or applicable law, all motions, resolutions and ordinances of the Board, and all actions 
required or permitted to be taken by the Members acting through the Board, shall be by a majority vote of 
the quorum. 

HJ..:! Board Chair and Vice Chair. 

a. The Board shall appoint a Chair and a Vice-Chair. 

(I) The Chair shall be the chairperson of the Board and shall conduct all Board meetings and 
perform such other duties and functions required of such person by this Agreement or the 
Board. 

(2) The Vice-Chair shall serve in the Chair's absence and perform such duties as required by 
this Agreement, the Board, or the Chair. 

(3) Only Members of the Board are eligible to hold the positions of Chair and Vice-Chair. 

(4) The term of office for the Chair and Vice-Chair shall be one year, commencing on January 
I of each year (excepting the initial year). The initial Chair and Vice- Chair shall be 
entitled to serve one fullterm of office in addition to any partial initial term. 

b. If a vacancy occurs in the position of Chair or Vice-Chair, the Board shall forthwith fill the 
vacancy for the duration of the unexpired term. 

-H,J..~ Treasurer and Auditor. The Board shall designate qualified persons (as described in Government 
Code §6505.5 and §6505.6) to serve as Treasurer and as Auditor of the RCEA who need not be Members, 
and may designate a single qualified person to hold both offices. The Treasurer shail have charge of 
depositing and maintaining custody of all funds held by the RCEA, and shall maintain strict 
accountability for all funds and reports of all receipts and disbursements. In addition, the Treasurer and 
the Auditor shall perform all other duties that may be imposed by applicable law (including Government 
Code Sections 6505 and 6505.5), this Agreement, or any rules of the Board. The compensation, if any, of 
the person or persons holding these offices shall be set by the Board. Alternatively, upon consent as 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 4 of 12 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT, AMENDED AND RESTATED 

64 



needed of the governing body of any Member entity, the Board may designate the Treasurer of such 
Member as the depository of RCEA funds, and responsible for the discharge of all the duties set forth in 
Government Code section 6505.5, including the function of auditor, and the maintenance of strict 
accountability of RCEA funds. 

YJ..2 Other Officers and Employees. The Board may designate such other officers, and may hire 
employees or independent contractors as appropriate and necessary to conduct the RCEA's affairs. 

-14J..1 Meetings ofthe Board. The Board shall establish in the bylaws or by resolution the dates, times 
and places of its regular meetings, which shall be held not less than four times during each calendar year 
during the term of this Agreement. The Board's meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the 
Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Sections 54950 el seq.). 

~J..!i Committees. The Board may create an advisory committee composed of public and private 
stakeholders such as but not limited to residential and non-residential energy users, local governments, 
educational institutions, environmental organizations, and the private sector. The Board may also create 
an executive committee consisting of the managers of the Member entities, and may create any such other 
committee as it deems appropriate. 

MJ..2 Appointment of Administering Entitv. Pursuant to Government Code Section 6506, the Board 
may appoint an agency or entity, including one or more Members upon consent of the governing body of 
such Member, a commission or board constituted pursuant to this Agreement, or a person, firm or 
corporation, including a nonprofit corporation, which it may designate, to administer or execute this 
Agreement. or any portions of this Agreemenl. 

HJ. . .!!! Budget. The RCEA shall operate on a fiscal year commencing July I of each year. The Board 
shall adopt by majority vote of the full Board an annual budget for each fiscal year at or before its last 
regular meeting before June 30 of each year. All costs incurred by the RCEA that are d,rectly or indirectly 
attributable to the prO\;slon o f electric, conservation. efficiency. iocentives, financin g. or other services 
provided under the CCA Program. including but not limited to the establishment and maintenance of 
variow; reserves and performance fu nds and administrative, accounting, legal. consulting. and other 
similar cost. , shall be recovered through charges to CCA customers receivin g such electric services. or 
from re,cnues from grants or other third-party sources. 

ARTI C LE 4 - COMMU:>iITY C HOIC E AGGREGATION 

4.1 Enabling Ordinances. 

(a) RCEA. The RCEA is hereby authorized to adopt an ordinance to implement the CCA Program in 
accordance with Public Utilities Code Section 366.2(c)( 12l. or successor provision. 

(bl Member Participants. Each Member choosing to participate ID the CCA Program shall adopt an 
ordinance in accordance with Public Utilities Code Section 366.2(c)( 12l! Bl. or successor provis ion. 
for the pUmose of s[)Ccifving that the Member intends to implement a CCA PrOl'\1lm bv and 
through its participation in the RCEA. Each Member having dul y adopted a CCA participation 
ordinance shall herein be referred to as a "CCA Participant". 

Icl Effect. The CCA Participants intend for this Agreement to be used as a contractual mechanism bv 
which the CCA Participants are authorized to participate in the CCA Program. The CCA 
Participants intend that other agreements shall defi ne the terms and conditions associated with the 
implementation of the CCA Program. 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 5 of 12 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

65 



4.2 Implementation Plan. The Authoritv shall cause to be prepared an ImplementatIOn Plan meetm2 
the requirements of Public Utilities Code Section 300.2 and anv apnlicable Public Utilities Commjssion 
re~ulations as soon as reasonablv practicable. The Implementation Plan shall not be tiled with the Public 
Utilities Commission until it i< approved b y the Board in the manner provided by Section 4.4. 

4.3 Termination of CCA I'rogram. Nothm£ contamed in this Anicle or this A!!Tec~nent shall be 
construed to limit the discretion of the RCEA to tennina!e the implementation or oocration of the CCA 
Program at an v time in accordance with any aprlicable. resuirements of state law 

4 .4 Board Vot ing Related to the CCA Program. 

ta) EligIbility to Vote. Onl y Directors from Panlc1paun~ Members shall be eli gible to vote on 
matters speci fi callv related to the CCA Prob'fam. 

(b) Panlcipatin. Member Vote. For purnoses of the C.CA Promm. each Panicipating Member shall 
have a total \ot~comprised one third ofa fixed Pro Rata Voting Share based on the total number 
of Panicipatin g Members. and two thirds of the proponional~s!Ji!.re of Electric Customers in the 
Pan ici pating Memher"s jurisdiction 

l<>X c) Computation. The Panicipatin g Member Vote shall be computed based on the 
following fonnulas: 

i. Pro Rala !'ofill l! Share. Each Director shall have an eyual votin~ share dctennined by the 
followine fonnula: (( Iltotal number of Directors I multi plied by 113); and 

iI. CllS/OIIl£.'1 Ba"e , 'otim! ShU'-t '. Fach D1rcctor shall havt: an addItional 'Olin!.! share 
detennined by the followin g [onnula: ((Number of Electric Customers in Dicc'Ctors 
jurisdictionrrotal Number of Electric Customers in CCAl multiplied b y 2131. "here 
"Electric Customers" mean' the total number of electricity cu<tomer accounts for all rate 
schedules as of December 31. 

iiI. Total ")te. The lotal \ote for each PanlclPating Member shall be the sum of II, Pro Rata 
Voting Share plus its Customer Base Votin g Share rounded to the ncar.>sl whole number, 
excepting that an v sum L'fCat<." than zero and less than 1.0 shall be rounded to 1.0. The 
initial Pro Rata Voting Shares, Customer Ba<e Voting Shares, and total votes arc set fonh 
in Exhibit A, attach .. -d hereto and incorporated herein . Beginning in 2017 , the Board's 
Executive Director shall update Exhibit A at least every two years no later than March I 
to reflect changes in the numbeLof Electric Customers and Panicipating Members. and 
such update shall not constitute an amendment to this Agreement. Anv updated Exhibit A 
shall be prO\;ded to the Board at the recular meetin g immediately followin g the update. 
and to the executi>e officers of the PanlCipatmg Members within 30 days after the 
update. 

4.5 Q uorum, App roval Req uirements Related to CCA Program. A mal0ritv of the Panici!latin ~ 

Members must be present and a ma jority of the CCA total VOle must be represented by the present 
Panicipating Memben; to establish a quorum for the transaction of business on any matter specifically 
related to the CCA Pro!!Tam. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement. the action of the Board for 
an ." matter specificallv rela ted to the CCA Prob'fam shall require the affinnative vote of a majority of the 
Panicipating Members present at the meetin g where such vote is taken . The affi nnative vote shall be 
established by adding the total votes of the present Panici patin g Members as set out in Section 4.4. above. 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 6 of 12 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

66 



ARTICLE 5 - MIS ELLANEOUS PROVISION 

.f.8~.L Audit. The accounts and records of the RCEA shall be audited as provided in Government Code 
Sections 6505 and 6505.5. 

t9~.L Limitation on Liabilitv of Members for Debts and Obligations of RCEA. As provided for by 
Government Code section 6508.1, the debts,liabilities, and obligations of the RCEA do not constitute 
debts, liabilities, or obligations of any party to this Agreement. A Member may separately contract for, or 
assume responsibility for, specific debts, liabilities, or obligations of the RCEA. 

;w~.;l Indemnltv. The RCEA shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Members, their officers and 
employees, from and against all liability, loss, damage, expense, and costs (including without limitation 
costs and fees of litigation), collectively referred to as 'injury', of every nature arising out of the RCEA 
activities described herein, or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained herein, except 
where such injury is caused by the sole negligence or ,villful misconduct of a Member. Any defense of 
claims, as well as the cost of any judgments imposed for claims resulting from actions by the RCEA or any 
of the officers, agents, employees, or contractors of the RCEA in relation to this Agreement shall be the sale 
responsibility of the RCEA. To the extent that Members are also held jointly and severally liable for such 
amounts by Government Code section 895.2, if a Member provides for such defense of itself or the RCEA, 
or pays all or a part of such judgment, the member shall be entitled to reimbursement in full from the 
RCEA, provided the Member obtains prior approval from the RCEA. 

U5A Insurance. The RCEA will obtain at its expense, and maintain during the term of this Agreement, 
insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to property or the environment which may arise 
from RCEA operations, with the scopes, coverages, deductibles and other provisions described below. 

a. Minimum Scope 

(I) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage ("occurrence" form 
CG 0001). 

(2) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and 
Employer's Liability Insurance. 

(3) Property insurance against all risks of loss to RCEA property, as determined by law 
or by the RCEA. 

b. Minimum Coverage 

(I) General Liability: $ 5,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and 
property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or another form with a 
general aggregate limit is used, the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required 
occurrence limit. 

(2) Employer's Liability: $ 1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

(3) Property Insurance: Full replacement cost with no coinsurance penalty provision. 

(4) Workers' Compensation: Workers' Compensation to statutory limits covering all 
employees, paid or unpaid. 

(5) Errors and omissions insurance to cover any and all instances of misfeasance andlor 
nonfeasance in the scope of duties. 

c. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 7 of 12 
JOINT POIVERS AGREEMENT, AMENDED AND RESTATED 

67 



Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Members. 

d. Other Insurance Provisions. 

The general liability policy is to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

(1) The Members, their officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, are to be covered as 
insured with respect to liability arising out of RCEA operations. 

(2) The RCEA's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Members, their 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained 
by the Members, their officers, officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the 
RCEA's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

(3) Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall 
not be canceled, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return 
receipt requested, has been given to the Members. 

Workers' Compensation Insurance Endorsement: 

The workers' compensation policy shall be endorsed to contain a waiver of subrogation clause 
which states the following: "This insurance company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation 
against the Members, their officers, officials, employees and volunteers for losses paid under the 
terms of this policy, which arise from RCEA operation by the named insured for the Members." 

Acceptability of Insurers: 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. 

n2..2. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument, approved by an 
affirmative vote of the governing bodies of two thirds (2/3) of the Members, and meeting any requirements 
imposed by the terms or conditions of any revenue bonds issued by the RCEA and related documentation 
including, without limitation, indentures, trust agreements, resolutions and letter of credit agreements. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no amendment shall require any Member to contribute any funds to, or 
become directly or contingently liable for any debts, liabilities or obligations of, the RCEA, without that 
Member's written consent, signed by its duly authorized representative. 

;g2..~ Withdrawal. Members may withdraw at any time by providing written notice from the governing 
body of such Member to the Board; provided, that no Member may withdraw if withdrawal would 
adversely affect a bond or other indebtedness issued by the RCEA, except upon a two-thirds (2/3) vote of 
the full Board. Withdrawal shall be effective upon receipt by the Board of said notice or upon said vote of 
the Board if required. The withdrawing Member shall continue to be financially responsible for its share of 
financial obligations and liabilities incurred prior to the effective date of withdrawal. Upon such 
withdrawal, no withdrawing Member shall be entitled to any distribution or withdrawal of property or funds 
except as may be agreed to by the Board; however such Member may be entitled to participate in a pro
rated return of surplus money and other surplus personal property upon the dissolution of the RCEA based 
on factors as determined by the Board such as but not limited to the Member's length of time of 
participation with and contribution to the RCEA. 

:U2..1 Termination and Distribution. 

a. This Agreement continues until terminated by the written consent of a simple majority of the 
full Board; provided that: 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 8 of 12 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT, AMENDED AND RESTATED 

68 



(I) this Agreement cannot be tenninated until such time as all principal of and interest on 
any bonds and other fonns of indebtedness that the RCEA may issue are paid in full; 
and 

(2) this Agreement and the RCEA continue to exist following tennination for the purpose 
of disposing of all claims, distributing assets, and all other functions necessary to 
conclude the obligations and affairs of the RCEA. 

b. After completion orthe RCEA's purposes, any surplus money on deposit in any fund or account 
orthe RCEA will be disposed of as required by law. The Board is vested with all powers of the 
RCEA for the purpose of concluding and dissolving its business affairs. 

~~.8 Nuclear Free CertiOcation. The RCEA and its Members certifY by the authorized signatures 
below that the RCEA is not a nuclear weapons contractor, and not knowingly or intentionally engaged in 
the research, development, production or testing of nuclear warheads, nuclear weapons systems or nuclear 
weapons components as defined by the Nuclear Free Humboldt County Ordinance. The RCEA shall 
notifY Humboldt County immediately if it becomes a nuclear weapons contractor, or engages in any of 
the activities listed above. In such event, or ifit detennines that the foregoing certification is false, and 
notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the County may immediately terminate its 
participation and withdraw from this Agreement. 

U~.~ Notices. All notices which any Member or the RCEA may wish to give in connection with this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be served by personal delivery during usual business hours at the 
principal office of the Member or the RCEA, to an officer or person apparently in charge of that office, or 
by depositing the same in the United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to the Member or the 
RCEA at its principal office, or to such other address as the RCEA or Member may designate from time 
to time by written notice given to the other Members in the manner specified in this section. Service of 
notice shall be deemed complete on the day of service by personal delivery (but 24 hours after such 
delivery in the case of notices of special meetings of the Board) or three (3) days after mailing if 
deposited in the United States mail. Until changed by written notice to the RCEA and the Members, 
notice shall be delivered as follows: 

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT: County Administrative Officer 
825 Fifth Street 
Eureka, CA 95501 

CITY OF ARCATA: Arcata City Manager 
736 F Street 
Arcata, CA 95521 

CITY OF BLUE LAKE: Blue Lake City Manager 
I I I Greenwood 
Blue Lake, CA 9552 I 

CITY OF EUREKA: Eureka City Manager 
531 K Street 
Eureka, CA 9550 I 

I CITY OF FERNDALE: Ferndale ~ity Manager 
P.O. Box 1095 
Ferndale, CA 95536 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 9 of 12 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

69 



CITY OF FORTUNA: Fortuna City Manager 
621 11 th Street 
Fortuna, CA 95540 

CITY OF RIO DELL: Rio Dell City Manager 
675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 

I CITY OF TRINIDAD: Trinidad ~IIV Manag.r 
P.O. Box 390 
Trinidad, CA 95570 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT: General Manager 
828 7"' Street 
Post Office Box 95 
Eureka, CA 95502 

H~ . .!Q Prohibition Against Assignment. No Member may assign any right, claim, or interest it may 
have under this Agreement. No creditor, assignee or third party beneficiary of a Member has a right, 
elaim or title to any part, share, interest, fund or asset of the RCEA. However, nothing in this Agreement 
prevents the RCEA from assigning any interest or right it may have under the Agreement to a third party. 

2,Ili.!! Severability. If a portion, term, condition or provision of this Agreement is determined by a court 
to be illegal or in conflict \vith any law of the State of California, or is otherwise rendered unenforceable 
or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining portions, terms, conditions and provisions is not affected. 

~~. 12 Liabilitv of RCEA. Subject to limitations contained in any trust agreement or other documents 
pursuant to which financing of the RCEA is implemented, RCEA funds may be used to defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless the RCEA, any Member, any Director or Alternate Director, and any 
employee or officer of the RCEA for their actions taken within the scope of their duties while acting on 
behalf of the RCEA. 

;;Qi.g Arbitration. All disputes arising in connection with the interpretation or performance of this 
Agreement shall be resolved on an equitable basis by a single arbitrator under the commercial arbitration 
rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding on the 
RCEA, all Members and all former Members involved or affected by the dispute. The RCEA, any 
Member and any former Member that is party to the dispute may enforce any award, order or judgment of 
the arbitrator in any court of competent jurisdiction. 

M~. 14 Waiver. Neither a waiver of any breach nor any failure to enforce any provision of this 
Agreement shall operate as a waiver of any other breach of such provision or any other provision. 

~~. 15 Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of California. 

~~.!1! Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which is an 
original and all of which constitutes but one and the same instrument. 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page lOofl2 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

70 



64~.17 Effective Date.)n accordance with the Amendment provisions of Section 22 of the initial Joint 
Powers Agreement (renumbered Section 5.5 herein), this Restated and Amended Joint Powers Agreement 
shall become effective at the time two thirds (2/3) of the Members have approved this Amended and 
Restated Joint Powers Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Members of the Redwood Coast Energy Authority have approved this 
Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement and execute this Agreement as of the dates written 
below. 

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGES 
(Exhibit A follows signatures) 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

Page 11 of 12 

71 



DRAFT PENDING FINAL DETERMINA TlON OF MEMBER AGENCY PARTICIPA TlON 

Exhibit A 
Redwood Coast Energy Authority 

Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement 

Board Voting Shares for Community Choice Aggregation Business 

Percentage of 

total accounts Customer Pro Rata 
Electric (jurisdiction's Base Voting Voting Share 

customer accounts Share (33x T atar VDt~S, 
accounts divided by (67 x ratio of (l/number of prior to TOTAL 

Jurisdiction (Dec 2014) total accounts) accounts) Directors]) rounding VOTES 

City_of Arcata 8,203 12.41% 8.31 4.125 12.44 12 

City of Blue Lake 664 1.00% 0.67 4.125 4.80 5 

City of Eureka 13,965 21.13% 14.16 4.125 18.29 18 

City of Ferndale 939 1.42% 0.95 4.12S 5.08 5 

City of Fortuna 5,584 8.45% 5.66 4.125 9.79 10 

City of Rio Dell 1,508 2.28% 1.53 4.125 6.06 6 

City of Trinidad 272 0.41% 0.27 4.125 4.40 4 

County of Humboldt 
(unincorporated) 34,950 52.88% 35.44 4.125 39.57 40 

Total 66,085 99.99% 66.99 33 100.03 100 

• Due to rounding, totals will differ at various stages of the calculation process. 

o The percentages of t otal accounts are rounded to two decimal places prior to calculating the Customer Base 

Voting Share. 

o Customer Base Voting Share = 67 multiplied by the % of total accounts, rounded to two decimal places. 

o Total votes are the sum of the Pro Rata Voting Share and the Customer Base Voting Share, rounded to the 

nearest whole number. 

o The allototion of voting shares will be updated every two years, and as-needed to adjust for changes in the 

make-up of jurisdictions part icipating in the CCA. 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 12 of 12 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT, AMENDED AND RESTATED 

72 



Attachment A 

73 



AMENDED AND RESTATED 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT OF THE 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY 

This Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of the Redwood Coast Energy Authority is made and 
entered into pursuant to the provisions of California Government Code Section 6500 et seq., and supersedes 
the original Joint Powers Agreement effective April 22, 2003 . This Amended and Restated Joint Powers 
Agreement ("Agreemenl") is effective as of , 20_. 

RECITALS 

A. The Redwood Coast Energy Authority ("RCEA" or "Aulhority") was formed in 2003 by the County 
of Humboldt and the Cities of Arcata, Blue Lake, Eureka, Ferndale, Fortuna, Rio Dell, and Trinidad, and 
the special district of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (each a "Member," collectively, the 
"Members")to undertake a pilot project created and funded by the Californ ia Public Utilities Commission 
(" CPUe') and the Local Governmenl Commission ("LGC"), a California nonprofit membership 
organization, designed to encourage the formation of regional organizations to promote energy efficiency, 
conservation and increased local self-reliance. 

B. Through its activities since format ion, the RCEA has established Humboldt County and its 
communities as leaders in reducing energy demand, increasing energy efficiency, and advancing the use 
of clean, efficient and renewable local resources to increase regional self-reliance. 

C. The RCEA Members desire to further the RCEA goals by implementing and administering a common 
Community Choice Aggregation program pursuant to California Public Utilities Code Sections 331.1 and 
366.2 an electric service enterprise which shall be available to those Member cities and the Counties that 
elect to become program participants. 

NOW THEREFORE, based on the mutual covenants, conditions and terms recited herein, which are 
made a material part of this agreement, the undersigned public agencies, collectively referred to herein as 
the "Members," enter into this Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement and agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

ARTICLE 1- AUTHORITY FORMATION 

1.1 Formation or Humboldt County Regional Energy Alliance. Pursuant to the Act, the Members 
hereby create ajoint powers agency to be known as the Redwood Coast Energy Authority ("RCEA"). 

1.2 Separate Public Entitv. The RCEA is a public entity separate from the Members within the meaning 
of Government Code Section 6507. 

1.3 Parties to this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, each Member intends to, and does, 
contract with every other Member which is a signatory to this Agreement and, in addition, with every 
public agency that becomes a Member under Section 4.1. The withdrawal of any Member from this 
Agreement does not affect its validity or enforceability as to the remaining Members, nor any remaining 
Member's intent to contract with any of the others. 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page I of 13 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

74 



1.4 Membership. In addition to the original forming Members, any public agency as defined in 
Government Code Section 6500 which is located wholly or partly within the boundaries of Humboldt 
County or any adjacent county is eligible for membership in the RCEA. Upon approval by a simple 
majority vote of the full Board, any such public agency may become a Member if: 

(a) its governing body duly approves membership and agrees to all of the terms of this Joint 
Powers Agreement, and 

(b) an authorized officer of such agency executes this Agreement on its behalf. 

ARTICLE 2 - PURPOSES AND POWERS 

2.1 Purpose. The purpose of the RCEA is to develop and implement sustainable energy initiatives that 
reduce energy demand, increase energy efficiency, and advance the use of clean, efficient and renewable 
resources available in the region for the benefit of the Member agencies and their constituents. To further 
that purpose, the RCEA will work toward the following goals: 

a. To lead, coordinate and integrate regional efforts that advance secure, sustainable, clean and 
affordable energy resources. 

b. To develop a long-term sustainable energy strategy and implementation plan. 

c. To increase awareness of, and enhance access to, energy conservation, energy efficiency, and 
renewable energy opportunities available to the region. 

d. To add value to, but not duplicate, energy services offered by utilities and others serving the 
region in a manner that does not conflict with acting as a community choice aggregator. 

e. To keep key decision makers and stakeholders informed of policy, regulatory, and market 
changes that are likely to impact the region. 

f. To support research, development, demonstration, innovation, and commercialization of 
sustainable energy technologies by public and private entities operating in Humboldt County. 

g. To develop regional capabilities to respond to energy emergencies and short-term disruptions 
in energy supply, infrastructure, or markets that could adversely affect Humboldt residents and 
businesses . 

2.2 Powers. The RCEA is authorized, in its own name, to do all acts necessary to fulfill the purposes of 
this Agreement including, without limitation, each of the following: 

a. receive grants, contributions and donations of property, funds, services and other forms of 
assistance from any public or private source; 

b. make and enter into contracts; 

c. incur debts, liabilities and obligations; provided, that no debt, liability or obligation of the 
RCEA is a debt, liability or obligation of any Member except as separately agreed to by such 
Member; 

d. acquire, hold, construct, manage, maintain, sell or otherwise dispose of real and personal 
property by appropriate means, excepting therefrom the acquisition of real property through 
the exercise of eminent domain; 

e. sue and be sued in its own name; 

f. employ agents and employees; 

g. lease real or personal property as lessee and as lessor; 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 2 of 13 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

75 



h. receive, collect, invest and disburse moneys; 

I . issue revenue bonds or other forms of indebtedness, as provided by law; 

j. adopt ordinances; 

k. adopt, implement, manage and terminate a Community Choice Aggregation program in 
accordance with Public Utilities Code Section 366.2, et seq ("CCA Program"); services 

I. assign, delegate or contract with a Member or third party to administer or execute this 
Agreement or to perform any of the functions of the Board, as permitted by law; and 

m. exercise all other powers necessary and proper to carry out the provisions of this Agreement. 

These powers shall be exercised subject only to the limitations set forth in this Agreement, any bylaws, 
applicable law (including local zoning, building, or other ordinances or regulations arising from the 
jurisdiction in which the RCEA is engaged in any specific activity), and any restrictions upon the manner 
of exercising such powers imposed by law upon the County of Humboldt in the exercise of similar 
powers. 

ARTICLE 3 - INTERNAL GOVERNANCE 

3.1 Board of Directors. There is hereby created a Board of Directors ("Board"), which shall serve as the 
governing body of the RCEA, and shall exercise or oversee the exercise of all powers and authority on 
behalf of the RCEA as set forth herein. Each Member shall designate one person as a member of the 
Board ("Direclor") and one person as an alternate member of the Board ("Alternate Director"). The 
Alternate Director may serve and vote in place of the appointing Member's Director who is absent or who 
disqualifies himlherselffrom participating in a meeting of the Board. Directors and Alternates shall serve 
at the pleasure of the appointing Member and may be removed at any time, without cause, at the sole 
discretion of that Member. They shall not be compensated for their service, but may be reimbursed for 
expenses reasonably incurred in the performance of their Board functions, and appropriately documented. 
Each Director and Alternate Director may be an elected official of the governing body of the Member that 
he or she represents or a non-elected representative. Each Director and Alternate Director shall serve on 
the Board from the first meeting of the Board after appointment by the Member, until his or her successor 
is selected by that Member. 

3.2 Procedural and Operational Rules. The Board may adopt bylaws or resolutions to govern its 
meetings and operations, or may separately adopt a statement of operating policies, provided that such 
bylaws, resolutions or statements are consistent with this Agreement. 

3.3 Principal Office. The principal office of the RCEA shan be established by the Board. The Board 
may change the location of the principal office upon giving at least 15 days written notice to each 
Member. 

3.4 Ouorum and Voting. A majority oflhe Board shan constitute a quorum for the transaction of 
business. The Board shall act by motion, resolution or ordinance. Except as otherwise expressly provided 
by this Agreement or applicable law, all motions, resolutions and ordinances of the Board, and all actions 
required or permitted to be taken by the Members acting through the Board, shall be by a majority vote of 
the quorum. 

3.5 Board Chair and Vice Chair. 

a. The Board shan appoint a Chair and a Vice-Chair. 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 3 of 13 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

76 



(I) The Chair shall be the chairperson of the Board and shall conduct all Board meetings and 
perform such other duties and functions required of such person by this Agreement or the 
Board. 

(2) The Vice-Chair shall serve in the Chair's absence and perform such duties as required by 
this Agreement, the Board, or the Chair. 

(3) Only Members of the Board are eligible to hold the positions of Chair and Vice-Chair. 

(4) The term of office for the Chair and Vice-Chair shall be one year, commencing on January 
I of each year (excepting the initial year). The initial Chair and Vice- Chair shall be 
entitled to serve one full term of office in addition to any partial initial term. 

b. If a vacancy occurs in the position of Chair or Vice-Chair, the Board shall forthwith fill the 
vacancy for the duration of the unexpired term. 

3.6 Treasurer and Auditor. The Board shall designate qualified persons (as described in Government 
Code §6505.5 and §6505.6) to serve as Treasurer and as Auditor of the RCEA who need not be Members, 
and may designate a single qualified person to hold both offices. The Treasurer shall have charge of 
depositing and maintaining custody of all funds held by the RCEA, and shall maintain strict 
accountability for all funds and reports of all receipts and disbursements. In addition, the Treasurer and 
the Auditor shall perform all other duties that may be imposed by applicable law (including Government 
Code Sections 6505 and 6505.5), this Agreement, or any rules ofthe Board. The compensation, if any, of 
the person or persons holding these offices shall be set by the Board. Alternatively, upon consent as 
needed of the governing body of any Member entity, the Board may designate the Treasurer of such 
Member as the depository of RCEA funds, and responsible for the discharge of all the duties set forth in 
Government Code section 6505.5, including the function of auditor, and the maintenance of strict 
accountability of RCEA funds. 

3.7 Other Officers and Emplovees. The Board may designate such other officers, and may hire 
employees or independent contractors as appropriate and necessary to conduct the RCEA's affairs. 

3.8 Meetings of the Board. The Board shall establish in the bylaws or by resolution the dates, times and 
places of its regular meetings, which shall be held not less than four times during each calendar year 
during the term of this Agreement. The Board's meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the 
Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Sections 54950 et seq.). 

3.9 Committees. The Board may create an advisory committee composed of public and private 
stakeholders such as but not limited to residential and non-residential energy users, local governments, 
educational institutions, environmental organizations, and the private sector. The Board may also create 
an executive committee consisting of the managers of the Member entities, and may create any such other 
committee as it deems appropriate. 

3.10 Appointment of Administering Entitv. Pursuant to Government Code Section 6506, the Board 
may appoint an agency or entity, including one or more Members upon consent of the governing body of 
such Member, a commission or board constituted pursuant to this Agreement, or a person, firm or 
corporation, including a nonprofit corporation, which it may designate, to administer or execute this 
Agreement, or any portions of this Agreement. 

3.11 Budget. The RCEA shall operate on a fiscal year commencing July I of each year. The Board shall 
adopt by majority vote of the full Board an annual budget for each fiscal year at or before its last regular 
meeting before June 30 of each year. All costs incurred by the RCEA that are directly or indirectly 
attributable to the provision of electric, conservation, efficiency, incentives, financing, or other services 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 4 of 13 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT, AMENDED AND RESTATED 

77 



provided under the CCA Program, including but not limited to the establishment and maintenance of 
various reserves and performance funds and administrative, accounting, legal, consulting, and other 
similar costs, shall be recovered through charges to CCA customers receiving such electric services, or 
from revenues from grants or other third-party sources. 

ARTICLE 4 - COMMUNITY CHOICE AGGREGATION 

4.1 Enabling Ordinances. 

(a) RCEA. The RCEA is hereby authorized to adopt an ordinance to implement the CCA Program in 
accordance with Public Utilities Code Section 366.2(c)( 12), or successor provision. 

(b) Member Participants. Each Member choosing to participate in the CCA Program shall adopt an 
ordinance in accordance with Public Utilities Code Section 366.2( cJ( 12)(B), or successor provision, 
for the purpose of specifying that the Member intends to implement a CCA Program by and 
through its participation in the RCEA. Each Member having duly adopted a CCA participation 
ordinance shall herein be referred to as a "CCA Participant". 

(c) Effect. The CCA Participants intend for this Agreement to be used as a contractual mechanism by 
which the CCA Participants are authorized to participate in the CCA Program. The CCA 
Participants intend that other agreements shall define the terms and conditions associated with the 
implementation of the CCA Program. 

4.2 Implementation Plan. The Authority shall cause to be prepared an Implementation Plan meeting 
the requirements of Public Utilit ies Code Section 366.2 and any appl icable Public Utilities Commission 
regulations as soon as reasonably practicable. The Implementation Plan shall not be tiled with the Public 
Utilities Commission until it is approved by the Board in the manner provided by Section 4.4. 

4.3 Termination of CCA Program. Nothing contained in this Article or this Agreement shall 
be construed to limit the discretion of the RCEA to terminate the implementation or operation of 
the CCA Program at any time in accordance with any applicable requirements of state law 

4.4 Board Voting Related to the CCA Program. 

(a) Eligibility to Vote. Only Directors from Participating Members shall be eligible to vote 
on matters specifically related to the CCA Program. 

(b) Participating Member Vote. For purposes of the CCA Program, each Participating 
Member shall have a total vote comprised one third of a fixed Pro Rata Voting Share 
based on the total number of Participating Members, and two thirds of the proportional 
share of Electric Customers in the Participating Member's jurisdiction. 

(c) Computation. The Participating Member Vote shall be computed based on the following 
formulas : 

1. Pro Rata Voting Share. Each Director shall have an equal voting share 
determined by the following formula: ([ Iltotal number of Directors 1 mUltiplied by 
113); and 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 5 of 13 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT, AMENDED AND REST A TED 

78 



11. Customer Base Voting Share. Each Director shall have an additional voting share 
determined by the following formula: ([Number of Electric Customers in 
Director'sjurisdictionrrotal Number of Electric Customers in CCA] multiplied 
by 213), where "Electric Customers" means the total number of electricity 
customer accounts for all rate schedules as of December 31. 

iii. Total Vote. The total vote for each Participating Member shall be the sum of its 
Pro Rata Voting Share plus its Customer Base Voting Share rounded to the 
nearest whole number, excepting that any sum greater than zero and less than 1.0 
shall be rounded to 1.0. The initial Pro Rata Voting Shares, Customer Base 
Voting Shares, and total votes are set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein. Beginning in 2017, the Board's Executive Director shall 
update Exhibit A at least every two years no later than March I to reflect changes 
in the number of Electric Customers and Participating Members, and such update 
shall not constitute an amendment to this Agreement. Any updated Exhibit A 
shall be provided to the Board at the regular meeting immediately following the 
update, and to the executive officers of the Participating Members within 30 days 
after the update. 

4.5 Quorum. Approval Requirements Related to CCA Program. A majority of the 
Participating Members must be present and a majority of the CCA total vote must be represented 
by the present Participating Members to establish a quorum for the transaction of business on 
any matter specifically related to the CCA Program. Except as otherwise provided in this 
Agreement, the action of the Board for any matter specifically related to the CCA Program shall 
require the affirmative vote of a majority of the Participating Members present at the meeting 
where such vote is taken. The affirmative vote shall be established by adding the total votes of 
the present Participating Members as set out in Section 4.4, above. 

ARTICLE 5 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

5.1 Audit. The accounts and records of the RCEA shall be audited as provided in Government Code 
Sections 6505 and 6505.5. 

5.2 Limitation on Liabilitv of Members for Debts and Obligations of RCEA. As provided for by 
Government Code section 6508.1, the debts, liabilities, and obligations of the RCEA do not constitute 
debts, liabilities, or obligations of any party to this Agreement. A Member may separately contract for, or 
assume responsibility for, specific debts, liabilities, or obligations of the RCEA. 

5.3 Indemnitv. The RCEA shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Members, their officers and 
employees, from and against all liability, loss, damage, expense, and costs (including without limitation 
costs and fees of litigation), collectively referred to as 'injury', of every nature arising out of the RCEA 
activities described herein, or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained herein, except 
where such injury is caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of a Member. Any defense of 
claims, as well as the cost of any judgments imposed for claims resulting from actions by the RCEA or any 
of the officers, agents, employees, or contractors of the RCEA in relation to this Agreement shall be the sole 
responsibility of the RCEA. To the extent that Members are also held jointly and severally liable for such 
amounts by Government Code section 895.2, if a Member provides for such defense of itself or the RCEA, 
or pays all or a part of such judgment, the member shall be entitled to reimbursement in full from the 
RCEA, provided the Member obtains prior approval from the RCEA. 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 6 of 13 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

79 



5.4 Insurance. The RCEA will obtain at its expense, and maintain during the term of this Agreement, 
insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to property or the environment which may arise 
from RCEA operations, with the scopes, coverages, deductibles and other provisions described below. 

a. Minimum Scope 

(I) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage ("occurrence" form 
CG 0001). 

(2) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and 
Employer's Liability Insurance. 

(3) Property insurance against all risks of loss to RCEA property, as determined by law 
or by the RCEA. 

b. Minimum Coverage 

(I) General Liability: $ 5,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal inj ury and 
property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or another form with a 
general aggregate limit is used, the general aggregate limit shall be t\vice the required 
occurrence limit. 

(2) Employer's Liability: $ 1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

(3) Property Insurance: Full replacement cost with no coinsurance penalty provision. 

(4) Workers' Compensation: Workers' Compensation to statutory limits covering all 
employees, paid or unpaid. 

(5) Errors and omissions insurance to cover any and all instances of misfeasance andlor 
nonfeasance in the scope of duties. 

c. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Members. 

d. Other Insurance Provisions. 

The general liability policy is to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

(I) The Members, their officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, are to be covered as 
insured with respect to liability arising out of RCEA operations. 

(2) The RCEA's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Members, their 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained 
by the Members, their officers, officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the 
RCEA's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

(3) Each insurance policy required by this clause sball be endorsed to state that coverage shall 
not be canceled, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return 
receipt requested, has been given to the Members. 

Workers' Compensation Insurance Endorsement: 

The workers' compensation policy shall be endorsed to contain a waiver of subrogation clause 
which states the following: "This insurance company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation 
against the Members, their officers, officials, employees and volunteers for losses paid under the 
terms of this policY, which arise from RCEA operation by the named insured for the Members." 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 7 of \3 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

80 



Acceptability of Insurers: 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII. 

5.5 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument, approved by an 
affinnative vote of the governing bodies of two thirds (2/3) of the Members, and meeting any requirements 
imposed by the tenns or conditions of any revenue bonds issued by the RCEA and related documentation 
including, without limitation, indentures, trust agreements, resolutions and letter of credit agreements. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no amendment shall require any Member to contribute any funds to, or 
become directly or contingently liable for any debts, liabilities or obligations of, the RCEA, without that 
Member's written consent, signed by its duly authorized representative. 

5.6 Withdrawal. Members may withdraw at any time by providing written notice from the governing body 
of such Member to the Board; provided, that no Member may withdraw if withdrawal would adversely 
affect a bond or other indebtedness issued by the RCEA, except upon a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the full 
Board. Withdrawal shall be effective upon receipt by the Board of said notice or upon said vote of the 
Board if required. The withdrawing Member shall continue to be financially responsible for its share of 
financial obligations and liabilities incurred prior to the effective date of withdrawal. Upon such 
withdrawal, no withdrawing Member shall be entitled to any distribution or withdrawal of property or funds 
except as may be agreed to by the Board; however such Member may be entitled to participate in a pro
rated return of surplus money and other surplus personal property upon the dissolution of the RCEA based 
on factors as detennined by the Board such as but not limited to the Member's length of time of 
participation with and contribution to the RCEA. 

5.7 Termination and Distribution. 

a. This Agreement continues until tenninated by the written consent of a simple majority of the 
full Board; provided that: 

(I) this Agreement cannot be tenninated until such time as all principal of and interest on 
any bonds and other fonns of indebtedness that the RCEA may issue are paid in full; 
and 

(2) this Agreement and the RCEA continue to exist following tennination for the purpose 
of disposing of all claims, distributing assets, and all other functions necessary to 
conclude the obligations and affairs of the RCEA. 

b. After completion of the RCEA's purposes, any surplus money on deposit in any fund or account 
of the RCEA will be disposed of as required by law. The Board is vested with all powers of the 
RCEA for the purpose of concluding and dissolving its business affairs. 

5.8 Nuclear Free Certification. The RCEA and its Members certify by the authorized signatures below 
that the RCEA is not a nuclear weapons contractor, and not knowingly or intentionally engaged in the 
research, development, production or testing of nuclear warheads, nuclear weapons systems or nuclear 
weapons components as defined by the Nuclear Free Humboldt County Ordinance. The RCEA shall 
notify Humboldt County immediately ifit becomes a nuclear weapons contractor, or engages in any of 
the activities listed above. In such event, or if it detennines that the foregoing certification is false, and 
notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the County may immediately terminate its 
participation and withdraw from this Agreement. 

5.9 Notices. All notices which any Member or the RCEA may wish to give in connection with this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be served by personal delivery during usual business hours at the 
principal office of the Member or the RCEA, to an officer or person apparently in charge of that office, or 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 8 of \3 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

81 



by depositing the same in the United States mail, poslage prepaid, and addressed 10 the Member or Ihe 
RCEA al ils principal office, or 10 such olher address as Ihe RCEA or Member may designate from time 
10 time by written notice given 10 Ihe other Members in the manner specified in this section. Service of 
notice shall be deemed complete on the day of service by personal delivery (but 24 hours after such 
delivery in the case of notices of special meetings of the Board) or three (3) days after mailing if 
deposited in the United States mail. Until changed by written notice to the RCEA and the Members, 
notice shall be delivered as follows: 

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT: County Administrative Officer 
825 Fifth Sireet 
Eureka, CA 95501 

CITY OF ARCATA: Arcata City Manager 
736 F Street 
Arcata, CA 95521 

CITY OF BLUE LAKE: Blue Lake City Manager 
III Greenwood 
Blue Lake, CA 95521 

CITY OF EUREKA: Eureka City Manager 
531 K Street 
Eureka, CA 9550 I 

CITY OF FERNDALE: Ferndale City Manager 
P.O. Box 1095 
Ferndale, CA 95536 

CITY OF FORTUNA: Fortuna City Manager 
62 I I I th Street 
Fortuna, CA 95540 

CITY OF RIO DELL: Rio Dell City Manager 
675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 

CITY OF TRINIDAD: Trinidad City Manager 
P.O. Box 390 
Trinidad, CA 95570 

HUMBOLDT BA Y MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT: General Manager 
828 7"' Street 
Post Office Box 95 
Eureka, CA 95502 

S.10 Prohibition Against Assignment. No Member may assign any right, claim, or interest it may have 
under this Agreement. No creditor, assignee or third party beneficiary of a Member has a right, claim or 
title to any part, share, interest, fund or asset of the RCEA. However, nothing in this Agreement prevents 
the RCEA from assigning any interest or right it may have under the Agreement to a third party. 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY Page 9 of 13 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

82 



5.11 Severabilitv. If a portion, tenn, condition or provision of this Agreement is detennined by a court to 
be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of California, or is otherwise rendered unenforceable or 
ineffectual, the validity of the remaining portions, terms, conditions and provisions is not affected. 

5.12 Liabilitv or RCEA. Subject to limitations contained in any trust agreement or other documents 
pursuant to which financing of the RCEA is implemented, RCEA funds may be used to defend, 
indemnify, and hold hannless the RCEA, any Member, any Director or Alternate Director, and any 
employee or officer of the RCEA for their actions taken within the scope of their duties while acting on 
behalf of the RCEA. 

5.13 Arbitration. All disputes arising in connection with the interpretation or perfonnance orthis 
Agreement shall be resolved on an equitable basis by a single arbitrator under the commercial arbitration 
rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding on the 
RCEA, all Members and all fanner Members involved or affected by the dispute. The RCEA, any 
Member and any fonner Member that is party to the dispute may enforce any award, order or judgment of 
the arbitrator in any court of competent jurisdiction. 

5.14 Waiver. Neither a waiver of any breach nor any failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement 
shall operate as a waiver of any other breach of such provision or any other provision. 

5.15 Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California. 

5.16 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which is an 
original and all of which constitutes but one and the same instrument. 

5.17 Effective Date. In accordance ,vith the Amendment provisions of Section 22 of the initial Joint 
Powers Agreement (renumbered Section 5.5 herein), this Restated and Amended Joint Powers Agreement 
shall become effective at the time two thirds (2/3) orthe Members have approved this Amended and 
Restated Joint Powers Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Members of the Redwood Coast Energy Authority have approved this 
Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement and execute this Agreement as of the dates written 
below. 

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGES 
(Exhibit A follows signatures) 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

Page 10 of 13 

83 



COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT 

By: _________ _ 

________ , Chair of the Board 

Approved as to fonn: 

By: 
J-ef::::fery--;:S,-. :::BC:-la-n""'ck'-,-=H-:-u-m-=b-o-=-ldC:-t-=C=-o-u-nt-y--:::Counsel 

CITY OF ARCATA 

By: ___________________ _ 

________ " Mayor 

Approved as to fonn: 

By: ~~~ __ ~=-~ ______ __ 
Nancy Diamond, City Attorney 

CITY OF BLUE LAKE 

By: _________ _ 

________ , Mayor 

Approved as to fonn: 

By: ~--;~-7-::~~---
Nancy Diamond, City Attorney 

CITY OF EUREKA 

By: ___________________ __ 

________ , Mayor 

Approved as to fonn: 

By. ~~~~~~=-~ ____ __ 
Cyndy Day-Wilson, City Attorney 

CITY OF FERNDALE 

By: _________ _ 

________ , Mayor 

Approved as to fonn: 

By: _________ _ 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

Dated: __________ _ 

Dated: ______ _ 

Dated: __________ _ 

Dated: ______ _ 

Dated: ______ _ 

Page II of 13 

84 



Russell S. GaDs, City Attorney 

CITY OF FORTUNA 
By: _________ _ 

________ , Mayor 

Approved as to fonn: 

By: 
D=-a-V1:-' dC:T:Cr-a-;Dbec-rg- ,-;C::-:i:-ty-A=-t:-to-rn- e-y---

CITY OF RIO DELL 

By: __________ _ 

________ , Mayor 

Approved as to fonn: 

By: __ ~~~~~~---
Russell S. GaDs, City Attorney 

CITY OF TRINIDAD 

By: _________ _ 

________ " Mayor 

Approved as to fonn: 

By: ~_~~~=-~ ___ _ 
Andrew Stunich, City Attorney 

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

By: _________ _ 

________ , President 

Approved as to fonn: 

By:.~~~:--~_~~_~_ 
Paul A. Brisso, General Counsel 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORITY 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. AMENDED AND RESTATED 

Dated: ______ _ 

Dated: ______ _ 

Dated: ______ _ 

Dated: _____ _ 

Page 12 of 13 

85 



DRAFT PENDING FINAL DETERMINA TlON OF MEMBER AGENCY PARTICIPA TlON 

Exhibit A 
Redwood Coast Energy Authority 

Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement 

Board Voting Shares for Community Choice Aggregation Business 

Percentage of 
total accaunts Customer Pro Rata 

Electric (jurisdiction's Base Voting Voting Share 
customer accounts Share (33 x Total votes, 
accounts divided by (67 x ratio of [l/number of prior to TOTAL 

Jurisdiction (Dec 2014) totai accounts) accounts) Directors)) rounding VOTES 

City of Arcata 8,203 12.41% 8.31 4.125 12.44 12 

City of Blue lake 664 1.00% 0.67 4.125 4.80 S 

City of Eureka 13,965 21.13% 14.l6 4.125 18.29 18 

City of Ferndale 939 1.42% 0.95 4.125 5.08 5 

City of Fortuna 5,584 8.45% 5.66 4.125 9.79 10 

City of Rio Dell 1,508 2.28% 1.53 4.125 6.06 6 

City of Trinidad 272 0.41% 0.27 4.125 4.40 4 
County of Humboldt 
(unincorporated) 34,950 52.88% 35.44 4.125 39.57 40 

Total 66,085 99.99% 66.99 33 100.03 100 

o Due to rounding, totals will differ at various stages of the calculation process. 

o The percentages of total accounts are rounded to two decimal places prior to calculating the Customer Base 

Voting Share. 

o Customer Base Voting Share = 67 multiplied by the % of total accounts, rounded to two decimal places. 

o Total votes are the sum of the Pro Rata Voting Share and the Customer Base Voting Share, rounded to the 

nearest whole number. 

o The allocation of voting shares will be updated every two years, and as-needed to adjust for changes in the 

make-up of jurisdictions participating in the CCA. 

REDWOOD COAST ENERGY AUTHORiTY Page \3 of 13 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT, AMENDED AND RESTATED 

86 



HUMBOLDT COUNTY 

Community Choice Energy 
ROAD MAP 

Introdudion 
BACKGROUND 
The Redwood Coast Energy Authority (RCEA) is a local government joint 
powers agency of the County of Humboldt, the Cities of Arcata, Blue 
Lake, Eureka, Ferndale, Fortuna, Rio Dell, Trinidad and the Humboldt 
Bay Municipal Water District. Fonned in 2003, RCEA's mission is to 
develop and implement sustainable energy initiatives that reduce energy 
demand, increase energy efficiency, and advance the use of clean, 
efficient and renewable resources available in the region. RCEA offers a 
range of energy related services to Humboldt County local governments, 
businesses, and residents in the community. 

In 2012 RCEA adopted the Humboldt County Comprehensive Action Plan 
for Energy (CAPE), which is RCEA primary guiding document. 
Expanding on the strategies outlined in the CAPE, RCEA initiated 
RePower Humboldt, a community-wide effort to define a vision and 
Strategic Plan for achieving energy independence and energy security in 
Humboldt County. With the support of the Humboldt State University 
Schatz Energy Research Center, the CA Energy CommiSSion, and many 
community stakeholders, this effort culminated in the development of the 
RePower Humboldt Strategic Plan to establish a vision for the year 2030 
and guide the integration of renewable energy in Humboldt County, 
develop local energy infrastructure, and set energy-related goals. 

Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
Community Choice Energy Roadmap 1 

87 



2 

RCEA has Identified community choice aggregation as potentially a 
critical mechanism to enable the Implementation of the RePower 
Humboldt Strategic Plan and to realize the RePower Humboldt 2030 
vision and the associated community benefrts of that vision. To that end, 
RCEA's board has directed staff to move forward with pursuing the 
implementation of a local community choice program. 

WHAT IS A COMMUNITY CHOICE PROGRAM? 

Community choice aggregation (CCA), also known as community choice 
energy, is a provision of Ca~fornia law that allows cities, counties or jOint 
powers agencies to purchase electricity and other necessary electrical 
services on behalf of the customers in their territories. CCAs differ from 
municipal utility districts in that CCAs only provide the generation 
component of electricity services, which accounts for around half of a 
customer's electricity bill. The investor-owned utility (IOU), in our case 
Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E), continues to own the electricity distribution 
infrastructure and to provide electricity transmission, distribution, billing, 
and related customer services. However, CCAs are able to determine 
their own energy supply mixes and rate structures. 

How Local Energy Aggregation Works 

.... ~ ••• L~F'" 

source 

V 
CCA 

buying ilnd buildli19 
",Icctricity supply 

delivery 

V 
UTILITY 

d~llverll1g energy, 
maintaining lines. 
bl:l;'19 c\I<;tomers 

(U5, orner 

V 
YO 

benefitting frol11 
affordablE' ralPS, 

10c.1l control, 
cleaner eneryy 

While CCA is relatively new in California, with three programs currenlly 
providing service to customers, there are over 1,000 CCAs operating across 
the county in Illinois, Ohio, New Jersey, Rohde Island, and Massachusetts. 

Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
Community Choice Energy Roadmap 

88 



WHY IS IT WORTH DOING? 

Local Control: A CCA program allows Humboldt County to pursue our own 
priorities, such as local generation and programs to support economic 
development, and provides local control of rate-setting. Unlike IOUs, local 
govemments are accountable to their citizens through locally elected officials 
whose tenures depend on serving the public good and supporting the 
interests of their communities. When compared with an IOU, the decision 
making process of a local authority will be more transparent and accessible 
to the public, and can better reflect the interests and desires of the 
community. Conversely, IOUs are required to serve the interests of their 
investors and are subject the regulatory constraints imposed by the CA 
Public Utilities Commission (CPUC). 

Rates: A key motivating factor for the 1,000+ CCAs in operation has been 
the opportunity to reduce rates for electricity customers; like municipal 
utilities, CCAs have been able to provide rates sometime as much as 20-30% 
lower that investor-owned utilities. The established Califomia CCAs have 
focused on prioritizing environmental performance, but have still managed to 
achieve rates 2-7% below PG&E while providing significantly higher 
percentages of renewable energy. 

Choice: When a City or County chooses to offer a CCA program to its 
community, each individual household and business still has the option to opt 
out of the program and continue to have their generation services provided 
by PG&E. State law requires that customers receive multiple notices of CCA 
program launch to ensure they are aware of the option to opt out, and 
customers can also opt out after the launch anytime in the future. While no 
customer is forced to participate, opt-out rates are typically very low (under 
10% in Sonoma County), which is not surprising when customers' utility costs 
are lowered by participating in the CCA . 

Priorities 
RCEA will implement the Humboldt County CCA program guided by three 
core priorities established by the RCEA Board of Directors and aligned 
with the RePower Humboldt StrategiC Plan: maximizing the use of local 
renewable resource, providing competitive rates, and supporting local 
economic development. 

COMPETITIVE RATES 

A key factor in success will be our CCA's ability to achieve rate 
competitiveness with PG&E while pursuing other eeA program goals. To 
minimize customer opt-outs, the eeA must provide overall rates that are 
competitive with or lower than those offered by PG&E for similar power 
supply products. 

Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
Community Choice Energy Roadmap 3 

89 



4 

Maintaining relative rate parity while also providing a high share of local 
renewable energy will be challenging. Natural gas prices are currently 
very low, reducing the cost of non-renewable energy. In the long run, 
factors such as renewable technology costs, expiration of federal 
renewable tax credits, natural gas prices, and greenhouse gas 
compliance costs will influence the ability to maintain rate parity. While 
these factors cannot be predicted with great confidence, one possible 
future benefit for a CCA would be a potentially Significant financial 
advantage to the extent that it invests in its own generation resources, 
particularly if and when renewable tax credits for private developers 
expire. Prior to launch RCEA is exploring a variety of supply portfolios 
using different cost assumptions for the above factors to determine the 
likelihood of maintaining rate parity while offering a larger share of 
renewable energy. 

LOCAL RENEWABLE ENERGY 

The CCA program will pursue an energy portfolio that prioritizes the use of 
local renewable resources, including existing facilities, to the maximum 
extent technically and economically feasible. 

The State has aggressive goals for renewable energy, implemented 
through the State's Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) which sets 
targets for quantities and types of renewable energy that electriCity 
providers must supply to their customers. These targets are 25% 
renewable energy by 2016,33% by 2020, and 50% by 2030. The CCA 
program will strive to use local renewable resources to exceed these 
targets. 

EXisting local renewable energy generation facilities that the CCA could 
potentially pursue contracts with are listed in the table below along with 
generation information as reported by the Califomia Energy Commission. 

Facility Nameplate 2013 net output 
Capacity (MW) (MWh) 

Average community-wide energy consumption in Humboldt County is around 
850,000 MWh per year. So, assuming 10% customer opt-out, these existing 
facilities could potentially supply around 40% of the CCA's energy demand. 
However, the power from local facilities is not low-cost, and so a key first step 
in the procurement planning process will be a detailed and thorough 
evaluation to determine to what extent the CCA's portfolio can incorporate 
local renewables and still maintain competitive rates. 

Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
Community Choice Energy Roadmap 

90 



The CCA will also offer customer programs that offer residents and 
businesses options to more directly engage in the development and use 
of local renewable energy; 

100% renewable. opt-In choice: Customers will be offered a 100% 
renewable energy option at a price premium, based on the costs of a 
100% renewable supply. 

Net energy metering tariff: Net energy metering allows customers to make 
their meter ·spin backward" and offset their electrical usage by installing a 
generating system (e.g. rooftop solar). 

Feed-in-tariff program: A Feed-In Tariff is a renewable energy purchasing 
program which sets simple and straightforward rules and pricing for 
purchasing surplus electricity from small-scale renewable electricity projects 
within the CCA's service territory. 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

The CCA will strive to create quantifiable economic benefrts in the region 
through job retention and creation and the investment of any surplus 
funds to develop local renewable energy projects and community energy 
programs that benefit customers. 

The CCA will promote regional energy conservation through custom 
programs targeted at local customers and implementing demand 
management best practices. The CCA will also explore the development 
of energy rates and incentives that can support community business 
retention and expansion. 

Of immediate and significant relevance to the tocal economy is the critical 
role of local biomass power plants in the forest-products sector. Biomass 
from sustainably managed forests is a renewable resource that can be 
used to generate base-load electriCity, reducing the need for electricity on 
California's grid produced from fossil resources. In addition, biomass use 
in electricity generation contributes to lowering greenhouse emissions by 
disposing of wood residuals (sawdust, wood chips) generated from milling 
logs into lumber in a controlled combustion environment eliminating 
methane. particulate matter and other harmful emissions associated with 
altemative fates such as open pile burning or landfills. 

Further, markets for woody materials generated from wildfire risk 
reduction treatments created by biomass power generation increase the 
likelihood that fire on the landscape can fulfill its ecological role in 
California's forests by allowing land managers to conduct fire risk 
reduction treatments on larger areas. 

Two of our three local biomass plants are currently idle due to the 
wholesale purchase prices offered by utilities being too low for our plants 
to viability operate. This is the result of both the currently-low price of 

Redwood Coast Energy AuthOrity 
Community Choice Energy Roadmap 5 

91 



6 

natural gas as well as the rapidly-decreasing cost of other renewable 
technologies like solar. While the low cost of other renewable resources 
available to utilities is an excellent development overall, the local impact of 
our biomass power plants shutting down has a significant negative impact 
on the entire forest products industry in the County in the form of increased 
costs of sawmill residue removal and increaSing levels of logging residues 
left in the woods to pile burn or be burned in the next wildfire. 

Yana Valachovic, University of California Cooperative Extension Forest 
Advisor and Humboldt - Del Norte County Director, describes the current 
situation this way: "Without a market to purchase sawmill residue or 
residue from fuel reduction or forest health activHies, sawmills are 
scrambling, investors are looking elsewhere, and many forest 
stewardship activities have been stopped. This creates a significant 
economic and ecological crisis in this region." 

The availability of local biomass facilities to utilize wood waste is the 
Achilles' heel of our forest-products sector, with possibly hundreds of local 
living-wage jobs currently threatened by the uncertain fate of our local power 
plants. The local control of power purchasing decisions provided by the 
CCA program will provide a key opportunHy to potentially solve this problem. 
Unfortunately this urgent issue has already reached a cmical point in 2014, 
providing an impetus for swift action to establish the CCA. determine the 
feasibility and parameters of incorporating biomass energy into the CCA's 
portfolio, and proceed with contracting if that is deemed viable. 

OTHER KEY PRINCIPLES 

in addition to the core priorities above, the CCA will be implemented with 
the following guiding principles: 

Operational Excellence: The CCA will operate as a well-managed 
organization based on a finanCially sustainable and flexible business 
model. This will include a commitment to robust planning and risk 
management strategies, conservative fiscal management, and the 
development of a reserve fund. 

Environmental Performance: In addition to the percentage of renewable 
energy delivered, the CCA program will pursue an energy portfolio that 
also reduces greenhouse gas emissions and other pollution while 
minimizing the use of unbundled renewable energy credits (RECs), as 
well as minimizing environmental and community impacts overall. 

Accountability and Transparency: As a local govemment program the eCA 
will be accountable to citizens through locally elected officials who will serve 
the public good and supporting the interests of their communities. Customer 
will have access to democratically elected or appOinted representatives 
and CCA governance decisions will be made in local. public meetings in a 
transparent way and will strive to reflect the best interests of the community. 

Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
Community Choice Energy Roadmap 

92 



Launch & Operations 
The launch and operations of the CCA program can be categorized into 
three primary categories of activities: governance, community outreach 
and engagement, and operations. 

GOVERNANCE 
Joint Power Agreement: Established in 2003, RCEA's Joint powers 
agreement (JPA) provides an existing foundation to move forward with a 
community-wide CCA program for Humboldt County. The RCEA Board 
has established its interest in becoming a community choice aggregator 
and implementing a local CCA program on behalf of those member Cities 
and the County that choose to become CCA participants. In order to 
become a community choice aggregator the RCEA JPA required revision. 
Pursuant to the current JPA, amendments are permissible if in writing and 
approved by at least 2/3 of the RECA member agencies. 

In September 2014 RCEA's Board approved CCA-enabling revisions to 
the JPA; the nature of these changes include: 

1. Any RCEA member City or the County may elect to participate in 
the CCA program by adopting an ordinance indicating its election 
to participate (staff intends to prepare a template ordinance for 
member agency use). 

2. As specified in the current JPA, the RCEA's debt, liabilities and 
obligations do not become debts, liabilities or obligations of the 
member agencies. 

3. A partially weighted voting structure based on each partiCipating 
member's proportion of total electricity customers. 

4. RCEA member agencies that are not CCA program participants 
would continue to vote on all RCEA matters except those 
pertaining to the CCA program. Only member agencies that 
become CCA program participants will vote on CCA program 
matters. 

The RCEA Board chose to adopt a 213 vote weighting systems to provide 
more representative decision making while still ensuring that a diversity of 
community perspectives are included. Weighting based on the share of 
electricity customers was selected to capture representation of both 
residential and commercial CCA customers, while not tying the weighting 
to higher consumption as other CCA have done. It should be noted that 
there Is not currently a substantive difference regardless of whether the 
weighting was based on population, electricity customers, or total energy 
load as shown in the following table. 

Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
Community Choice Energy Roadmap 7 

93 



8 

The amended and reinstated JPA is currently in the review and approval 
process with RCEA's Members. 

CCA Ordinance: Established by State law, the process for becoming a 
CCA requires that each local government governing body adopt an 
ordinance proclaiming their decision to participate in the CCA through 
RCEA, after which RCEA must then file an Implementation Plan with the 
CPUC. RCEA is preparing an ordinance template for Member 
governments that chose to participate in the CCA. 

It should be reiterated that a jurisdiction choosing to be a part of the CCA 
is making the option of participation available to that community, but 
individual customers can choose initially or at a later time whether or not 
they want to participate. 

Implementation Plan: The CPUC, which ultimately has to approve the 
program, requires that the CCA submit an implementation plan that 
covers all aspects of the set-up and operation. The plan will include the 
following: 

• Process and consequences of aggregation 
• Organizational structure of the program, its operations and funding 

• Rate setting and other costs to participants 
• Disclosure and due process in setting rates and allocating costs 

among participants 
• Methods for entering and terminating agreements with other entities 
• Participant rights and responsibilities 
• Termination of the program 
• Description of third parties that will be supplying electricity under the 

program, including information about financial, technical and 
operational capabilities 

The Implementation Plan must also include a statement of intent indicating 
that the program must provide universal access, reliability and equitable 
treatment of all classes of customers, and to meet any other requirements 
established by state law or by the CPUC (Seclion 366.2 of the Public 
Utilities Code specifies that to form a CCA, there must be a local 
ordinance approved by the entity proposing the CCA, followed by the 

Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
Community Choice Energy Roadmap 

94 



preparation of an implementation plan, which must contain specific 
elements outlined in the statute). After the implementation plan is 
approved, the CCA registers with the CPUC and provides an executed 
copy of the services agreement between the CCA and the utility that 
covers the services to be provided by the utility (eg: billing). 

Funded by the CA Energy Commission, the Local Govemment Commission 
developed the template for CCA implementation plans, along with a CCA 
implementation guidebook, available at: 
hltp:llwww.energy.ca.gov/pier/projectreports/CEC-500-2008-091 .html 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH & ENGAGEMENT 

Media and Information Distribution: There are numerous complexities 
related to electricity service and how CCAs operate that are unfamiliar to the 
majority of citizens. To ensure that the community becomes aware of the 
local CCA efforts and the ramifications of CCA implementation, RCEA has 
begun conducing general education and outreach efforts through print, 
online, social media, radio, television, and through RCEA's resource center in 
Old Town Eureka. 

Workshops: In addition to broad outreach efforts, RCEA is scheduling a 
series of town-hall open-house workshops around the County to provide the 
community numerous in-person opportunities to leam about what a CCA 
program is, why we are doing it, and how it works. 

Rate Comparison: Developed and jointly produced with PG&E, a rate 
comparison provides a typical bill for various customer classes under the 
CCA's rates alongside the current PG&E rates. This provides a clear picture 
of the rate impact for customers based on the power option they choose; an 
example rate comparison from Sonoma Clean Power is available at: 
hltps:llsonomacleanpower.oro!w!H:OntenVuploadsl2015/11/2015-09-01-
SCP Joint-Ra\e-Comparison.pdf 

Opt-Out Notices: An important step in CCA launch is providing all 
customers with multiple opt-out notices. The CCA must fully inform all 
customers of their right to opt out of the CCA program and to continue 
receiving service as a bundled customer from the IOU. All customers must be 
notified twice within 60 days prior to the date of automatic enrollment. In 
addition, notification must continue for partiCipating customers for at least two 
consecutive billing cycles after enrollment. Customer notification must 
contain the following information: 

• Those customers will be automatically enrolled. 
• That each customer has the right to opt out of the program without 

penalty. 
• The terms and conditions of CCA service. 

Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
Community Choice Energy Roadmap 9 

95 



10 

OPERATIONS 

There are numerous technical and complex components of launching and 
operating a CCA program, including: 

• Financing 
• Load forecasting 
• Rate analysis 
• Customer service 
• Accounting 
• Utility data management and interface 
• Regulatory compliance 
• Power procurement and scheduling 

To facilitate the rapid and successful roll out of the CCA, RCEA will 
outsource significant components of program start-up and operations 
work to qualified contractors with the qualifications, expertise, and overall 
experience to provide the CCA services, including factors such as: 

• Demonstrated direct experience within and understanding of the 
California energy market, including relevant legislation and 
regulations applicable to CCA and its major participants - investor 
owned utilities, CA Independent System Operator, energy service 
providers and independent power producers, California Public 
Utilities Commission, and other key market players. 

• Demonstrated understanding of the CCA formation process in 
California including - statutory and regulatory requirements, and 
best practices, including experience in customer data analysis. 

• Demonstrated experience in resource planning and energy 
procurement. 

• Demonstrated experience in rate setting Idesign and sensitivity 
analysis, including anticipated rate impacts related to varying 
levels of renewable energy procurement and local renewable 
projecVprogram development as well as energy efficiency and 
demand reduction program implementation. 

• Demonstrated experience in California energy compliance 
reporting as it relates to CCA. 

To this end, RCEA is issuing a Request for Proposals (RFP) to select a 
qualified entity or group of entities to provide comprehensive services to 
support RCEA with the development, financing, launch, and operations of 
the CCA program for Humboldt County. RCEA intends to enter into an 
Agreement with the selected Contractor(s) for a period of up to five years. 

Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
Community Choice Energy Roadmap 

96 



The Table below outlines at a high-level the anticipated roles and duties 
of the RCEA Board, RCEA staff, and the third-party contractor(s). RCEA 
anticipated a heavy reliance on contracted companies in the initial 5 
years, with the potential to shift certain operational activities to RCEA staff 
if deemed viable and cost-effective. 

Function Start-Up 

Program Authority Board Governance 

Program Authority staff 
Management (Third Party support) 

Outreach Authority staff 

Authority staff Customer Service (Third Party support) 

Key Account Authority staff Management 
Third Party 

Regulatory (Authority staff 
supoort) 

Legal Authority staff 
(third Party support) 

Third Party 
Finance (Authority staff 

support) 

Rates: Approve Authority Board 

Rates: Develop 
Third Party (Authority 

staff support) 

Third Party 
Resource Planning (Authority staff 

suooort) 

Energy Efficlency AuthOrity staff 

Resource Authority staff 
Development (Third Party support) 

Portfolio Operat/ons Third Party 

Scheduling Third Party Coordinator 

Data Management Third Party 

Redwood Coast Energy Authority 
Community Choice Energy Roadmap 

Near-Term (2 to 5 Long-Term Years) 

Authority Board AuthOrity Board 

Authority staff Authority staff 

AuthOrity staff Authority staff 

AuthOrity staff Authority staff 

(Third Party support) (Third Party 
support) 

Authority staff Authority staff 

Authority staff AuthOrity staff (Third Party support) 

Authority staff 
Authority staff (Third Party support) 

Authority staff Authority staff (Third Party support) 

Authority Board Authority Board 

AuthOrity staff 
AuthOrity staff (third Party support) 

Third Party Third Party 
(Authority staff (potentially 

suooort) AuthOrity stalfL 

Authority staff Authority staff 

Authority staff AuthOrity staff 
(Third Party (Third Party support) support) 

Third Party Third Party 
(Authority staff (Authority staff 

support) support) 

Third Party Third Party 

Third Party Third Party 

11 

97 



633 30d Street. Eureka. CA 95501 
P: 707.269.1700 F: 707.269.1777 

info@redwoodenergy.org 
www.RedwoodEnergy.org 

98 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
(707) 764-5480 (fox) 
E-mail: cm@riodellcity.com 

CITY OF RIO DEll 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCil AGENDA 
November 17, 201S 

TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Kyle Knopp, City Manage~"";) 
Brooke Woodcox, Finance Direct~ 

DATE: November 17, 2015 

SUBJECT: Rio Dell/Scotia Chamber of Commerce Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) Revenue 
Contributions 

RECOMMENDATION 

1. At this time staff recommends that the Council take no action towards contributing 
TOT revenue to the Chamber of Commerce in light of serious budget constraints 

2. If Council chooses to contribute TOT revenues to the Chamber of Commerce, staff 
recommends a contractual agreement between the City and the Chamber that 
outlines all stipulations and understandings in regards to TOT contributions 

BUDGETARY IMPACT 

The budgetary impact to the General Fund is dependent on Council action. The general fund is 
currently operating with a deficit for the 2015-16 fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

At a regularly scheduled Council meeting on November 3, 2015 staff followed up on a request 
to Council for a percentage of Transient Occupancy Tax to go towards the Rio Dell/Scotia 
Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Angeloff, the Chamber's president, was unable to attend the 

Chamber of Commerce Contributions 99 



discussion, so at Council's request the item was to be brought back when Mr. Angeloff could be 
available to discuss the City's contribution ofTOT to the Chamber. 

TOT is a general fund revenue source and averages $11,000 per year (1% of general fund). 60% 
of general fund revenues budgeted for FY 2015-16 go towards supporting the Rio Dell Police 
Department. The 2015-2016 budget, when adopted, included a budget deficit in the general 
fund. Despite the gains with the receipt of Measure U revenues, there still wasn't enough 
revenue to cover budgeted appropriations. 

The City contributes to the Fire Department and Library. These general fund expenditure items 
are expected to exceed $5,000 in 2015-2016. Based on current consumption, the Fire 
Department contribution will be over $4,500, while the library will exceed $900. 

In the past the City has provided contributions to the Chamber for an overall amount totaling 
$8,266.93 from 2006 to present. During the years of 2008-2010 the City contributed 10% of 
TOT revenue to the Chamber of Commerce. In 2009 this amount totaled $1,351. In July 2013 
the Chamber requested a 25% cash match contribution for a Headwaters Grant. The City 
Council approved $6,250 to fulfill this request. 

Contributions to the Chamber stopped in 2010 when the City had requested that the Chamber 
provide financial information, and the Chamber withdrew the request. At this time, staff makes 
the recommendation that this item be brought back in the next fiscal year and a decision be 
made dependent on whether or not the general fund reserve has stabilized. 

Chamber orCommerce Contributions 100 



em Of 

675 Wildwood Avenlle 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 

fm ELL 

TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Rio Dell City Council 

Kyle Knopp, City Manag~ 
Karen Dunham, City Cle~ 
November 17, 2015 

Designation of Representatives to the PACE JPA Board of Directors 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Resolution No. 1278-2015 approving designation of Brooke Woodcox, Finance 
Director as the official representative and Karen Dunham, City Clerk as alternate 
representative to the PACE JPA Board of Directors 

BUDGETARY IMPACT 

None 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

Participation in the Public Agency Coalition Enterprise (PACE) Medical Benefits 
Program requires each member entity to be part of a Joint Powers Agreement (IPA) 
which outlines the purpose and participation requirements to become a member of the 
program. 

One of the requirements under the PACE JPA is that each member agency appoint a 
representative and alternate to the PACE JPA Board of Directors. Regular meetings are 
held on a quarterly basis and can be attended via internet so no travel expense is 
anticipated at this time. 

Attachment: 

Resolution No.1 278-20 1 5 

101 



RESOLUTION NO. 1278-2015 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF RIO DELL APPROVING DESIGNATION OF 

THE OFFICIAL REPRESENTATIVE AND 
AL TERNA TE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE 

PACE JPA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF RIO DELL, is a member of the PACE JPA; and 

WHEREAS, the PACE JP A requires each member agency to have a 
representative at the regularly scheduled meetings: and 

WHEREAS, the Bylaws of the PACE JPA requires the Board of each member 
agency to appoint a representative and alternate. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that BROOKE WOODCOX, 
Finance Director, is hereby appointed as official representative and KAREN 
DUNHAM, City Clerk is hereby designated as official alternate from the City of Rio 
Dell to attend the PACE JPA meetings. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of November, 2015 by the following 
vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

J. Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California. hereby certify 
the above to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 1278-2015 adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Rio Dell on November 17,2015. 

Karen Dunham. City Clerk 

Resolution No. 1278-2015 Appointment of Representatives to PACE JPA 

102 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Del/, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

Cm' Of 

~ DEL. . .L 

For Meeting of: November 17, 2015 

To: 

From: 

Through: 

Date: 

Subject: 

City Council 

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director <:£:: 
Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

November 9, 2015 

Text Amendment Revising the Planning Commission's Regularly Scheduled 

Meeting of Each Month, Section 2.60.030(4) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code 

Recommendation: 

That the City Council: 

1. Receive staffs report regarding the proposed text amendment; 

2. Reopen the pUblic hearing, receive public input, and deliberate; and 

3. Approve and adopt Ordinance No. 339-2015 amending Section 2.60.030(4) of the Rio 

Dell Municipal Code (ROMe) changing the Planning Commission's monthly regular 

meeting from the fourth Thursday of the month to the fourth Tuesday of the month and 

continue consideration, approval and adoption of the proposed Ordinance to your 

meeting of November 17, 2015 for the second reading and adoption; and 

4. Direct the City Clerk, within 15 days after adoption of the Ordinance, to post an 
adoption summary of the Ordinance with the names of those City Council members 
voting for or against, or otherwise voting in at least three (3) public places and to post in 
the office of the City Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the adopted Ordinance 
pursuant to Section 36933(a) of the California Government Code. 

Planning Commission Meeting Date Text Amendment CC November 17.2015 

103 



Background/Summary 

Staff introduced Ordinance No. 339-2015 amending Section 2.60.030(4) of the Rio Dell 
Municipal Code (RDMC) which will change the Planning Commission's monthly regular meeting 
date from the fourth Thursday of the month to the fourth Tuesday of the month. The purpose 
of the amendment is to accommodate newly appointed Planning Commissioner Julie Woodall. 

Below is a copy of the current and recommended language of the Rio Dell Municipal Code 
(RDMC), Section 2.60.0030(4): 

The Commission shall hold at least one regular meeting each month. The regular 
meeting of the Planning Commission shall be held at 6:30 p.m. on the fourth 
fhwsdsy Tuesdav of the month and, in the event that the fourth fhllFSds¥ 
Tuesday falls on a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held the following fhwsds¥ 
day at the same hour. Location shall be in the Ria Dell City Hall Council Chambers 
at 675 Wildwood Avenue. 

Attachments 

1. Ordinance No. 339-2015 amending Section 2.60.030(4) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code 
(RDMC) changing the Planning Commission's monthly regular meeting from the fourth 
Thursday of the month to the fourth Tuesday of the month . 

Planning Commission Meeting Date Text Amendment CC November 17. 2015 

104 



ORDINANCE NO. 339-2015 

Cmor 

tm ELL 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 

AMENDING SECTION 2.60.030(4) OF THE RIO DELL MUNICIPAL CODE (ROMe) CHANGING 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION'S MONTHLY REGULAR MEETING FROM THE FOURTH 

THURSDAY OF THE MONTH TO THE FOURTH TUESDAY OF THE MONTH 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

WHEREAS staff informed the Planning Commissioner's at their meeting of September 24,2015, 
that Julie Woodall was considering making application for the vacant Planning Commission 
position; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission currently meets the fourth Thursday of the month; and 

WHEREAS due to Mrs. Woodall's work schedule she would not be able to attend Thursday night 
meetings; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission considered and discussed changing the regular monthly 
meeting date to accommodate Mrs. Woodall, should she be appointed to the vacant Planning 
Commission position; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission had no objection to changing the meeting date to 
accommodate Mrs. Woodall; and 

WHEREAS Mrs. Woodall was appointed to the Planning Commission by the City Council at the 
meeting of October 20th

, 2015; and 

WHEREAS should the Council decide to approve the Planning Commission's recommendation to 
move the regularly scheduled meeting to the fourth Tuesday of the month, staff and the 
Planning Commission recommends that Section 2.60.030(4) be further amended; and 

WHEREAS the current language requires that if the meeting date falls on a legal holiday, the 
meeting shall be held the follOWing Thursday at the same hour; and 

Planning Commission Meetings Ordinance No. 339-2015 NovemhRr 17. 2015 

ATTACHMENT 1 105 



WHEREAS if the Council does decide to approve the Planning Commission's recommendation, 
staff recommends that if the meeting date does fall on a holiday, the meeting rescheduled to 
the following day (Wednesday). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does hereby 
ordain as follows: 

Section 1. Section 2.60.030(4) ofthe Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

The Commission shall hold at least one regular meeting each month. The regular 
meeting of the Planning Commission shall be held at 6:30 p.m. on the fourth 
JhW'-5dBy Tuesday of the month and, in the event that the fourth JhwFSdBy 
Tuesday falls on a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held the folia wing JRWF5dBy 
day at the same hour. Location shall be in the Rio Dell City Hail Council Chambers 
at 675 Wildwood Avenue. 

Section 2. Severability 

If any provision of the ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect. 

Section 3. Limitation of Actions 

Any action to challenge the validity or legality of any provision of this ordinance on any grounds 
shall be brought by court action commenced within ninety (90) days of the date of adopt ion of 
this ordinance. 

Section 4. Effective Date 

This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of its approval and adoption. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Rio Dell on November 3, 2015 and furthermore the forgoing 
Ordinance was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Rio Dell, held on the November 17,2015 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

Planning Commission Meetings Ordinance No. 339-2015 November 17. 2015 

106 



ArrEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 339-2015 which was passed, 
approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, held on 
the November 17, 2015. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

Planning Commission Meetings Ordinance No. 339-2015 November 17, 2015 

107 



CITY Of 

675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 
~ DELL 

To: 

From: 

Through: 

Date: 

Subject: 

For Meeting of: November 17, 2015 

City Council 

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Directo@. 

Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

November 9,2015 

Approval and adoption of Ordinance No. 340-2015 amending the "Definition" 
provisions, Chapter 17.10 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to amend 
some existing definitions, include additional definitions and eliminate some 
definitions 

Recommendation: 

That the City Council: 

1. Receive staff's report regarding the proposed text amendment; and 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input, close the public hearing; and 

3. Find that the proposed text amendment is consistent and compatible with the General 
Plan and any implementation programs that may be affected; and 

4. Find that the proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 

5. Adopt Ordinance No. 340-2015 amending the "Definition" provisions, Chapter 17.10 of 
the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to amend some existing definitions, include 
additional definitions and eliminate some definitions; and 

6. Direct the City Clerk, within 15 days after adoption of the Ordinance, to post an adoption 
summary of the Ordinance with the names of those City Council members voting for or 
against, or otherwise voting in at least three (3) public places and to post in the office of 
the City Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the adopted Ordinance pursuant to 
Section 36933(a) of the California Government Code. 

Definition Provisions Chapter 17.10 RDMC CC November 17, 2015 

108 



Background and Discussion 

At your meeting of November 3nl
, staff introduced Ordinance No. 340-2015 amending the 

"Definition" provisions, Chapter 17.10 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) to amend some 
existing definitions, include additional definitions and eliminate some definitions. 

There was very lillie discussion regarding the proposed amendments and no revisions or 
changes were recommended by the Councilor the public. As such, staff is recommending that 
the Council: 

1. Find that the proposed text amendment is consistent and compatible with the General 
Plan and any implementation programs that may be affected; and 

2. Find that the proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

3. Adopt Ordinance No. 338-2015 amending the Fence Regulations to: (1) allow 
ornamental fencing materials, such as wrought iron fences with or without masonry or 
wood posts/piers or cyclone fencing no taller than 7 feet provided the fence is at least 
60% open, within the front yard setback and; (2) to prohibit razor or concertina wire 
fences; and 

4. Direct the Clerk of the Board to post the Ordinance adoption summary. 

Attachments 

Allachment 1: Ordinance No. 340-2015 amending Chapter 17.10, Definitions, of the Rio Dell 
Municipal Code (RDMC) to amend some existing definitions, include additional 
definitions and eliminate some definitions. 

Definition Provisions Chapter 17.10 RDMC CC November 17, 2015 

109 



ORDINANCE NO. 340-2015 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 17.10, "DEFINITIONS" OF THE RIO DELL MUNICIPAL CODE: 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

WHEREAS a number of new or modified use types were identified as part of the recently 
completed Land Use Matrix; and 

WHEREAS staff is recommending that the existing Definitions found in Chapter 17.10 of the Rio 
Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) be expanded to include the new or modified use types; and 

WHEREAS staff is also recommending that Chapter 17.10, "Definitions", be expanded to 
include other definitions of terms commonly used in administering the City's Zoning Regulations, 
Title 17 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS the intent of expanding the definitions is to ensure that the tenms found in Title 17 
of the RDMC are clearly defined; and 

WHEREAS the recommended amendments will not benefit staff in administering the provisions 
of the Zoning Ordinance, but also provides clear information to the citizen's, applicants and 
agents of project proponents within the City; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance 
with Sections 65350 - 65362 of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance 
with Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that 
the proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected; and 

WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA); and 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

ATTACHMENT 1 110 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does 
hereby ordain as follows: 

Section 1. Chapter 17.10, "Definitions", of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended as 
follows: 

17.10.010 Definitions. 

Chapter 17.10 
DEFINITIONS 

Unless the context otherwise requires. the definitions set forth or otherwise provided for in this 
chapter shall be used in the interpretation and construction of this title. Words used in the 
present tense include the future; the singular number shall include the plural. and the plural the 
singular; the word "building" shall include the word "structure," the word "used" shall include 
"arranged. designed, constructed. altered, converted, rented, leased, or intended to be used," 
and the word ·shall" is mandatory and not directory. 

"Abutting" means land having a common property line or separated only by an alley, easement 
or private street. 

"Accessory Horse Keeping" means the keeping and use of horses, llamas, alpacas. and/or 
ponies. and similar uses. on a parcel where such keeping and use is not the principal use 
of the parcel. The number of horses is controlled by each zoning district, whereas the 
term horses shall include horses. mules. and donkeys. 

"Accessory Retail" means the retail sales of various products (including food service) In a 
store or similar facility that is located within a health care. hotel. office. industrial. or 
institutional complex. These uses include pharmacies. gift shops. and food service 
establishments within hospitals; gift shops. convenience stores and food service 
establishments within hotel. office. industrial. and institutional complexes. This use 
category also includes retail associated with commercial and industrial uses for the 
products sold, distributed or manufactured on site. Such retail area shall not exceed 25 
percent of the facility's total sguare footage. 

"Accessory Structure (attached)" means an attached accessory structure which is either 
entirely enclosed by walls and a solid roof or is partially enclosed with a solid roof that Is 
structurally attached to a primary structure. This classification of accessory structures 
includes garages, greenhouses. pool houses. sunrooms. workshops. storage sheds. barns 
and other agricultural outbuildings. as well as carports. patio covers. gazebos. stables and 
other agricultural outbuildings with solid roof construction. 

"Accessory Structure (detached), Enclosed and/or Solid·Roofed" means a detached 
accessory structure which is either entirely enclosed by walls and a solid roof or is 
partially enclosed with a solid roof that Is not structurally attached to a primary structure. 
This classification of accessOrY structures includes garages. greenhouses. poolhouses. 
sunrooms. workshops. storage sheds. barns and other agricultural outbuildings. as well as 
carports. patio covers. gazebos. stables and other agricultural outbuildings with solid roof 
construction. 

Definiffons Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

111 



"Accessory Uses" means related uses necessary. or incidental. appropriate and 
subordinate to the operation and enjoyment of the principal use of the parcel or structure 
on which such use is authorized by zoning district regulations and as otherwise stated 
herein. Accessory uses are permanent or long-term in nature. distinct from the 
temporary use regulations. 

"Addition" means the result of any work that increases the volume of an existing structure or 
replaces a demolished portion. 

"Address of Convenience" means non-residential activities associated with any profession, 
occupation or hobby, having no employees, receiving no more than one delivery per day at the 
residence and utilizing a private residence only for receiving mail, phone calls and related 
record keeping (typically a mobile business). No more than one truck or other motor vehicle no 
larger than one ton and shall be permitted at the site of the Home Occupation. 

"Adult bookstore" means an establishment having as a substantial or significant portion of its 
stock in trade, books, magazines and other periodicals which are substantially devoted to the 
depiction of specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas. 

"Adult Day Care Facility" means a State-licensed facility that provides non-medical care 
and supervision for more than six adults for periods of less than 24 hours, with no 
overnight stays. 

"Adult Day Care Home" means pursuant to definitions of state law. a home which provides 
supervision and non-medical care to six or fewer adults, including elderly persons, in the 
provider's own residence. on a less than 24-hour basis. Homes serving more than six 
adults are Included in "Adult Day Care Facility". 

"Adult entertainment" is defined as including the terms "adult bookstore," "adult motion picture 
theater," "specified anatomical areas," and ·specified sexual activities," each of which are 
defined herein. 

"Adult entertainment activity" means any activity which aclivity is conducted exclusively for the 
patronage of persons who are 18 years of age or older and from which persons 17 years of age 
or younger are specifically excluded, with the inclusion of those licensed and regulated by State 
and Federal agencies but not limited to such businesses as adult bookstores, adult massage 
parlors, adult motion picture theaters, and adult entertainment in night clubs. 

"Adult entertainment in night clubs" means night clubs which feature topless dancers, 
bottomless dancers, go-go dancers, exotic dancers, strippers, male or female impersonators, or 
similar entertainment. 

"Adult motion picture theater" or "adult motion picture mini-theater" means an enclosed building 
or portion thereof, used for presenting material in the form of motion picture film, video tape, 
holographic projection or other similar means which is substantially devoted to the depiction of 
specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas for observation by persons therein. 

"Affordable Rent" means monthly housing expenses. including a reasonable allowance for 
utilities (30% of gross monthly income). for rentallnclusionary Units reserved for Very Low 
or Low Income Households. not exceeding the following calculations: 

Definilions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3,2015 

"2 



(a) Very Low Income. 50 percent of the area median income for Humboldt County. 
adjusted for household size. multiplied by 30 percent. and divided by 12; 

(b) Low Income. 60 percent of the area median income for Humboldt County. adjusted 
for household size. multiplied bv 30 percent. and divided by 12. 
"Affordable Sales Price" means a sales price at which a Low or Moderate Income 
Household can qualify for the purchase of an Incluslonary Unit. calculated on the basis of 
underwriting standards of mortgage financing available for the development. 

"Agriculture" means the use of land for agricultural purposes, including farming, dairying, 
pasturage, agriculture, horticulture, floriculture, viticulture, apiaries. and animal and poultry 
husbandry, and secondary accessory uses, but not including commercial stock yards, slaughter 
houses, hog farms, fertilizer works or plants for the reduction of animal matter. 

"Agricultural Products Processing" means the act of changing an agricultural crop. 
subseguent to its harvest in order to prepare it for market or for further processing. 

"Alley" or "lane" means a public or private way less than 40 feet wide affording only secondary 
means of access to abutting property. 

"Alcoholic Beverage Sales" means the retail sale of beer, wine. and/or other alcoholic 
beverages for on- or off-premise consumption. 

"Ambulance Service" means emergency medical care and transportation. including 
incidental storage and maintenance of vehicles. 

"Amphitheater" means an outdoor entertainment venue with a gallery facing the 
performance area with or without seats for spectators. 

"Amusement Arcades" means establishments containing devices commonly known as 
pinball machines. video games. games of skill of whatever kind or nature. whether 
electronically activated or not. 

"Animal hospital" means a building used for the care and treatment of sick or injured dogs, cats, 
rabbits, birds and similar small animals. 

"Animal Husbandry" means raising and breeding of animals or production of animal 
products. Typical uses include grazing, ranching. dairy farming, poultrv farming. and 
beekeeping. but excludes slaughterhouses and feedlot operations. This classification 
includes accessory agricultural buildings accessory to such uses. Animal sales. boarding. 
and grooming are defined separately under "Animal Sales and Grooming". Keeping of 
animals is defined separately under "Animal keeping". 

"Animal Keeping" means care and maintenance of animals on private property. The listing 
below provides a distinction between various types of animals related to allowed use 
provisions in Article III. This classification is distinct from "Animal Husbandry" and 
"Animal Sales and Grooming." 

(a) Domestic Pets. Small animals (no larger than the largest breed of dogs) customarily 
kept as pets within a dwelling unit. This classification includes dogs. cats. fish. and birds 
(excluding large tropical birds and poultryl. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

113 



(b) Exotic Animals. Any wild. dangerous. or venomous animal. not customarily confined or 
CUltivated by man for domestic or commercial purposes. but kept as a pet or for display. 
including. but not limited to. mammals. fowl, fish or reptiles. 

(c) Livestock Animals. All other domestic or domesticated animals other than household 
pets. including. but not limited to. cattle. sheep. goats. horses. mules. llamas. ostriches. 
emus. and swine. 

(d) Poultry. Domesticated birds (fowl) customarily kept for eggs or meat. This 
classification includes chickens. roosters. ducks. geese. turkeys. guinea fowl. and Cornish 
game hens. 

"Animal Sales and Grooming" means retail sales of domestic andlor exotic animals. 
bathing and trimming services conducted entirely within an enclosed building with no 
outdoor use. 

"Antenna" means any system of wires. poles. rods. reflecting discs. or similar devices 
used for the transmission or reception of electromagnetic waves when such system is 
either external to or attached to the exterior of a structure. or is portable or movable. 
Antennas shall include devices having active elements extending in any direction. and 
directional beam-type arrays having elements carried by and disposed from a generally 
horizontal boom that may be mounted upon and rotated through a vertical mast or tower 
interconnecting the boom and antenna support. all of which elements are deemed to be a 
part of the antenna. 

"Antenna. amateur radio" means any antenna which is used for the purpose of 
transmitting and receiving radio signals in conjunction with an amateur radio station 
licensed by the Federal Communications Commission. 

"Antenna. directional (also known as a "panel" antenna)" means an antenna that transmits 
andlor receives radio freguency signals in a directional pattern of less than 360 degrees. 

"Antenna. building-mounted" means any antenna directly attached or affixed to a building. 
tank. tower. or other structure. Building-mounted antenna are identified in two distinct 
categories herein as follows: 

(a) Wall-mounted. Attached or affixed to the elevation of the structure. 

(b) Roof-mounted. Attached or affixed to the rooftop or top of the structure. 

"Antenna. ground-mounted" means any antenna with its base (either single or multiple 
posts) placed directly on the ground or a mast 12 feet or less in height and six inches in 
diameter. 

"Antenna. parabolic (also known as "satellite dish" antenna)" means any device 
incorporating a reflective surface that is solid. open mesh. or bar configured that is 
shallow dish. cone. horn. bowl or cornucopia shaped and is used to transmit andlor 
receive electromagnetic or radio freguency communication/signals in a specific directional 
pattern from orbiting satellites or ground transmitters. This definition is meant to include 
what are commonly referred to as television receive only (TYRO) and satellite microwave 
antennas. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3. 2015 

114 



"Appliance. Furniture and Furnishings Stores" means stores engaged primarilY in selling 
the following products and related services. including incidental repair services; 
draperies. floor coverings. furniture. glass and chinaware. home appliances. home 
furnishings. home sound systems. interior decorating materials and services. large 
musical Instruments. including but not limited to pianos. cellos and harps. movable spas 
and hot tubs. office furniture. other household electrical and gas appliances. outdoor 
furniture refrigerators. etc. 

"Art. Antlgue. Collectable Sales" means antigue shops. art galleries. curio. gift. and 
souvenir shops. and the sales of collectible items including sports cards. coins. stamps. 
and comic books. (Stores selling handcrafted items that are produced on the site are 
instead defined as "Artisan Shops.") 

"Artisan Shops" means retail stores selling art glass. ceramics. jewelry. weaving. guilts. 
and other handcrafted items. where the facility includes an area for the crafting of the 
items being sold. 

"Artisan/Craft Product Manufacturing" means establishments manufacturing and/or 
assembling products primarily by hand. including jewelry. pottery and other ceramics. as 
well as glass and metal art. craft products. and body products (i.e. soups. oils. etc.) 

"Auto and Vehicle Sales/Rentals" means retail establishments selling and/or renting 
automobiles. trucks. vans. motorcycles. mobile homes. recreation vehicles. and/or boats. 
May also include repair shops and the sales of parts and accessories. incidental to vehicle 
dealerships. Does not include: the sale of auto parts/accessories separate from a vehicle 
dealership (see "Auto Parts Sales"); bicycle and moped sales (see "General Retail 
Stores"); tire recapping establishments (see "Vehicle Services"); businesses dealing 
exclusively in used parts. (see "Recycling - Scrap and Dismantling Facility"); or "Service 
Stations." which are separately defined. 

"Auto and Vehicle Storage" means storage of operative and inoperative vehicles for 
limited periods of time. Includes storage of parking tow-aways. impound yards. and 
storage lots for automobiles. trucks. buses and recreation vehicles. Does not include 
vehicle dismantling or retail sales. 

"Auto Parts Sales" means stores that sell new automobile parts. tires. and accessories. 
May also include minor parts installation (see "Automobile and Vehicle Services"). Does 
not include tire recapping establishments. which are found under "Vehicle Services" or 
businesses dealing exclusively in used parts. which are included under "Recycling - Scrap 
and Dismantling FacilitY." 

"Automobile Washing and Detailing" means permanent. drive-through. self service 
and/or attended car washing establishments. including fully mechanized facilities. May 
include detailing services. 

"AutomobileNehicle Detailing" means establishments providing automobiles. trucks 
(non-commerciall. boats and recreational vehicle cleaning. waxing. polishing. interior 
cleaning/vacuuming etc. services. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3. 2015 

115 



"Automobile Gas Stations. including charging stations. without vehicle service" means a 
retail business selling gasoline and/or other motor vehicle fuels and related parts. fluids 
and accessories. 

"Automobile Gas Stations. including charging stations. with minor vehicle service" 
means a retail business selling gasoline and/or other motor vehicle fuels and related 
parts. fluids and accessories and providing the adjustment. replacement or maintenance 
of parts. including tires. brakes. headlights. oil changes. alignments. tune-ups. etc. It 
shall not include complete engine or transmission replacement or rebuilding. body and 
frame repairs or painting. 

"Automobile and Vehicle Sales/Rentals" means retail establishments selling and/or 
renting automobiles. trucks. vans. motorcycles. recreation vehicles and/or boats. May 
also include repair shops and the sales of parts and accessories incidental to the vehicle 
dealership. 

"Automobile and Vehicle Services. Major Repair/Body Work" means establishments 
providing general repair. rebuilding. reconditioning. removal and replacement of engines. 
transmissions. drive-trains. collision repair including body. frame or fender straightening 
of automobiles. trucks. boats, recreational vehicles, etc. 

"Automobile and Vehicle Services. Maintenance and Minor Repair" means 
establishments providing the adjustment. replacement or maintenance of parts. 
including tires. brakes. headlights. oil changes. alignments. tune-ups. etc. It shall not 
include complete engine or transmission replacement or rebuilding. body and frame 
repairs or painting. 

/\II\sFAssile Rs~aiF. MiAsF. "M'Ref alliS Fe~aIF· FAeaRS It:le aE:ljllslFAeAt SF re~laSeFAeRlsf ~a~s . 
lifes,-llfakes, t:leadligt:lls. aRd tt:lelike. aRd tt:le tllRiRg sf eAgiAes. II sRall Rsl iRslIISe GSFA~lete 
eRgiAe s 'JemalllsF FeblliidiAg . sedy aAS fraFAe F9~a iFS. SF ~aiAtiAg . 

• Automobile wrecking" means the commercial dismantling or disassembling of used motor 
vehicles or trailers. tractors. self-propelling farm or road machinery, or the storage, sale or 
dumping of same when dismantled, partially dismantled, obsolete or wrecked. or the parts 
thereof. 

"Awnings" means any structure made of a flexible fabric or similar material covering a 
metal frame attached to a buitding. whether or not the same is so erected as to permit its 
being raised to a position flat against the building when not in use. 

"Banks and Financial Services" means financiat institutions including: banks and trust 
companies. credit agencies. holding (but not primarily operating) companies. lending and 
thrift institutions. other investment companies. securities/commodity contract brokers and 
dealers. security and commodity exchanges. vehicle finance (equity) leasing agencies. 

"Banner" means any sign of lightweight fabric of similar material that is mounted to a 
pole or a building at one or more edges. National. State. or Municipal flags shall not be 
considered 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3,2015 

116 



"Bars and Nightclubs" means any bar. cocktail lounge. discothegue. or similar 
establishment. which may also provide live entertainment (music and/or dancing. comedy. 
etc.) in conjunction with alcoholic beverage sales. These facilities do not include bars that 
are part of a larger restaurant. Includes bars. taverns. pubs. and similar establishments 
where any food service is subordinate to the sale of alcoholic beverages. May also include 
the brewing of beer as part of a brew pub or micro- brewery. 

~fS- R'leans sllsinesses where alsahalis se'/eFages are said fer en site sanSllR'lplian. whish 
are Rat paF! af a larger restal.lFal*.-lnsllldes sars. la¥eFAS. PllSS. and siR'lIIar eslaslishR'lenls 
where any feaEl servisa is sl;lsardinale la Ihe sale ef alsahalis se¥erages. May insll;lde 
enleF!ainR'lenl (e.g., lil'e F!'lIjsis andlar dansing. saR'ledy, ets.). May alsa insll;lde seer brewing as 
part af a FAisrasFewery, and ather sayeFage tasting !aGilitias. 

"Bed and Breakfast Inns" means residential structures with one family in permanent 
single-family residence with not more than four (4) bedrooms rented for overnight lodging. 
and may only serve food to its registered guests. The food service is restricted to 
breakfast or a similar early morning meal. and light foods or snacks. The price of the food 
must be included in the price of the overnight accommodation. 

"Broadcasting and Recording Studios" means commercial and public communications 
uses including radio and television broadcasting and receiving stations and studios. with 
facilities entirely within buildings. Does not include transmission and receiving apparatus 
such as antennas and towers. which are under the definition of "Telecommunications 
Facility." 

"Beginning of construction" means the incorporation of labor and material within the foundation 
of a building. 

"Boarding and Rooming Houses" means a dwelling or part thereof with one family in 
permanent residence. with not more than three rented bedrooms and where meals or 
meals and lodging are provided for compensation. 

"Baarding hal;lse- R'leans a dwelling aF part tRareal where R'leals andler ladging are pFe'Jided far 
saR'lpansatian fer three aF R'lare parsens 

"Building" means any structure having a roof used or intended to be used for the shelter or 
enclosure of persons, animals or property. 

"Building, accessory" means a detached subordinate building located on the same building site 
as the main building and designed and intended for a use which is subordinate to the main 
building. 

"Building Frontage. Primary" means the building frontage that faces the street. In cases 
where a building has more than one street frontage. the street address frontage shall be 
considered the primary building frontage. In cases where a business has no building 
frontage facing a street. the building frontage with the primary business entrance shall 
be considered the primary building frontage. A single multi-tenant building has one 
primary frontage. the allowable sign area for which may be distributed at the discretion 
of the owner; however. in no event shall the combined sign area for all tenants exceed 
the allowable sign area for the building. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

117 



"Building height" means the vertical distance from the average contact ground level at the front 
wall of the building to the highest pOint of the roof. 

"Building, main" means a building in which is conducted the principal use of the building site on 
which it is situated. 

"Building Materials Stores and Yards" means retail establishments selling lumber and 
other large building materials, where most display and sales occur indoors. !includes 
paint. wallpaper, glass and fixtures.l Includes stores selling to the general public. even if 
contractor sales account for a major proportion of total sales. Includes incidental retail 
ready-mix concrete operations. except where excluded by a specific zoning district. 
Establishments primarily selling electrical. plumbing. heating and air conditioning 
equipment and supplies are classified in "Wholesaling and Distribution." Hardware 
stores are listed in the definition of "General Retail Stores". even if they sell some 
building materials. as long as there is no outdoor lumberyard. 

"Bus and Transit Shelters" means a small structure designed for the protection and 
convenience of waiting transit passengers that has a roof and usually two or three sides. 

"Business Support Services" means establishments primarily within buildings. providing 
other businesses with services includinq maintenance, repair and service. testing. rental. 
etc., also includes: blueprinting business; equipment repair services (except vehicle 
repair. see "Automobile and Vehicle Services"l; commercial art and desiqn (productionl; 
computer-related services (rental. repairl; copying. quick printing. and blueprinting 
services (other than those defined as "Printinq and Publishing"l; equipment rental 
businesses within buildings (rental yards are "Storage Yards"l; film processinq 
laboratories; heaw equipment repair services where repair occurs on the client site; 
janitorial services; mail advertising services (reproduction and shippingl; mail box 
services; other "heaw service" business services; outdoor advertising services; 
photocopying and photofinishing; protective services (other than office relatedl; soils and 
materials testing laboratories; window cleaning. 

"Cafe/Specialty Shop" means a retail business selling ready-ta-eat food and/or beverages 
for on- or off-premise consumption as well as offering specialty food and beverage 
products in a distinct category of merchandise generally not prepared for immediate 
consumption. such as seafood or meat. Imported ethnic products. wine. or other specialty 
foods. This use is distinct from other food or beverage stores in that the type or selection 
of products offered is not readily available at a convenience market, liquor store. or 
grocery. 

"Camp" or "camping" shall mean to do any of the following: 

(a) Sleeping or Reposing, 10:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. To sleep or repose at any time between the 
hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. in any of the following places or manners: outdoors with or 
without bedding, tent, hammock, or other similar protection or eqUipment; 

(b) To Set Up Bedding, 10:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. To establish or maintain outdoors or in, on, or 
under any structure not intended for human occupancy, at any time between the hours of 10:00 
p.m. and 6:00 a.m., a temporary or penmanent place for sleeping by setting up any bedding, 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

118 



sleeping bag, blanket, mattress, tent, hammock, or other sleeping equipment in such a manner 
as to be immediately usable for sleeping purposes; and 

(c) Setting Up Camp Sites Anytime. To establish or maintain outdoors or in, on, or under any 
structure not intended for human occupancy, at any time during the day or night, a temporary or 
permanent place for cooking or sleeping by setting up any bedding, sleeping bag, blanket, 
mattress, tent, hammock, or other sleeping equipment, or by setting up any cooking equipment, 
with the intent to remain in such location ovemight. 

(d) Motor Vehicles, Auto Trailers and House Trailers. To use an automobile, bus, truck, motor 
home, house trailer, camper, trailer, or recreation vehicle, semi-trailer or truck, or other movable 
structure for habitation within the City, except in a duly licensed auto camp. 

"Caretaker Housing" means a residence that is accessory to a non-residential primary use 
of the site, where needed for security, 24-hour care or supervision, or monitoring of facility. 
equipment. or other conditions on the site. 

"Catering" means the preparation and delivery of food and beverages for off-site 
consumption without provision for on-site pickup or consumption. 

"Cemeteries. Mausoleums" means a land used for the burial of the dead. and dedicated for 
cemetery purposes, including crematories, columbariums, and mausoleums. Also see 
"Funeral Homes and Mortuaries". 

"City" shall mean the City of Rio Dell. 

"City Council" shall mean the City Council of Rio Dell. 

"City Manager" means the City Manager for the City of Rio Dell. 

"Civic Center" means a prominent land area that allows for government facility which may 
include a Police Station, City Hall. Fire Station, impound lot, parking facilities (decks and/or 
garages). public/quasi-public use, and professional office use. 

"Commercial coach" means a structure transportable in one or more sections, designed and 
equipped for human occupancy for industrial, professional, or commercial purposes which is 
required to be moved under permit, and shall include a trailer coach as defined in the Califomia 
Vehicle Code, as amended. 

"Communication eqUipment buildings· shall mean buildings housing electrical and mechanical 
equipment necessary for the conduct of a public utility communication business with or without 
personnel. 

"Community Development Director" means the Director of Planning and Building for the City of 
Rio Dell. 

"Cottage Industry" means the on-site production of goods by hand manufacturing in an 
enclosed building which involves only the use of hand tools or domestic mechanical 
equipment or a single kiln. and the incidental direct sale to consumers of only those 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

119 



goods produced on-site by the inhabitants of the property and which is clearly incidental 
and secondary to the residential use of the property; 

"Clubs, Lodges. and Meeting Halls" means a permanent. headquarters-type and meeting 
facility for organizations operating on a membership basis for the promotion of the 
interests of the members. including a facility for: business associations; civic, social and 
fraternal organizations; labor unions and similar organizations; political organizations; 
professional membership organizations. and/or other membership organizations. 

"Coffee House" means an establishment providing coffee and tea as well as light snacks 
ranging from baked goods to soups and sandwiches. other casual meals. and light 
desserts. 

"Community Centers" means a multi-purnose meeting and recreational facilities typically 
consisting of one or more meeting or multi-purnose rooms. kitchen andlor outdoor 
barbecue facilities. that are available for use by various groups for such activities as 
meetings. parties, receptions. dances. etc. 

"Community Garden" means a site used for growing plants for food. fiber. herbs. flowers. 
which is shared and maintained by nearby residents. 

"Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL): means a 24-hour energy equivalent level 
derived from a variety of single-noise events. with weighting factors of 5 and 10 dBA 
applied to the evening (7 p.m. to 10 p.m.) and nighttime (10 p.m. to 7 a.m.) periods to allow 
for greater sensitivity to noise during these hours. 

"Contractors Storage Yards" means a storage yards for contractor equipment and 
supplies. 

"Convenience Stores" means an easy access retail stores of 5.000 square feet or less in 
gross floor area. which carry a range of merchandise oriented to convenience and 
travelers' shopping needs. These stores may be part of a service station or an 
independent facility. Also see "Neighborhood Market" and "Grocery Store/Supermarket" 
for larger stores or stores oriented towards the daily shopping needs of residents. 

"Crop and Tree Farming" means raising for commercial purposes of any truck. field or 
orchard crop and the necessary buildings incidental to any such crop. wholesale nurseries 
and greenhouses. 

"Crop Production" means raising and harvesting of plants. tree crops. row crops. or field 
crops on an agricultural or commercial basis. including packing and processing. Includes 
horticulture establishments engaged in the cultivation of flowers. fruits. vegetables. or 
ornamental trees and shrubs for wholesale and incidental retail sales. This classification 
includes accessory agricultural buildings accessory to such uses and roadside stands for 
display/sale of agricultural products grown on the premises. Excludes uses for which 
other garden. nursery or landscape merchandise is stored and sold on the site. 

"dB. Decibel" means a unit used to express the relative intensity of a sound. Every 
increase of 10 dBA doubles the perceived loudness though the noise is actually ten times 
more intense. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340·2015 November 3, 2015 

120 



"dBA" means the "A-weighted" scale for measuring sound in decibels; adjusts the effects 
of low and high freguencies in order to simulate human hearing. 

"Density Bonus" means a density increase over the otherwise maximum allowable 
residential density for the provision of affordable housing. 

"Density Bonus Housing Agreement" means a legally binding agreement between a 
developer and the City of Rio Dell to ensure that the reguirements of this Section are 
satisfied. 

"Density Bonus Units" means those residential units granted pursuant to the provisions of 
this Section, which exceed the otherwise Maximum Residential Density for the 
development site. 

"Density Incentive" means a density Increase over the otherwise maximum allowable 
residential density. 

"Development Agreement" means an agreement entered between a developer and the City 
pursuant to Government Code Section 65864 et seg. as those sections exist or are 
hereafter amended or renumbered. 

"Direct Broadcast Satellite Service (DBS)" means a system in which signals are 
transmitted directly from a satellite to a small home receiving dish. 

"Dog Park" means a park for dogs to exercise and playoff-leash In a controlled 
environment under the supervision of their owners. enclosure for small dogs. 

"Domestic Violence Shelter" means any emergency or transitional housing shelter 
operated with the primary purpose of sheltering victims of domestic violence and their 
dependents the location of which is considered to be secured and confidential. 

"Drive-in and Drive-through Sales" means facility where food or other products may be 
purchased by motorists without leaving their vehicles. These facilities include fast-food 
restaurants, drive through coffee, dairy product, photo stores, pharmacies, etc. 

"Orive-in and Drive-through Services" means a facility where services may be obtained by 
motorists without leaving their vehicles. These facilities include drive-up bank teller 
windows. dry cleaners. etc. (see also: automobile service stations, or car washes, which 
are separately defined,) 

"Dwelling" means any building or portion thereof containing one or more dwelling units designed 
or used exclusively as a residence for one or more families, but not including a tent, boat, trailer, 
mobile home, dormitory, labor camp, hotel or motel. 

"Owelling, Multi-Family" means a building designed and intended for occupancy bv three 
or more families living independently of each other, each in a separate dwelling unit. which 
may be owned individually or by a single landlord (e.g .. apartment. apartment house, 
townhouse, condominium). 

:.owelliR!i , FRllllipla family- meaR6 a tlllilt;l iRg er pertieR Illaree! GeRtaiRiAg IIlre9 er FRere t;lw9I1iR§ 
~ 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

121 



"Dwelling. Second Unit" means an attached or detached dwelling unit which provides 
complete independent living facilities for one or more persons. with permanent provisions 
for living. sleeping. eating. cooking and sanitation sited on the same parcel as the primary 
dwelling unit. 

"Dwelling. Single-Family" means a freestanding residential building designed for and/or 
occupied exclusively by one living unit that includes one kitchen and permanent 
provisions for living. sleeping. eating. sanitation. and parking. This classification includes 
manufactured homes (defined in California Health and Safety Code Section 180071 and 
model homes for the first sale of homes within the subdivision. "Manufactured Home". as 
defined in the HCD Safety Code Section 18007 is. " for the purposes of this part. means a 
structure. transportable in one or more sections. which. in the traveling mode. is 8 body 
feet or more in width. or 40 body feet or more in length. or. when erected onsite. is 320 or 
more square feet. and which is built on a permanent chassis and designed to be used as a 
dwelling with or without a permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities. 
and includes the plumbing. heating. air conditioning. and electrical systems contained 
therein; except that such term shall include any structure which meets all the requirements 
of this paragraph except the size requirements and respect to which the manufacturer 
voluntarily files a certification and complies with the standards established under this part. 
"Manufactured home" includes a mobilehome subject to the National Manufactured 
Housing Construction and Safety Act of 1974 (42 U.S.C .. Sec. 5401. et seq.I." 

~elll"'§ , si",!!le family' meaRS a l3~ilEliR!! seRtalR!R!! 8)(sllolsively eRe GWeIliR!! ~Ril. 

"Dwelling. Two-Family" means an attached building (e.g. duplex) designed for occupancy 
by two families living independently of each other. where both dwellings are located on a 
single lot. More than one two-family dwelling may be located on a single lot consistent 
with the density provisions of the General Plan. Does not include "Second Dwellinq 
Units." 

"Dwell iR§. lY.'e family· Gf--"4\Iplex" meaRS a 13~ ! IEl I R!! seRtaiRiR!! exsllolsively \we Elwel~ 
UflGer a GemmeR Feef. 

"Dwelling unit" means one room. or a suite of two or more rooms. designed and intended for 
occupancy or a place of residence by one family. and which unit has one kitchen or kitchenette. 

"Emergency Shelter" means housing with minimal supportive services for homeless 
persons that is limited to occupancy of six months or less by a homeless person. which 
does not deny emergency shelter because of an inabilitv to pay. 
"Equestrian Facilitv. Commercial" means a commercial horse. donkey. pony. and/or mule 
facilitv including horse ranches. boarding stables. riding schools and academies. horse 
exhibition facilities (for shows or other competitive events). pack stations. and barns. 
stables. corrals and paddocks accessory and incidental to these uses. 

"Equestrian Facility. Hobby" means stables. corrals. paddocks used by the individual 
residents of related property and their animals. 

"Equipment and Material Storage Yards" means an outdoor storage of large construction 
equipment or machinery. company vehicles. or large guantities of other materials and 
related uses. Excludes storage associated with vehicle service and equipment. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340·2015 November 3,2015 

122 



"Equipment Sales and Rental" means service establishments with outdoor storage/rental 
yards. which may offer a wide variety of materials and equipment for rental. including 
construction equipment. 

"Family' means a person living alone, or two or more persons related by blood, marriage or 
adoption, or a group of not more than five unrelated persons living together as a single nonprofit 
housekeeping unit in a dwelling unit. 

"Family Day Care Home. Large" means a State licenced facility that provides family child 
care for up to 12 children. or for up to 14 children if the criteria in Section 102416.5(c) of the 
California Code of Regulations are met. These capacities include children under age 10 
who live in the licensee's home and the assistant provider's children under age 10. "Family 
Day Care" or "Family Child Care" means regularly provided care. protection and 
supervision of children, in the care giver's own home, for periods of less than 24 hours per 
day. while the parents or authorized representatives are away, The term "Family Child 
Care" supersedes the term "Family Day Care" as used in previous regulations. 

"Family Day Care Home, Small" means a State licenced facility that provides family child 
care for up to 6 children, orfor up to 8 children ifthe criteria in Section 102416.5(b) of the 
California Code of Regulations are met. These capacities include children under age 10 
who live in the licensee's home. "Family Day Care" or "Family Child Care" means regularly 
provided care, protection and supervision of children, in the care giver's own home, for 
periods of less than 24 hours per day, while the parents or authorized representatives are 
away. The term "Family Child Care" supersedes the term "Family Day Care" as used in 
previous regulations. 

"Feed Lot" means any premises uses principally for the raising or keeping of animals in a 
confined feeding area. Confined feeding area shall mean any livestock feeding, handling, 
or holding operation or feed yard where animals are concentrated in an area: 

(a) Which is not normally used for pasture or for growing crops and in which animal 
wastes may accumulate; and 

(b) Where the space per animal is less than 600 sguare feet. 

(c) Feedlot is not intended to otherwise preclude the raising of animals as part of a general 
farming and/or livestock operation or as an FFA, 4-H. or other student project in an 
agricultural zone. General farming and/or livestock operation shall mean one in which the 
confined feeding of animals is an incidental part of the total livestock operation. 

"Fees yard, sRiffial" ffieSR6 a ~aRGel:l araa ' .... here li'Jeslesk are fM a sSRseRtraled ralisR. 

"Fence" means a barrier made of durable material to establish a boundary, as a means of 
protection or to provide confinement. Fences provide privacy, screening of negative 
visual features, noise attenuation, architectural treatment, and security for the property 
which they enclose. 

"Flag" means any fabric, banner, or bunting containing distinctive colors. patterns, or 
design, used as a symbol. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

123 



"Flag lot" means lots that have less than the required minimum street frontage on a public or 
private street where the lot has two distinct parts: (1) The flag, which is the building site and is 
located behind another lot; and (2) The pole which connecls the flag to the street. (Ord. 278, 
2011) 

"Food and Beverage Manufacturing" means manufacturing establishments producing or 
processing foods and beverages for offsite human consumption. Large scale operations 
would include more that 10 employees. while smaller scale operations may be related to 
specialty/craft foods or people living in a LivelWork situation. Includes bakeries 
(wholesale). bottling plants. breweries. candy. sugar and confectionery products. 
Manufacturing catering services separate from stores or restaurants. coffee roasting. dairy 
products manufacturing. fats and oil product manufacturing. fruit and vegetable canning. 
preserving. related processing. grain mill products and by-products. meat, poultry. and 
seafood canning. curing. byproduct processing. soft drink production. miscellaneous food 
item preparation from raw products. May include tasting and accessory retail sales of 
beverages produced on site. Does not include: bakeries which sell all products on-site. 
which are included in the definition of "General Retail Stores;" or beer brewing as part of a 
brew pub. bar or restaurant (see "Bars and Night Clubs"). 

"Fuel Storage and Distribution" means a facility where fuel (such as propane and gasoline) 
is stored and distributed without retail sales. 

"Funeral Homes and Mortuaries" means funeral homes and parlors where the deceased 
are prepared for burial or cremation and in which funeral services may occur. 

"Furniture and Fixtures Manufacturing. Cabinet Shops" means manufacturers producing 
household furniture. office furniture and partitions. shelving. store furniture. cabinets. 
drapery hardware. window blinds and shades. countertops. 

"Garage, private" means an accessory building or portion of a main building designed for the 
storage of self-propelled passenger vehicles, camping trailers or boats belonging to the owners 
or occupants of the site. 

"Garden Center/Plant Nursery" means establishments providing for the cultivation and 
sale of ornamental trees. shrubs. and plants. including the sale of garden and landscape 
materials (packaged and/or bulk sale of unpackaged materials) and equipment. including 
but not limited to. lawn movers. tillers and edgers. shovels. hoes. rakes. hoses. 
wheelbarrows. 

"Glass Product Manufacturing" means manufacturing establishments producing flat glass 
and other glass products which are pressed. blown. or shaped from glass produced in the 
same establishment. Does not include artisan and craftsman type operations as defined in 
"Artisan/Craft Product Manufacturing". 

"Glare" means light emitting from a luminaire with an intensity great enough to reduce a 
viewer's ability to see and. in extreme cases. causing momentarv blindness. 

"Golf Courses/CountrY Clubs" means golf courses and accessory facilities and uses 
including: clubhouses that may Include a bar and/or restaurant; locker and shower 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340·2015 November 3, 2015 

124 



facilities; pooUs); tennis courts; driving ranges; "pro shops" for on-site sales of golfing 
egulpment; and golf cart storage and sales facilities. 

"Graywater" means graywater. sometimes spelled greywater, grey water or gray water and 
also known as sullage. is non-industrial wastewater generated from domestic processes 
such as washing dishes, laundry and bathing. Graywater comprises 50-80"10 of residential 
wastewater. 

"Grocery Stores/Supermarket" means a retail business where the majority of the floor area 
open to the public is occupied by food products packaged for preparation and 
consumption away from the site of the store. These full service businesses do not 
typically have limited hours of operation. See separate but related listings for 
"Neighborhood Market" and "Convenience Store". 

"Ground or Lot GCoverage" means the percentage of the total lot area that is covered by 
structures as herein defined. 

"Group Residential" means shared living quarters without separate kitchen and/or 
bathroom facilities for each room or unit. This classification includes residential hotels. 
dormitories. fraternities. sororities. convents. rectories. and private residential clubs but 
does not include living quarters shared exclusively by a family. This category includes 
boarding houses. which are defined as a building other than a hotel or restaurant. where 
meals or lodging or both meals and lodging are provided for compensation for 4 or more 
persons. 

"Guest House" means an attached or detached habitable structure with only sleeping, 
living. and bathroom provisions. exclusive of kitchen or cooking facilities. Such 
structures shall not be used or rented as a separate dwelling for permanent living guarters. 

"Hog Farm. Commercial" means any premises used for the raising or keeping of hogs 
when raised. fed. or fattened for purposes of sale and consumption by other than the 
owner of the site. In an agricultural and agricultural zoning district. the term hog farm 
commercial is not intended to otherwise preclude the raising of hogs as part of general 
agricultural practices and 4-H purposes (See also Animal Keeping), 

"Home Occupation" means the conduct of an art or profession. the offering of a service on the 
conduct of a business. or the manufacture of handicraft products in a dwelling by the inhabitants 
thereof and which is clearly incidental and secondary to the residential use of the dwelling. No 
more than one truck or other motor vehicle no larger than one ton shall be permitted at the site 
of the Home Occupation. 

"Hostel" means a budget-oriented. sociable accommodation where guests can rent a 
bed. usually a bunk bed. in a dormitory and share a bathroom. lounge and sometimes a 
kitchen. Rooms can be mixed or single-sex. although private rooms may also be 
available. 

"Hotels and Motels" means facilities with guest rooms or suites provided with or without a 
kitchen facilitY. rented to the general public for transient lodging (less than 30 days). 
Generally. hotels provide access to most guest rooms from an interior walkway or hallway, 
and tvpically include a variety of services in addition to lodging; for example. restaurants. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

125 



meeting facilities. personal services, etc. Generally motels provide access to most guest 
rooms from an exterior walkway. Both may include accessory guest facilities such as 
swimming pools, tennis courts. indoor athletic facilities. accessory retail uses, etc. 

"Hotel" R'laans any Il~il(l in\l or !loFtian tRareof santalninlllilJinll q~aFtor5 OF (lwelliA\l ~Ri l6 '!litRe!!! 
kitsReR (asilities. an(l (losi!lRoe rer or inteneoe 10 Ilo lise(l Ily six or R'lore lransieRI \lllesls ; Illit 
not iRSllieiR\l R'lalels. FMllilo RaR'lo !larks, Ilaareinll RO!!Ses. eOFR'l ilarios or lallar GaFRfJ5-

"Hours of Darkness" means any time from one-half hour before sunset until one-half hour 
after sunrise and any other time when the illumination level is less than the required 
lighting for uses as designated in this Section. 

"Impound Lot" means a lot for the temporary storage of automobiles. trucks. buses, 
recreational vehicles. and similar vehicles. This use excludes vehicle repair or dismantling. 

"Incentives or Concessions" means regulatory concessions as specified in California 
Government Code Subsections 65915 /1\ to include. but not be limited to. the reduction of 
site development standards or Zoning code requirements. direct financial assistance. 
approval of mixed-use Zoning in conjunction with development. or any other regulatory 
incentive which would result in identifiable. financially sufficient. and actual cost 
avoidance or reductions that are offered in addition to a Density Bonus. 

"Inclusionary Unit" means a dwelling unit within a Housing Development which will be 
reserved for sale or rent to. and affordable to. Very Low or Low Income Households. or 
Qualifying Residents. 

"Income. Low Household" means a household whose total annual income falls between 30 
percent and 80 percent of the median income of Humboldt County, as published and 
periodically updated by the State Department of Housing and Community Development 
pursuant to Section 50079.5 of the California Health and Safety Code. 

"Income. Moderate Household" means a household whose total annual income falls 
between 80 percent and 120 percent of the median income of Humboldt County. as 
published and periodically updated by the State Department of Housing and Community 
Development pursuant to Section 50079.5 of the California Health and Safety Code. 

"Income. Very Low Household" means households whose income does not exceed 30 
percent of the Humboldt County median income. as published and periodically updated by 
the State Department of Housing and Community Development pursuant to Section 
50079.5 of the California Health and Safety Code. 

"Indoor AmusementlEntertainment Facility" means establishments providing indoor 
amusement and entertainment services for a fee or admission charge. including; dance 
halls and ballrooms and electronic game arcades. as stand alone uses. Four or more 
electronic games or coin-operated amusements in any establishment. or a premise where 
50 percent or more of the floor area is occupied by amusement devices. are considered an 
electronic game arcade as described above. 

"Indoor Sports and Recreation Facility" means predominantly participant sports and 
health activities conducted entirely within an enclosed building. with the exclusion of 
secondary uses such as a spa. pool. basketball court, or tennis court. Typical uses 

Definitions Ordinance No_ 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

126 



include bowling alley. billiard parlor. ice/roller skating rinks. indoor racquetball courts. 
indoor climbing facilities. soccer areas. athletic clubs and health clubs. Also see Outdoor 
Commercial Recreation for spectator venues and uses. 

"Kennels. Commercial" means a facility for the keeping. boarding and/or maintaining of 5 
or more dogs. or 5 or more cats. This definition does not include animals for sale in pet 
shops. or patients in animal hospitals. This definition includes a kennel where the animals 
are kept for commercial purposes. including boarding. breedinq. buying. selling. rentinq, 
exhibiting. or training. Does not include a veterinary facility, pet shop. or animal shelter. 

"Kennels. Hobby" means a facility for the keeping. boarding and/or maintaining of 5 or 
more dogs (4 months of age or older), or 5 or more cats when the animals are owned or 
kept by an occupant for personal. non-commercial purposes including: hunting. tracking, 
exhibiting at shows. exhibitions. field trials or other competitions. enhancing or 
perpetuating a given breed. This definition does not apply to non-domestic animals used in 
conjunction with an agricultural operation. 

"Junk yard" means the use of more than 200 square feet of area of any parcel, lot or contiguous 
lots as a place where imported waste, junk or salvaged vehicles, equipment, machinery or other 
materials are disassembled, handled, baled, packed, processed, or stored. 

"Kitchen" or "kitchenette" means any space used, intended or designed to be used for cooking 
and preparing food, whether the cooking unit be permanent or temporary and portable. 

"Landscape Feature" means a detached decorative structure typically used in conjunction 
with plant materials for aesthetic enhancement such as patio trellis covers. pergolas and 
gazebos with non-solid roof construction. arched trellises. arbors. vertical lattice 
structures. statues. and similar features. 

"Laundries and Dry Cleaning Plants" means service establishments engaged primarily in 
high volume laundry and garment services. including: laundries; garment pressing and dry 
cleaning; linen supply; diaper service; industrial laundries; and on-site carpet and 
upholstery cleaners. Does not include coin-operated laundries or dry cleaning pick-up 
stores without dry cleaning equipment. (see "Personal Services"). 
Leqal Non-Conforming Situations. A legal non-conforming situation is any land use. 
structure. lot of record, or other situation related to the use or development of land that: 

(a) Was legally established prior to the effective date of this Section or its subsequent 
amendment, or prior to the annexation of the property on which such non-conforming 
situation exists into the City, and 

(b) Does not now fully conform to the requirements of this Section. as amended. 

Legal Non-Conforming Lot. A legal non-conforming lot is a lot designated on an approved 
and recorded subdivision plat or that constitutes a whole parcel renected by a valid and 
recorded deed, In compliance with the subdivision provisions of Section 16 or prior 
subdivision regulations. which fails to conform to the minimum lot area. depth, width or 
other applicable dimensional requirement for the district in which it is located. and which 
is legally non-conforming. A non-conforming lot. which has frontage only on an 
undeveloped platted street. shall not be considered a legal non-conforming lot for 
purposes of this Zoning Code. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

127 



Legal Non-Conforming Sign. A legal non-conforming sign is a sign that does not fully 
conform to the standards of the sign regulations of Title 17 and that is legally non
conforming under Subsection A of the above definition "Legal Non-Conforming 
Situations". 

Legal Non-Conforming Situation. Other. Other legal non-conforming situations include all 
other aspects of an established land use or development that does not fully conform with 
the requirements of Title 17 or any amendment thereto but which is legally non-conforming 
under Subsection A ofthe above definition "Legal Non-Conforming Situations". Such 
other non-conforming situations include. but are not limited to. requirements for off-street 
parking. landscaping requirements. and other land development requirements. 

Legal Non·Conforming Structure. A legal non-conforming structure is any building or 
structure which does not fully conform to the standards imposed by the zoning provisions 
of this Section. but which is legally non-conforming under Subsection A of the above 
definition "Legal Non-Conforming Situations". 

Legal Non-Conforming Use. A use of land. building{s). or other structure{s). or any 
combination thereof. that is legally non-conforming under Subsection A of the above 
definition "Legal Non-Conforming Situations". 

Library. A public or quasi-public facility in which literary and artistic materials. such as 
books. periodicals. newspapers. pamphlets. prints. records, and tapes. are kept for 
reading. reference. or lending. and which are qenerally non-commercial in nature. 

"Live/work unit" means an integral working space and residential space occupied within a single 
unit or multi-unit structure that has been designed or structurally modified to accommodate jOint 
residential occupancy and work activity and which: 

(a) Is regularly used for such purposes by one or more persons residing In the unit; 

(b) Includes complete kitchen space and sanitary facilities in compliance with the building code; 

(c) Allows employees with associated required amenities as consistent with the building code; 
and 

(d) Includes working space reserved and regularly used by one or more occupants of the unit. 

"Lor or "building site" means a parcel of land exclusive of public streets or alleys occupied or 
intended to be occupied by a main building or group of such buildings and accessory buildings. 
together with such open spaces, yards, minimum width and area as are required by this title or 
other ordinance, and having full frontage on an improved and accepted public street which 
meets the standards of widths and improvements of the County, or having either partial frontage 
on such street or access thereto by a recorded right-of-way or recorded easement, which partial 
frontage right-of-way or easement is determined by the Commission to be adequate. 

"Lot area" means the total horizontal area included within lot lines. but excluding any portion of 
such area which has been dedicated for public right-of-way purposes. 

"Lot depth" means the average horizontal distance between the front and rear lot lines. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340·2015 November 3,2015 

128 



"Lot flag" See "Flag Lot" definition. (Ord. 278, 2011) 

"Lot, key" means the first lot to the rear of a corner lot, the front line of which is a continuation of 
the side line of the corner lot. 

"Lot line, front" means, in the case of an interior lot, the line separating the lot from the street 
right-of-way. In the case of a corner lot, the shorter street frontage shall be the front lot line. 

"Lot line, rear" means the lot line opposite and most distant from the front lot line. 

"Lot line, side" means any lot boundary which is not a front or rear lot line. 

"Lot line, side street" means a side lot line separating a lot from the street. 

"Lot lines" means the property lines bounding the lot. 

"Lot width" means the horizontal distance between the side lot lines measured at right angles to 
the depth of the lot at the front yard setback line. 

"Lumber and Wood Product Manufacturing" means manufacturing, processing. and sales 
uses involving the milling of new or used forest products to produce rough and finished 
lumber and other wood materials for use in other manufacturing, craft. or construction 
processes. Includes the following processes and products: containers. pallets and skids, 
milling operations, trusses and structural beams. turning and shaping of wood products, 
wholesaling of basic wood products. and wood product assemblv. Craft-type shops are 
included in "Handcraft Industries and Small Scale Manufacturing." other wood and cabinet 
shops are included under "Furniture and Fixture Manufacturing." The indoor retail sale of 
building materials. construction tools and equipment is included under cabinet shops 
under "Building Materials Stores and Yards." 

"Machinery Manufacturing" means the manufacturing of machinery and equipment used: 
for the manufacturinq of other productsj as parts in the assemblv of other productsj and 
for end-use purposes. including the following: construction equipment. conveyors. cranes. 
die casting. dies. dredging. engines and turbines. farming and gardening. food products 
manufacturing. gear cutting. heating. ventilation. air conditioning. industrial trucks and 
tractors. industrial furnaces and ovens. Industrial molds. laundry and dry cleaning. 
materials handling. mining. oil field equipment. paper manufacturing. passenger and 
freight elevators. pistons. printing. pumps. refrigeration equipment. textile manufacturing. 

"Maintenance and Repair. Large Equipment" means establishments providing on-site 
repair and accessory sales of supplies for industrial and/or agricultural machines 
conducted entirely within an enclosed building. This classification includes maintenance. 
repair. and overhauling of light and heaVY vehicles and equipment such as fire engines 
and pump sYStems. fire trucks including large trailer aerial ladder trucks. gang mowers. 
aerial work platforms. and construction equipment such as loaders. graders. dump trucks. 
back hoes. asphalt trucks. trailers. rollers. street sweepers. air compressors. and off road 
equipment. 

"Maintenance and Repair. Small Equipment" means establishments providing on-site 
repair and accessory sales of supplies for appliances. office machines. home 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340·2015 November 3, 2015 

129 



electronic/mechanical equipment. bicycles. tools. or garden equipment. conducted entirely 
within an enclosed building. This classification does not include maintenance and repair 
of vehicles. 

Manufaclured Home. The lerms "manufactured home" and "mobile home" can be used 
interchangeably. "Manufactured home" means a structure transportable in one or more sections, 
which, in the traveling mode, is eight body feet or more in width, or 40 body feet or more in 
length, or, when erected on site, is 320 or more square feet, and which is built on a permanent 
chassis and designed to be used as a dwelling with or without a permanent foundation when 
connected to the required utilities, and includes the plumbing, heating, air conditioning, and 
electrical systems contained therein; except that such term shall include any structure which 
meets all the requirements of this paragraph except the size requirements and with respect to 
which the manufacturer voluntarily files a certification and complies with the standards 
established under the California Health and Safety Code, as amended. "Manufactured home" 
includes a mobile home subject to the National Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety 
Act of 1974, as amended (42 USC Section 5401 et seq.). 

"Medical Services - Clinics. Offices. and Laboratories" means a facility primarily engaged 
in furnishing outpatient medical. mental health. surgical and other personal health 
services. but which are separate from hospitals. including: medical and dental 
laboratories. medical. dental and psychiatric offices. out-patient care facilities. and other 
allied health services. Counseling services by other than medical doctors or psychiatrists 
are included under "Offices." 

"Medical Services - Extended Care" means a residential facility providing nursing and 
health related care as a primary use with in-patient beds. such as: board and care homes: 
convalescent and rest homes: extended care facilities; skilled nursing facilities; and 
rehabilitation facilties. Long-term personal care facilities that do not emphasize medical 
treatment are included under "Residential Care Homes." 

"Medical Services - Hospitals" means hospitals and similar facilities engaged primarily in 
providing diagnostic services. and extensive medical treatment. including surgical and 
other hospital services. These establishments have an organized medical staff. inpatient 
beds. and equipment and facilities to provide complete health care. May include on-site 
accessory clinics and laboratories. accessory retail uses and emergency heliports (see the 
separate definition of "Accessory Retail Uses"). Does not include" Ambulance Services". 
which are defined separately. 

"Metal Products Fabrication. MachinelWelding Shops" means establishments engaged 
primarily in the assembly of metal parts. including the following uses that produce metal 
duct work. tanks. towers. cabinets and enclosures. metal doors and gates. and similar 
products. blacksmith and welding shops. sheet metal shops. machine shops and boiler 
shops. 

"Metal Products Manufacturing" means manufacturing establishments engaged in the 
smelting and refining of ferrous and nonferrous metals from ore. pig. or scrap; in the 
rolling. drawing. and alloying of ferrous and nonferrous metals; in the manufacture of 
castings. forgings. stampings. extrusions and other basic products of ferrous and 
nonferrous metals; and in the manufacture of nails. spikes. and insulated wire and cable. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3. 2015 

130 



"Miniature Golf Courses (Indoor & Outdoor)" means a facility that provides on-site 
commercial entertainment In the form of a novelty version of golf played with a putter and 
golf ball on a miniature course and featuring obstacles such as alleys, bridges, and 
tunnels, 

"MOBils hams" FRSaAS a slrl,lsll,lffi IRal FReets tRS FSEll,lireFReAts of tRe ~jatioAal MaAl,lfastllFeEl 
HOl,Is iA~ GOAstrl,lslioA aREl Safety Ast of 1974, as aFRenElsEl. "Moeile heFRe" Eloos Rat iAsll,IEle a 
Geffiffiersial seaSR, fastor)' Ilt.lill ROl,IsIR!ij , or a rSGFOa tional ',SRIGlo, as oash tSfFR is ElsliReEl in the 
Gallfemia Mol;)lIe HOFRSS MaAt.llssMsEl Hel,lsing Asl 01 1989, as sFRenElsEl. 

"Mobile/Manufactured Home Park" means any site that is planned and improved to 
accommodate two or more mobile homes used for residential purposes, or on which two 
or more mobile home lots are rented, leased, or held out for rent or lease, or were formerly 
held out for rent or lease and later convorted to a subdivision, cooporative, condominium, 
or other form of resident ownership, to accommodate mobile homes used for residential 
purposes in compliance with California Code of Regulations, Title 25, Division 1, Chapter 2 
(Mobile Home Parks and Installations), 

"Molel" meaRS a l;)l,Iilain€l er !ijFOI,IJl ef Bt.lilElin!ijs SOFRJlrisin!ijlnElIYiElt.lal slssJliR!ij €ll,laFlers eF 
Elw&~s fOF IRS assoFRFRoElstioR el transient €It.lests whiGR is so aesl€lneEltRal Jlsrkin!ij is on 
the saFRe el,lilEl iRg site aREl is een'JeAieAlly sesessil;)le rreFR the liYiR€lI,IRits. TRls EleflRllieA 
iAGAAles at.l te eel,lFls, tet.lFis\--OOU!=!Sw8nd meier Retels et.ll Elees Aol iRslllEle holels. 

"Museum" means a public or quasi-public institution of a non-commercial nature that 
procures, cares for, stUdies, and displays objects of lasting interest or value. Examples of 
museums include art and historical museums, aquariums, planetariums, botanical 
gardens, arboretums, and historical sites and exhibits, 

"Neighborhood Market" means a pedestrian-oriented grocery/speciality market store 
offering food products packaged for preparation and consumption away from the site of 
the store and oriented to the daily shopping needs of surrounding residential areas. 
Neighborhood markets are less than 15,000 square feet in size and operate less than 18 
hours per day. For larger stores, see "Grocery Store/Supermarket", Neighborhood 
markets may include deli or beverage tasting facilities that are ancillary to the 
market/grocery portion of the use, 

· NensenfoFFR i~iI El i n€l· means a el,lilEliR!ij , slrl,lslllF9 or portieR thoreel ' .... hlsR was lawfl,llly 
~oEl. et.ll whisR Eloes-nakeAfoFFR 10 all the hei!iji:ll aM area FO!ijl,llalioRs of Ihe ;!ono iR 
whisR il is losated, or whish is so ElosigAoa, oFosloEl SF alteroElIi:lal il sOlllEl nel roasoAaely BO 
sssl,lpieEl ey a \JS8~lted iA Ihe zeRO in ' .... hish il ls 10saloEl. 

"Nonsonformin€ll,lso" moans a I,lSO wRish was lawMly oslaelisi:loEl. bill '.VRlsh Eloos nol ssnfarrn 
• .... ilh IRO IlS0 regl,llations 0111010 zono in ""RisR il is losated. 

"Offices, Accessory" means offices that are incidental and accessory to a primary 
business, allowed as part of an approved primary use, 

"Offices, Business and Professional" means offices of finance businesses providing 
direct services to consumers (companies, utility companies, etc,). government agency 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

131 



and service facilities (post office. civic center. etc). professional offices (accounting. 
legal. employment. public relations. insurance. real estate. etc.). and offices engaged in 
the production of intellectual property (advertising. architectural. computer 
programming. photography studios. etc.). These do not include: medical offices (see 
"Medical Services - Clinics. Offices. and Laboratories"); temporary offices (see "Offices. 
Temporary"). or offices that are incidental and accessory to another business that is the 
primary use (see "Offices. Accessory"). 

::Qffioo. ~Fafe55iaAa l " meaRS aA anise tram wRiel'! aF al WRiGR a ~aGta F. law/er. eA!jiA88f. 
arsRile6t. as~RlaRI. aAa 6imila~e55iaAal 1l6rsaAs may after s6Plis6S. 

"Office. Temporary" means a mobile home. recreational vehicle or modular unit used as a 
temporary office facility. Temporary Offices may include: construction supervision offices 
on a construction site or off-site construction yard; a temporary on-site real estate office 
for a development project; or a temporary business office in advance of permanent facility 
construction. 

"Open Space" means undeveloped land with primarily passive recreational uses or 
landscaped pedestrian and bicycle through-ways (examples: community gardens. 
agricultural easements. greenbelts. bike and pedestrian paths. playground eguipment! or 
land left undeveloped for aesthetic. environmental. health. welfare. or safety reasons 
(examples: greenbelts. floodways. steep unstable slopes. and utility easements). Green 
Roofs can be considered Open Space as determined by the Planning Director or final 
decision making body. Open space cannot be considered park space and does not satisfy 
the requirement for park space as defined and reguired in this Code. 

"Outdoor Commercial Recreation" means a facility for various outdoor participant sports 
and types of recreation where a fee is charged for use. including: amphitheaters, 
amusement and theme parks. golf driving ranges, health and athletic club outdoor 
facilities. miniature golf courses. skateboard parks. stadiums and coliseums, swimming 
pools and water parks. tennis clubs, tennis courts. and zoos. 

"Paper Product Manufacturing" means the manufacture of paper and paperboard. from 
both raw and recycled materials. and their conversion into products including paper bags. 
boxes. envelopes. wallpaper. etc. 

"Park and Ride Facility" means a designated area where a vehicle may be left in order to 
carpool with other commuters or to ride public transit. 

"Parking FacilityNehicle Storage" means service establishments in the business of storing 
operative cars, trucks, buses. recreational vehicles. and other motor vehicles for clients. 
Includes both day use and long-term public and commercial garages. parking lots and 
structures. except when accessory to a primary use. (All primary uses are considered to 
include any customer or public use off-street parking required by this Zoning Code.) 
Includes sites where vehicles are stored for rental or leasing. Does not include dismantling 
yards (classified in "Recycling Facility - Scrap and Dismantling Facility"). 

"Parks and Playgrounds" means parks, play lots. playgrounds. amphitheaters, and athletic 
fields for noncommercial neighborhood or community active recreational use. including 
tot lots within apartment complexes. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

132 



'Park trailer" means a trailer designed for human habitation for recreational or seasonal use 
only, that meets all of the following requirements: 

(a) It contains 400 square feet or less of gross floor area, excluding loft area space if that loft 
area space meets the requirements of subdivision (b) of Section 18009.3 and Section 18033 of 
the California Health and Safety Code, as amended. It may not exceed 14 feet in width at the 
maximum horizontal projection; 

(b) It is built upon a single chassis; 

(c) It may only be transported upon the public highways with a permit issued pursuant to Section 
35780 of the California Vehicle Code. 

'Parking space" means an off-street area for the parking of a motor vehicle, of not less than 
eight feet in width and 18 feet in length with at least seven feet of vertical clearance, either 
within a structure or in the open, excluding driveways, or access drives, but which abuts upon a 
street, alley or has other appropriate means of access thereto. 

'Passive solar addition" means any designed structurally integrated addition to an existing 
building, the principal purpose of which is to increase passive heating or cooling efficiency of the 
building. For the purposes of this title, the term 'passive solar addition" shall include a solarium 
or greenhouse when structurally attached to a main building. 

'Passive solar system" means any design, including space or structural components, and 
orientation, which enhances the natural heating or cooling of a bUilding, without the use of 
external nonrenewable power supplies. A passive (or direct) solar system may be contrasted 
with an active (or indirect) solar system in which the solar heat is collected on the outside of the 
building and transferred inside the structure through ducts or pipes using a fan or pump. 

"Paving/Roofing Material Manufacturing" means the manufacture of various common 
paving and petroleum-based roofing materials, including bulk asphalt, paving blocks made 
of asphalt, creosote wood and various compositions of asphalt and tar. The manufacture 
of wood roofing materials (shingles, shakes, etc.) Is included under "Lumber and Wood 
Product Manufacturing." 

"Pending Applications" means any formal application submitted to the City for a land use 
or development permit or action that has not expired and has not been approved, denied, 
rejected, or rescinded. 

'Person" shall include any person, firm, company, corporation, partnership, association, 
organization or entity. 

"Personal Services" means a use that provides a personal service that is non-medical and 
may include accessorv retail sales of products related to the services that are provided. 
Examples of personal services include, but are not limited to the following: barber and 
beauty shops, clothing and costume rental, dry cleaning pick-up stores, home electronics 
and small appliance repair, laundromats (self-service laundries), shoe repair shops, 
massage, nail salons, and tailors. 

' Planning Commission" shall mean the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

133 



"Plastics, Synthetics, Rubber Products Manufacturing" means the manufacture of rubber 
products including: tires, rubber footwear including heels and soles, mechanical rubber 
goods, flooring, and other rubber products from natural, synthetic or reclaimed rubber, 
molding primary plastics for other manufacturers, manufacturing miscellaneous finished 
plastics products, and fiberglass manufacturing and fiberglass application services, 
Establishments engaged primarily in recapping and retreading automobile tires are 
classified in "Vehicle Services - Major Repair/Body Work," 

"Printing and Publishing" means establishments engaged in printing by letterpress, 
lithography. gravure, screen, offset, or electrostatic (xerographic) copying; and other 
establishments serving the printing trade including bookbinding, typesetting, engraving, 
photoengraving, and electrotyping, This use also includes establishments that publish 
newspapers, books and periodicals; establishments manufacturing business forms and 
binding devices, Does not include "guick printing" services or desktop publishing which 
are included in Business Support Services, 

"Public grounds" shall mean any public place, public area, public slreet, sidewalk, park, public 
facility or public area or any property owned by or under control of any local public agency, 
County, State agency or Federal agency located in the corporate limits of the City of Rio Dell, 
including but not limited to the river bank and river bar adjacent to and under the Eel River 
owned or under the control of the City of Rio Dell. 

"Recreation, commercial" means recreation facilities open to the general public for a fee or 
restricted to members when operated for profit as a business. 

"Recreation, private" means noncommercial clubs or recreation faci lities operated by a nonprofit 
organization and open only to bona fide members of such nonprofit organization and their 
guests. 

"Recreational vehicle" means both of the following: 

(a) A motor home, travel trailer, truck camper, or camping trailer, with or without motive power, 
designed for human habitation for recreational, emergency, or other occupancy, that meets all 
of the following criteria: 

(i) It contains less than 320 square feet of internal living room area, excluding built-in equipment, 
including, but not limited to, wardrobe, closets, cabinets, kitchen units or fixtures, and bath or 
toilet rooms; 

(ii) It contains 400 square feet or less of gross area measured at maximum horizontal 
projections; 

(iii) It is built on a single chassis; 

(iv) It is either self-propelled, truck-mounted, or permanently towable on the highways without a 
permit. 

(b) A park trailer, as defined in California Health and Safety Code Section 18009.3, as 
amended. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

134 



"Recreational Vehicle Parks" means a site where one or more lots are used, or are 
intended to be used, by campers with recreational vehicles or tents on transient basis (30 
days or less). Recreational vehicle parks may include public restrooms, water, sewer, and 
electric hookups to each lot and are intended as a higher density, more intensively 
developed use than campgrounds. May include accessory retail uses where they are 
clearly incidental and intended to serve RV park patrons only. 

Recycling Facility, Large Collection Facilitv. A recycling facility used for the acceptance by 
donation, redemption, or purchase of recyclable materials from the public that occupies 
more than 500 square feet and includes permanent structures, does not use power-driven 
processing equipment except for compacting, baling, plastic shredding, and other 
activities necessary for efficient temporary storage and material shipment. 

Recycling Facility, Processing Facility. A recyclinq facility located in a building or 
enclosed space and used for the collection and processing of recyclable materials. 
Processing means the preparation of material for efficient shipment or to an end-user's 
specifications by such means as baling. briquetting. compacting. flattening. grinding. 
crushing. mechanical sortinq. shreddinq. cleaning and remanufacturing. 

Recycling Facility, Reverse Vending Machine. An automated mechanical device that 
accepts one or more types of empty beverage containers including. but not limited to. 
aluminum cans. glass bottles and plastic bottles, and issues a cash refund or a 
redeemable credit clip with value of not less than the container's redemption value as 
determined by the State. 

Recycling Facility. Scrap and Dismantling Facilitv. Uses engaged in the assembling. 
breaking up. sorting. temporary storage. and distribution of recyclable or reusable scrap 
and waste materials. including the dismantling or wrecking of automobiles or other motor 
vehicles. or the storage or keeping for sale of parts and equipment resulting from such 
dismantling or wrecking. The presence on any lot or parcel of land of five or more 
inoperable vehicles from which parts have been or are to be removed for reuse or sale 
shall constitute prima facie evidence of an automobile wrecking yard. This use does not 
include landfills or other terminal waste disposal sites. 

Recycling Facility. Small Collection Facilitv. A recycling facility used for the acceptance by 
donation. redemption. or purchase of recyclable materials from the public that does not 
occupy more than 500 square feet. This classification may include a mobile unit, kiosk
type units that may include permanent structures and unattended containers placed for the 
donation of recyclable materials. 

Religious Institutions. Facility operated by religious organizations for worship. or the 
promotion of religious activities. including churches. mosques. synagogues. temples. etc.; 
and accessory uses on the same site. such as living quarters for clergy and staff. and child 
day care facilities where authorized by the same type of land use permit required for the 
religious facilitv itself. Other establishments maintained by religious organizations. such 
as full-time educational institutions. hospitals. youth camps. emergencylhomeless 
shelters. and other potentially related operations are classified according to their 
respective activities. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340·2015 November 3, 2015 

13S 



"Renewable Energy Development (i.e. commercial development. generation and sales of 
solar. wind energy.)" means a system or network generating energy that is derived from 
resources that are regenerative or for all practical purposes cannot be depleted. 

"Research and Development" means indoor facilities for scientific research. and the 
design. development and testing of electrical. electronic. magnetic. optical and mechanical 
components in advance of product manufacturing. that are not associated with a 
manufacturing facility on the same site. Includes chemical and biotechnology research and 
development. Does not include computer software companies (see "Offices - Business 
and Professional"). soils and other materials testing laboratories (see "Business Support 
Services"). or medical laboratories (see "Medical Services - Clinics. Offices. and 
Laboratories"). 

"Residential Care Facility" means consistent with the definitions of State law. a residential 
care facility is a facility that provides 24-hour non-medical care for more than six persons 
18 years of age or older. or emancipated minors. with chronic. life-threatening illness in 
need of personal services. protection. supervision. assistance. guidance. or training 
essential for sustaining the activities of daily living. or for the protection of the individual. 
This classification includes group homes. residential care facilities for the elderly. adult 
residential facilities. juvenile court residential facilities. and other facilities licensed by the 
State of California. 

"Residential Care Home. Small" means consistent with the definitions of State law. a 
residential care home is a home that provides 24-hour non-medical care for six or fewer 
persons 18 years of age or older. or emancipated minors. with chronic. life-threatening 
illness in need of personal services. protection. supervision. assistance. guidance. or 
training essential for sustaining the activities of daily living. or for the protection of the 
individual. This classification includes group homes. rest homes. residential care 
facilities for the elderly. adult residential. juvenile court residential facilities. and other 
facilities licensed by the State of California. Convalescent homes. nursing homes and 
similar facilities providing medical care are included under the definition of "Medical 
Services -

"Residential density. net" means the average number of dwelling units per one acre of land. 

"Resource Protection and Restoration" means activities and management of an area to 
preserve. re-create and enhance natural resource values such as fish and wildlife habitat. 
rare and endangered plants. vernal pools. erosion control. and floodwater conveyance. 

"Resource-Related Recreation" means a facility related to passive recreation in open 
space areas including bicycle and pedestrian trails. picnic areas. parking areas. and 
interpretive centers. 

"Restaurants" means a retail business selling food and beverages prepared on the site. 
for on- or off-premise consumption. These include eating establishments where customers 
are served from a walk-up ordering counter for either on- or off-premise consumption. and 
establishments where most customers are served food at tables for on-premise 
consumption. but may include providing food for take-out. Also includes coffee houses. 

"Restaurants. Accessory" means a restaurant that is accessory to a non-residential use. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3. 2015 

136 



"Restaurants. Fast FoodlDrive-ln" means a restaurant that provides both sit down and take 
out service and has at least 2 of the following characteristics: 

(a) Food to be consumed on the premises is served with non-reusable tableware. 

(b) Food is not delivered to the table. 

(c) Orders are placed at a counter. 

(d) Orders are placed at a drive through and/or walk up window. 

"Restaurants. Sit Down. Take Out Inclusive" means a business serving prepared food or 
beverages for consumption on or off the premises. Service is predominantly sit down. 
however the occasional take out customer may be accommodated. 

"Restaurants. Take-Out" means a restaurant where food is prepared on-site for off-site 
consumption. other than those deemed to be fast food restaurants. 

"Restaurants. With Alcohol Sales" means a restaurant with a valid Alcohol Beverage 
license that sells alcoholic drinks along with preparing and serving food. Also includes 
restaurants with breweries. subordinate to the restaurant use. that operate for the 
production of on-site consumption. 

"Restaurants. With Live Entertainment" means a restaurant that includes live 
entertainment. 

"Restaurants. With Outdoor Dining" means a restaurant where tables and seating are 
provided and food and/or beverages are served in outdoor areas and have at least one side 
open. 

"Retail. Accessory" means the retail sales of various products (including food service) in a 
store or similar facility that is located within a health care facilitv. hotel. office. institutional 
or Industrial complex. These uses include pharmacies. gift shops. and food service 
establishments within hospitals; convenience stores and food service establishments 
within hotel. office and industrial complexes. 

"Retail. General" means stores and shops selling multiple lines of merchandise including: 
art galleries. artists' supplies. bakeries (all production in support of on-site. sales). 
bicycles. books. cameras and photographic supplies. clothing and accessories. 
collectibles (cards. coins. comics. stamps. etc.l. department stores. drug and discount 
stores. dry goods. fabrics and sewing supplies. florists and houseplant stores (indoor 
sales. only; outdoor sales are "Plant Nurseries"). furniture. home furnishings and 
equipment. general stores. gift and souvenir shops, hardware. hobby materials. jewelry. 
luggage and leather goods. musical instruments. parts and accessories. newsstands, 
orthopedic supplies. pet supplies. religious goods. specialty shops. sporting goods and 
equipment. stationery. toys and games, and variety stores. 

·SeGeAS swelliAg \lAil," as \lses iA RDMe 17.JQ.2JQ, sllall meaA aA aElElilieAal liviA€l \lAil eA aAY 
eAe leI ar parGel witllin a siA§ls family rssiEleAtial sislFisl wRisll is slearly aAGillaF)' aAS 
S\leereliAale Ie a priASi!'lal El',YeIliR§ "Ail aA IRe same lat ar !'larGe!. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340·2015 November 3, 2015 

137 



' Setback line" means a line established by this title or by separate ordinance to govern the 
placement of buildings or structures with respect to lot lines, streets, or alleys. 

'Sign" means anything whatsoever placed, erected, constructed, posted, painted, printed, 
tacked, nailed, glued, stuck, carved , or otherwise fastened, affixed, constructed or made visible, 
Including billboards and signboards for out-of-door advertising purposes. 

"Sign. Abandoned" means any sign that is on the premises upon which it is located and 
has been vacated for a period of more than 90 days. 

"Sign. Animated" means any sign which uses mechanical or electrical movement or 
change of lighting. either natural or artificial. to depict action or to create a special effect or 
scene. 

"Sign. Area" means the measurable surface area of a sign. 

"Sign. Billboard" means an outdoor advertising sign on which space is leased or rented. 

"Sign. Blade/Bracket/Fin" means a small. pedestrian-oriented sign that projects 
perpendicular from a structure (bracket or fin sign) or is hung beneath a canopy (blade 
sign; may also be referred to as an "Under Canopy Sign"). 

"Sign. Building" means a sign placed on a wall. awning. canopy. parapet. or a projecting 
sign. 

"Sign. Canopy" means any sign that is part of or attached to an awning. canopy. or other 
material. or structural protective cover over a door. entrance. window. or outdoor service 
area. 

"Sign. Changeable Copy" means a sign or portion of a sign with characters. letters. or 
illustrations that can be changed or rearranged without altering the face or the surface of 
the sign. A sign on which the message changes more than once per day shall be 
considered an animated sign and not a changeable copy sign for purposes of this section. 

"Sign. Commercial Message" means any sign wording. logo. or other representation that 
names or advertises a business. product. service, or other commercial activity. 

"Sign. Construction" means an on-site temporary sign identifying the names of individuals 
and/or firms connected with the construction of a project. Such signs may include the 
name of the project. lender. owner. developer. architect. contractor. address of business, 
and emergency contact information. Such signs may not be erected for longer than six 
months. unless construction is actively occurring on the site. 

"Sign. Directory" means a pedestrian-oriented sign that identifies or lists the names and 
locations of tenants at a multi-tenant site. 

"Sign. Election Campaign" means temporary campaign signs relating to federal. state, 
county. city. school district. special district. or other governmental agency elections are 
permitted in all zones subject to the regulations in this title: 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3. 2015 

138 



"Sign. Flashing" means an illuminated sign that exhibits changing light or color effect by 
blinking or any other such means so as to provide a non-constant illumination. 

"Sign. Freestanding" means a permanent sign that is self-supporting in a fixed location 
and not attached to a building. It includes a sign connected or attached to a sign 
structure. fence. or wall that is not an integral part of a building. 

"Signs. Future Tenant" means signs erected for the purpose of advertising the future 
occupancy of a new tenant. Such signs may include the name of the tenants. the 
expected occupancy date. and the corporate logos or identification for the future 
occupant. 

"Sign. Garage. Yard. Estate, and Other Home-based sales" means the occasional non
business public sale of secondhand household and other goods incidental to household 
~ 

"Signs, Gas Pricing" means signs identifying the brand, types, octane rating, etc" of 
gasoline for sale, as required by State Law, 

"Sign, Governmental/Civic" means any temporary or permanent siqn erected and 
maintained by or required by the City, County, State, or Federal government for traffic 
direction, City entrance, or for designation of direction to any school, hospital, historical 
site, or public service, property or facility. 

"Sign, Illuminated" means a sign with an artificial light source incorporated internally or 
externally for the purpose of illuminating the sign. This includes signs made from neon or 
other gas tube(s) that are bent to form letters, symbols, or other shapes. 

"Sign, Incidental" means a sign, emblem, or decal informing the public of goods, facilities, 
or services available on the premises, including but not limited to a rest room and phone 
sign, credit card sign, or a sign indicating hours of business. 

"Sign, Menu/Order Board" means a sign installed in a drive-through facility and intended 
for drive-through customers that advertises the products available at the facility. (See 
Section 17.62.060 for standards!. 

"Sign. Monument" means a freestanding sign constructed upon a solid-appearing base or 
pedestal. 

"Sign. Name Plate" means a sign attached to a wall that identifies the occupant. 

"Sign, Non-Commercial" means any sign that does not bear a commercial message. 

"Sign. Non-Conforming" means a sign lawfully erected and legally existing at the time of 
the effective date of an ordinance. but which does not conform to the new provisions of 
this code. 

"Sign. Off-site Commercial" means a sign that advertises a business conducted. a service 
rendered. or goods produced or sold at a location other than the site of the sign. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

139 



"Sign. On-Site Directional" means a sign located on the same property as the business. 
primarily providing direction to guide vehicles and pedestrians to businesses. including by 
not limited to those signs identifying parking area and circulation patterns. 

"Sign. Pennant" means any lightweight plastic. fabric. or other material. whether or not 
containing a message of any kind. attached to a rope. wire. or string. usually in a series. 
designed to move in the wind and attract attention. 

"Sign. Pole" means a freestanding sign supported by one or more metal or wood posts. 
pipes. or other vertical supports. 

"Sign - Portable" means any sign not permanently attached to the ground or other 
permanent structure. or a sign designed to be transported. Portable signs include. but are 
not limited to. signs designed to be transported by means of wheels; signs configured as 
A-frame or T-frame; menu and sandwich board signs; and umbrellas used for advertising. 

"Sign. Readerboard" means a sign on which copy is changed manually in the field or 
electronically. including but not limited to theatre marguee signs. business directories. 
church and museum signs. and gas price signs. 

"Sign. Real Estate" means any sign. temporary in nature. erected for the express purpose 
of advertising the rent, sale. or lease of the real estate property upon which it is erected. 

"Sign. Roof' means a sign installed on a roof or projecting above the eave of a building or 
mounted on an arcade or parapet. 

"Sign. Temporary" means a sign not constructed or intended for long-term use. 
Temporary Signs are typically signs lasting less than 30 days. 

"Sign. TimelTemperature" means an electronic or mechanical device that shows time 
and/or temperature but contains no business identification or advertising. 

Sign. Under Canopy. See Blade/Bracket/Fin Sign. 

"Sign. Vehicle" means a sign that is attached to and is an integral part of a motorized 
vehicle or bicycle used directly for the purpose of a particular business and not used 
primarily as a sign base. . 

"Sign. Wall" means a sign attached directly to an exterior wall of a building or dependent 
upon a building for support with the exposed face of the sign located in such a way as to 
be substantially parallel to such exterior building wall to which it is attached or supported 
!rl, 

"Sign. Window" means a sign attached to. suspended behind. placed. or painted upon the 
window or glass door of a building and is intended for viewing from the exterior of such 
building. 

"Slaughterhouse" means any land. building. place or establishment in which 
animals are slaughtered. eviscerated. or dressed. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

140 



·Slide-in camper" means a portable unit, consisting of a roof, floor, and sides, designed to be 
loaded onto, and unloaded from, a truck and designed for human habitation for recreational or 
emergency occupancy. ·Slide-in camper" means a truck camper. 

"Solar energy system" means any (a) solar collector or other solar energy device or (b) 
structured design of a building whose primary purpose is to provide for the collection, storage, 
and distribution of solar energy for space heating or cooling, or for water heating. 

"Spa" Means a business establishment which people visit for personal care treatments 
such as massages and facials, only for the duration of the treatment (a day spa). In 
contrast, a destination spa offers the same services in a hotel setting where people reside 
for one or more days. 

·Special purpose commercial modular" means a vehicle with or without motive power, designed 
and equipped for human occupancy for industrial, professional, or commercial purposes, which 
is not required to be moved under permit, and shall include a trailer coach. "Special purpose 
commercial coach" has the same meaning as ·special purpose commercial modular" as that 
term is defined in the California Health and Safety Code. 

·Specified anatomical areas" means less than completely and opaquely covered mature human 
female breast below a point immediately above the top of the areola, or above a point 
immediately below the bottom of the areola; mature human buttock; mature human genitals; or 
human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and opaquely covered. 

·Specified sexual activities" means fondling or other erotic touching of human pubic region, 
buttock, female breast, or genitals; or acts of human sexual intercourse, masturbation or 
sodomy; or human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation or arousal. 

·Storage, public, enclosed" means a building or group of buildings containing one or more 
rooms in which goods are stored or kept, normally unrelated or incidental to a business or 
commercial enterprise, and where access to the individual storage room or space is available to 
the tenant or lessee. Also known as mini-storage warehouses. 

·Storage, warehouse, private" means a building or group of buildings containing one or more 
rooms in which merchandise or commodities are stored or kept, principally for retail sale, and 
where access to the content of the storage room or space is restricted to the owner of the 
facilities or his employees. 

·Story" means that portion of a building included between the surface of any floor and the 
surface next above it, or if there is no floor above it, then the space between the floor and the 
ceiling next above it. 

·Street" means a public right-of-way, or private right-of-way approved by the Planning 
Commission, which provides a primary means of access to abutting property. 

· Street line" means the boundary between a street right-of-way and abutting property. 

·Structural alterations" means any change in the structural members of a building, such as 
bearing walls, columns, beams, or girders. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

141 



"Structure" means anything constructed, the use of which requires permanent location on the 
ground. This includes swimming pools, but excludes driveways, patios, or parking spaces where 
the area is unobstructed from the ground up. 

"Telecommunication Facilitv" means a facilitv designed and/or used for the purpose of 
transmitting. receiving. or relaying voice and/or data signals from various wireless 
communication devices. including transmission tower. antenna. and or other facilitv 
designed or used for that purpose. Amateur radio transmission facilities. facilities 
operated exclusively as part of a public safety network. and facilities used exclusively for 
the transmission of television and/or radio broadcasts are not "telecommunication 
facilities". 

"Textile and Leather Product Manufacturing" means manufacturing establishments 
engaged in performing any of the following operations: coating. waterproofing. or 
otherwise treating fabric. dying and finishing fiber. yarn. fabric. and knit apparel. 
manufacture of knit apparel and other finished products from yarn. manufacture of felt 
goods. lace goods. non-woven fabrics and miscellaneous textiles. manufacturing of woven 
fabric. carpets and rugs from yarn. preparation of fiber and subseguent manufacturing of 
yarn. threads. braids. twine cordage. and upholstery manufacturing. 

"Theaters and Auditoriums" means indoor facilities for public assembly and group 
entertainment. other than sporting events. including: civic theaters. and facilities for "live" 
theater and concerts. exhibition and convention halls. motion picture theaters. public and 
semi-public auditoriums. similar public assembly uses. Does not include outdoor theaters. 
concert and similar entertainment facilities. and indoor and outdoor facilities for sporting 
events; see "Outdoor Commercial Recreation." 

"Transitional Housing" means housing containing sleeping. kitchen. and bathroom 
facilities with supportive services for up to 24 months that is exclusively designated and 
targeted for recently homeless persons. Transitional housing includes self-sufficiency 
development services. with the ultimate goal of moving recently homeless persons to 
permanent housing as guickly as possible. and limits rents and service fees to an abilitv
to-pay formula reasonably consistent with the United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development's requirements for subsidized housing for low-income persons. 

"Use" means the purpose for which either land or a structure thereon is designed. arranged. or 
intended. or for which it is or may be occupied or maintained. 

"Use. accessory" means a use legally permitted in the zone, which use is incidental to and 
subordinate to the principal use of the site or of a main building on the site. 

·Use. conditional" means a principal or accessory use of land or of structures thereon which use 
may be permitted only upon the issuance of a use permit. as provided herein. 

"Use. principal permitted" means the primary use of land or of a main building which use is 
compatible with the purpose of the zone and which is permitted in the zone. 

"Utilitv Facility" means fixed-base structures and facilities serving as junction points for 
transferring utility services from one transmission voltage to another or to local 
distribution and service voltages. These uses include any of the following facilities that are 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

142 



not exempted from land use permit requirements by Government Code Section 53091: 
electrical substations and switching stations, natural gas regulating and distribution 
facilities, public water system wells, treatment plants and storage, telephone switching 
facilities, wastewater treatment plants, settling ponds and disposal fields. These uses do 
not include office or customer service centers (classified in "Offices"), or equipment and 
material storage yards. 

"Utilitv Infrastructure" means pipelines for water, natural gas, and sewage collection and 
disposal; and facilities for the transmission of electrical energy for sale. including 
transmission lines for a public utilitv company. Also includes telephone, telegraph. cable 
television and other communications transmission facilities utilizing direct physical 
conduits. Does not include offices or service centers (see "Offices"), or distribution 
substations (see "Utility Facilitv"). 

"Veterinary Facility" means veterinary facility that is primarily enclosed, containing only 
enough cage arrangements as necessary to provide services for domestic and exotic 
animals requiring acute medical or surgical care with accessory outdoor use that provides 
long term medical care. Grooming and boarding of animals is allowed only if accessory to 
the facility primary use. 

"Warehousing" means a facility for the storage of commercial goods of any nature. 
Includes cold storage. Does not include: warehouse, storage or mini-storage facilities 
offered for rent or lease to the general public (see "Storage, Personal Storage Facility") or 
warehouse facilities in which the primary purpose of storage is for wholesaling and 
distribution (see 'Wholesaling and Distribution"). 

"WarehouselRetail" means retail stores that emphasize the packaging and sale of products 
in large guantities or volumes, some at discounted prices. Sites and buildings are usually 
large and industrial in character. Patrons may be required to pay membership fees. 

"Wholesaling and Distribution" means establishments engaged in selling merchandise to 
retailers; to industrial. commercial, institutional, farm, or professional business users; or 
to other wholesalers; or acting as agents or brokers in buying merchandise for or sellinq 
merchandise to such persons or companies. Includes such establishments as: agents, 
merchandise or commodity brokers. and commission merchants, assemblers, buyers and 
associations engaged in the cooperative marketing of farm products. merchant 
wholesalers. and stores primarily selling electrical. plumbing, heating and air conditioning 
supplies and equipment. 

"Yard" means an open space other than a court on the same site with a building, which open 
space is unoccupied and unobstructed from the ground upward, except for landscaping or as 
specified elsewhere in this title; but not including any portion of any street, alley or road right-of
way, except as specified elsewhere in this title. 

"Yard, front" means a yard of uniform depth extending across the full width of the lot between 
the front lot line and the nearest vertical support or wall of the main building, or enclosed or 
covered porch attached thereto. The front yard of a comer lot is the yard adjacent to shorter 
street frontage. 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

143 



"Yard, rear" means a yard of uniform depth extending across the full width of the lot between the 
rear lot line and the nearest vertical support or wall of the main building or enclosed or covered 
porch attached thereto, except that the rear yard of a comer lot extends only to the side yard 
adjacent to the street. 

"Yard, side" means a yard on each side of the main building extending from the front yard to the 
rear yard, the width of each yard being measured between the side line of the lot and the 
nearest vertical support or main wall of each building or enclosed or covered porch attached 
thereto. A side yard on the street side of a corner lot shall extend from the front yard to the rear 
lot line. 

"Zone" means a portion of the territory of the City of Rio Dell within which certain uniform 
regulations and requirements or various combinations thereof apply under the provisions of this 
title. The word "zone" shall include the word "district: lOrd. 252 § 2.01, 2004.] 

Section 2. Severability 

If any provision of the ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect. 

Section 3. Limitation of Actions 

Any action to challenge the validity or legality of any provision of this ordinance on any grounds 
shall be brought by court action commenced within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption of 
this ordinance. 

Section 4. Effective Date 

This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of its approval and adoption. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Rio Dell on November 3, 2015 and furthermore the forgoing 
Ordinance was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Rio Dell, held on the November 17, 2015 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340·2015 November 3, 2015 

144 



ATIEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 340·2015 which was passed, 
approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, held on 
the November 17, 2015. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

Definitions Ordinance No. 340-2015 November 3, 2015 

145 



CITY OF 

Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Avellue 
Rill Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riot/elicit)'. CIIIII 

il;1<M.\ 
cruS) DELL 

November 17,2015 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Second Reading and Ado . n of Ordinance No. 341-2015 Amending City Code 
Section 5.30.520(2)(a) and Related Authorization for the City Manager to Sign 
Settlement Agreement and Release with Suddenlink Regarding PEG Access 
Funding 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

That the City Council: 

I.) Receive staffs report on Ordinance No. 341-2015 amending city code section 5.30.520(2)(a) 
related to the PEG fee paid by cable operator to support public access television; 

2.) Open the public hearing, receive public input. close the public hearing and discuss; 

3.) Adopt Ordinance No. 341-2015 amending City Code Section 5.30.520(2)(a) further 
authorizing the City Manager to sign settlement agreement and release with Suddenlink 
regarding PEG Access funding. 

4.) Direct the City Clerk. within 15 days after adoption of the Ordinance. to post an adoption 
summary of the Ordinance with the names of those City Council members voting for or against. 
or otherwise \ding in at least three (3) public places and to post in the oflice orthe City Clerk a 
certified copy of the full text of the adopted Ordinance pursuant to Section 36933(a) of the 
California Government Code. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

Since April of 2014, Suddenlink has been operating under State Cable franchises in accordance 
with the Digital Infrastructure and Video Competition Act of 2006 (DIVCA). The local DIVCA 
ordinances for Humboldt County and the Cities Arcata, Blue Lake, Eureka, Ferndale, Fortuna, 
and Rio Dell required payment of PEG access fees that equal 3% of the gross cable revenues. 
The Rio Dell City Council authorized this ordinance and fee level in 20 I O. However, 
Suddenlink has been paying only 1% since May 2014 and therefore is not in compliance with 
local DIVCA ordinances. 

146 



The source of the disagreement between Suddenlink and the Cities/County with regard to the 
computation of the proper amount of PEG fees is a section of DrvCA that provides imprecise 
guidance with regard to how to handle certain upfront PEG payments that occurred in 2006 (see 
below for further explanation). 

DrvCA calls for a formula to calculate PEG fees on a going forward basis (up to a maximum of 
3% and a minimum of 1% of gross revenues), based upon the amount of PEG fees paid in 2006 
and the percentage of total gross cable revenues in 2006 reflected by the PEG fees paid that year. 
Because there were upfront lump sum PEG payments in 2006 (the first year of the local 
franchise), they increased the PEG contribution used to calculate the PEG fee percentage, which 
was determined to exceed 3%. The legislation provided no guidance as to how to account for 
upfront lump sum payments. 

While we believe that the 3% calculation is technically correct, we recognized the need to reach 
an agreement with Suddenlink regarding this matter. We also made it clear to Suddenlink that 
the Cities and County could not agree to modify the Code and reach a Settlement Agreement 
unless Suddenlink agreed to compensate the Cities/County for the underpayment of PEG fees 
from the date that the state video franchises took effect until the effective date of any Settlement 
Agreement, and to provide certain other assurances with regard to in-kind PEG support. 

Access Humboldt contracted with a consultant (Sue Buske of The Buske Group) to conduct 
negotiations with Suddenlink on behalf of the Cities and County. The attached resolution and 
settlement and release is the result of those negotiations. The negotiations proceeded over the 
past 8 months and have resulted in the attached Resolution and Settlement Agreement and 
Release. 

The Settlement Agreement and Release calls for the following: 

I. Cities/County will modify the section of their respective City/County codes dealing with 
PEG fees provided by holders of State Video Franchises from 3% to 1.401%. 

2. Suddenlink agrees to pay 1.40 I % of gross revenues on a going forward basis to Access 
Humboldt (the PEG provider designated by the Cities/County). 

3. Cities/County agree to use PEG Fees for PEG purposes in a manner consistent with 
applicable law. 

4. Suddenlink agrees to pay a $64,000 settlement to Access Humboldt as a settlement for 
underpaid PEG fees since May 2014. 

5. Suddenlink agrees that it will: 
a. not challenge the Cities/County right to collect the 1.401 % PEG Fee; 

b. not reduce the amount of PEG Fees paid to the Cities/County to an amount below 
1.401%; 

c. not deduct from PEG Fees or Franchise Fees paid to the Cities/County the value of 
Suddenlink's other non-cash PEG services and facilities provided pursuant to its State 
Video Franchise, and its obligations under the applicable sections of the Cities/County 
Codes dealing with state video franchise holders; and 

d. not modify or reduce the other non-cash PEG services and facilities being provided by 
Suddenlink to the Cities/County as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

147 



City/County staff have been regularly updated by Access Humboldt and Ms. Buske regarding the 
progress and settlement options. Staff has reviewed the documents and concurs with Access 
Humboldt's recommendation. 

The recommended action should result in Suddenlink paying PEG fees in an amount of 1.401 %, 
which is greater than the amount they have been paying over the past 15 months. The Agreement 
also assures that in-kind PEG support provided by Suddenlink will continue to be provided and 
not be subtracted from franchise fees or PEG fees. 

11/ 

148 



Ordinance No. 341-2015 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CITY CODE SECTION 5.30.520(2)(a) 
(CABLE SYSTEMS AND OPEN VIDEO SYSTEMS) 

AND APPROVE A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE WITH 
SUDDENLINK REGARDING PEG ACCESS FUNDING 

WHEREAS, in 2010 the City of Rio Dell, Humboldt County, and the Cities of 
Arcata, Eureka, Blue Lake, Fortuna, and Ferndale ("Cities/County") each enacted an 
ordinance updating its respective government code ("Cities/County Codes") to include 
provisions addressing the obligations of the holders of state video franchises issued by 
the California Public Utilities Commission ("CPUC") pursuant to the Digital Infrastructure 
and Video Competition Act ("DIVCA"); and 

WHEREAS, commencing on various dates in 2014, Sudden link began operating 
its cable system (or portions thereof) located within the Cities/County under the terms 
and conditions of a state video franchise ("Sudden link State Video Franchise") granted 
by the CPUC, and the Cities/County Codes, as these documents may have been 
and/or may in the future be lawfully amended from time to time in accordance with 
applicable law; and 

WHEREAS, prior to converting to the Suddenlink State Video Franchise, 
Sudden link operated its cable system located within the Cities/County under the terms 
and conditions of local cable franchises granted by the Cities/County; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Suddenlink State Video Franchise and applicable 
sections of the Cities/County Codes governing state video franchises, Suddenlink must 
among other things provide public, educational, government access funding ("PEG 
Fee"), in an amount calculated under DIVCA based in part upon the level of PEG 
funding that was paid under its local cable franchises; and 

WHEREAS, various disputes have arisen between Suddenlink and the 
Cities/County involving certain obligations Suddenlink is required to perform under the 
Cities/County Codes and Suddenlink's State Video Franchise, including the calculation 
and payment of the PEG Fee; and 

WHEREAS, the Cities/County and Suddenlink have reach a comprehensive 
settlement with respect to the disputes, which have been identified by the Cities/County 
and Suddenlink; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BASED ON THESE PREMISES, BE IT RESOLVED BY 
THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF RIO DELL THAT: 

Section 1. City Code Section 5.30.520(2)(a) shall be modified so as to change 
level of PEG support from 3% of gross revenues to 1.401 % of gross revenues. 

Ordinanace No. 341-2015 1 of 1 

149 



Section 2. The City Manager is authorized to sign the Settlement Agreement 
and Release. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on November 17. 
2015 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Frank Wilson. Mayor 

ATTEST: 

I. Karen Dunham. City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell. State of California. hereby certify 
the above to be a full. true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 341 -2015 adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Rio Dell on November 17. 2015. 

Karen Dunham. City Clerk 

Ordinanace No. 341-2015 2 of 1 

150 



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE 

This Settlement Agreement and Release ("Agreement") is made by and between the 
Cities of Arcata, Blue Lake, Eureka, Ferndale, Fortuna, and Rio Dell, and the 
County of Humboldt, California (collectively ·Cities/County") on the one hand and 
Cebrldge Acquisition, L.P. dlbla Suddenlink Communications on behalf of itself 
and Its affiliates and their respective predecessors, successors and assigns 
(collectively ·Suddenlink") on the other hand, (individually a ·Party" and jointly, "the 
Parties"), and is effective on the latest date that this Agreement is approved by the 
governing body of any of the aforementioned Cities/County ("Effective Date"). 

WHEREAS, in 2010 each of the Cities/County enacted an ordinance updating its 
respective government code ("Cities/County Codes·) to include provisions addressing 
the obligations of the holders of state video franchises issued by the California Public 
Utilities Commission ("CPUC") pursuant to the Digital Infrastructure and Video 
Competition Act ("DIVCA"); and 

WHEREAS, commencing on various dates in 2014 Suddenlink began operating its 
cable system (or portions thereof) located within the Cities/County under the terms and 
conditions of a state video franchise ("Suddenlink State Video Franchise") granted by 
the CPUC, and the Cities/County Codes, as these documents may have been and/or 
may in the future be lawfully amended from time to time in accordance with applicable 
law; and 

WHEREAS, prior to converting to the Sudden link State Video Franchise, Sudden link 
operated its cable system located within the Cities/County under the terms and 
conditions of local cable franchises granted by the Cities/County; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Sudden link State Video Franchise and applicable sections 
of the Cities/County Codes governing state video franchises, Sudden link must among 
other things provide public, educational, govemment access funding ("PEG Fee"), in an 
amount calculated under DIVCA based in part upon the level of PEG funding that was 
paid under its local cable franchises; and 

WHEREAS, various disputes have arisen between Suddenlink and the Cities/County 
involving certain obligations Suddenlink is required to perform under the Cities/County 
Codes and SUddenlink's State Video Franchise including the calculation and payment of 
the PEG Fee; and 

WHEREAS, the Cities/County and Sudden link now desire to reach a comprehensive 
settlement with respect to the disputes, which have been identified by the CitieS/County 
and Sudden link; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, covenants and other terms set 
forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties do hereby agree as follows: 

1 

151 



1. In consideration of the terms of this Agreement and conditioned on the acceptance 
and execution of this Agreement by Sudden link, each of the Cities/County will 
promptly modify its respective Cities/County Code to change the PEG fee to be 
provided by holders of State Video Franchises from 3% of gross revenues to 
1.401 % of gross revenues. 

2. Notwithstanding the effective date(s) of the foregoing ordinance amendments, 
commencing as of July 1, 2015 and continuing until the termination (without 
renewal) of the Suddenlink Slate Video Franchise, Suddenlink shall pay a PEG 
Fee of 1.401 % of gross revenues to the PEG provider designated by the 
Cities/County. 

3. The Cities/County agree to use the PEG Fees for PEG purposes in a manner 
consistent with applicable law. 

4. No later than 30 days after the Effective Date of this Settlement Agreement, 
Suddenlink shall pay $64,000 to the PEG provider designated by the 
Cities/County, as a settlement for underpaid PEG fees owed for the period from 
the date of conversion to the Sudden link State Video Franchise to June 30, 2015. 

5. Suddenlink agrees that it will : 
a. not challenge the CitieS/County right to collect the 1.401 % PEG Fee; 
b. not reduce the amount of PEG Fees paid to the Cities/County in cash to an 

amount below 1.401 %; 
c. not deduct from PEG Fees or Franchise Fees paid to the Cities/County the 

value of Suddenlink's other non-cash PEG services and facilities provided 
pursuant to its State Video Franchise and its obligations under the applicable 
sections of the Cities/County Codes dealing with slate video franchise 
holders. 

d. not modify or reduce the other non-cash PEG services and facilities being 
provided by Sudden link to the Cities/County as of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement. 

6. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement must be separately approved by the 
governing bodies of the Cities of Arcata, Blue Lake, Eureka, Ferndale, Fortuna, 
and Rio Dell, and the Counly of Humboldt, California. . 

7. The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is the result of 
compromise of the disputed claims and is not an admission of liability or 
responsibility or error on the part of the Cities/County or Sudden link. This 
Agreement is without prejudice to any Party's claims or defenses in any future 
proceedings between the Parties to this Agreement, except to the extent that such 
claim or defense is inconsistent with the express promises herein. 

2 

152 



8. This Agreement is governed by and subject to the laws of the State of California 
and applicable federal law. The Cities/County and Suddenlink each acknowledge 
and agree that the releases contained in this Agreement are special releases and 
that § 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California is not applicable. If and to 
the extent it should be determined that the releases contained in this Agreement 
are not special releases, contrary to the acknowledged intention and agreement of 
the Cities/County and Sudden link, each party specifically waives the benefit of the 
provisions of § 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California, which provides as 
follows: 

"A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or 
suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if 
known by him or her must have materially affected his or her settlement with the 
debtor." 

11. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and the counterparts, taken 
together, shall constitute the original for all purposes. 

12. The parties agree to execute any and all documents necessary to effectuate the 
terms, conditions, purposes and aims of this Agreement. 

13. This Agreement constitutes the full and entire agreement among the Parties with 
respect to the settlement of this dispute, superseding all prior agreements, 
negotiations and discussions among the Parties; and the Parties acknowledge that 
there is no other agreement, oral or written, regarding the subject matter of the 
Agreement. No modification of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement 
shall be binding on any Party to this Agreement unless made in writing and signed 
by a duly authorized representative of such Party. 

14. This Agreement shall be binding on Sudden link and any, voluntary or involuntary 
successor or assign in whole or in part of: (i) the Suddenlink State Video Franchise 
as the same may be renewed or extended; or (ii) the cable system controlled by 
Suddenlink and serving one or more of the Cities/County. 

15. This Agreement is freely and voluntarily given by each Party, without any duress or 
coercion, and after each Party has consulted with its counsel. Each Party has 
carefully and completely read all of the terms and provisions of this Agreement. 
Neither Sudden link, nor the Cities/County will take any action to challenge the 
validity or enforceability of any provision of this Agreement; nor will they participate 
with any other person or entity in any such challenge. 

16. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be made or given 
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be mailed overnight delivery or otherwise 
delivered in an expedited manner (via email or fax) to the below addresses or at 
such other address as may be specifJed by the parties in writing: 

3 

153 



For: Sudden link: 

For Cities/County: 

Michael Zarrilli 
Sudden link Communications 
520 Maryville Centre Drive 
Suite 300 
SI. Louis, MO 63141 

Sean McLaughlin 
Access Humboldt 
P.O. Box 157 
Eureka, California 95502 

17. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement or any breach of this Agreement shall 
be effective unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the waiving party and 
any such waiver shall not be deemed a waiver of any other provision of this 
Agreement or any other or subsequent breach of this Agreemenl. 

18. Each of the officers or agents executing this Agreement on behalf of the respective 
Parties hereto warrants that he or she is empowered to do so and thereby bind his 
or her respective corporation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Settlement Agreement and 
Release as follows, as of the dates indicated below: 

Dated: 

_____ ,2015 

Dated: 

_______ ,,2015 

4 

Cebridge Acquisition, L.P. d/b/a 
Sudden link Communications on behalf of 
itself and its affiliates and their respective 
predecessors, successors and assigns. 

By: __________ ___ 

Its: 

City of Arcata, California 

By: ______________ __ 

154 



Attest 
Its: --------------City Clerk 

Dated: City of Blue Lake, California 

______ ,2015 
By: __________ ___ 

Attest 
Its: -------------City Clerk 

Dated: City of Eureka, California 

_______ ,2015 
By: ___________________ _ 

Attest 
Its: --------------City Clerk 

Dated: City of Ferndale, California 

______ ,2015 By: ____________________ __ 

Attest 
Its: ----------------------City Clerk 

Dated: City of Fortuna, California 

______ ,2015 By: ___________________ __ 

Attest 
Its: ---------------------City Clerk 

5 

155 



Dated: City of Rio Dell, California 

_______ ,2015 By: ___________ __ 

Attest 
Its: --------------City Clerk 

Dated: County of Humboldt, California 

______ ,2015 By: ____________ __ 

Attest 
Its: -------------City Clerk 

6 

156 



Check Date 

0004098 9/04/2015 

0004099 9104/2015 

0004100 9/04/2015 
0004101 9/0412015 
0004102 9/04/2015 
0004103 9/0412015 

0004104 9/04/2015 
0004105 9104/2015 
0004106 9/0412015 

0004107 9/04/2015 
0004108 9/04/2015 

0004109 9/0412015 

0004110 9/04/2015 

0004111 9/0412015 

0004112 9104/2015 
0004113 9/04/2015 
0004114 9/0412015 
0004115 911512015 

0004116 9115/2015 

0004117 9/1512015 
0004118 9/15/2015 

0004119 9/15/2015 
0004120 911512015 

0004121 911512015 

0004122 9/15/2015 

..... 
VI 
-...I 

i~ 
< , 

Vendor 

(5235) ADVANTAGE FINANCIAL SERVICES 

\2261) CALIFORNIA STATE OISB UNIT 

(2302) CLYDE'S TOWING, INC. 
(2303) COAST CENTRAL CREDIT UNION 
(2366) EEL RIVER DISPOSAL INC 
(2414) FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 

(4099) HARPER MOTORS 
\2410) NORTH COAST CLEANING SERVICES, INC. 
(4393) NYLEX.net. Inc. 

(2659) RIO DELL PETTY CASH 
(2742) SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 

(4525) SHERLOCK RECORDS MGMT 

(2319) SUDOENLINK COMMUNICATIONS 

(5494) SUSAN E TOWNSEND 

(2481) VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-304361 
(5166) VSP-VISION SERVICE PLAN 
(2787) WYCKOFF'S 
(0576) 101 AUTO PARTS 

(3108) ACCUFUND, INC. 

(5443) AIRGAS USA, LLC 
(2225) AQUA SIERRA CONTROLS, INC 

(3975) AT&T - 5709 
(2261] CALIFORNIA STATE DISB UNIT 

(5330) CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 

(2293) CITY OF FORTUNA 

Descriplion Check I Palme!!t 
DOCSTAR 3.12 SOFTWARE PACKAGE 343.42 
DOCSTAR USER LICENSES AND SYSTEM 
SOFTWARE 
GARNISHMENT CASE #200000001183524 FOR PPE 81 .69 
812 
TOW 2008 FORO F-350 TRUCK TO CITY YARD 125.00 
POA DUES FOR PPE 8121/15 120.00 
GARBAGE BAGS FOR AUGUST 2015 526.00 
EARNINGS WITHHOLDING ORDER FOR TAXES FOR 351.00 
PPE 
REPAIR GEAR SHIFT ON 2003 FORD F-350 TRUCK 358.18 
MONTHLY CLEANING SERVICE FOR AUGUST 2015 471.00 
MONTHLY MAINTENANCE FOR SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 861.25 
THR 
CITY CAR WASH; ENVELOPES; HOT CUPS 33.39 
UPS SHIPPING CHARGES 40.46 
6" VICTOR GOPHER TRAP 
90Z GORILLA CONSTRUCTION ADHESIVE 
STORAGE SERVICE FOR THE MONTH OF AUGUST 89.20 
2015 
MONTHLY BROADBAND SERVICE FOR SEPTEMBER 248.29 
2015 
BRIDGE TOLL REIMBURSEMENT FOR TRAINING IN 5.00 
FRE 
RETIREMENT FOR PPE 8121115 5,291.00 
VISION INSURANCE FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 432.07 
3- GALV PIPE NIPPLES; 2-GALV 90 DEG ELBOWS; 1 73.92 
120Z DEEP CREEP; 8 SPARK PLUGS, 1 AIR FILTER 461.20 
RETURN 8 SPARK PLUGS FOR 2008 FORD F250 
TRUCK 
8 SPARK PLUGS FOR 2008 FORD F250 TRUCK 
LOCKING GAS CAPS FOR 2002 GMC SIERRA TRUCK, 
2 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO CREATE REPORT 87.50 
FORWA 
CYLINDER RENTAL 21.00 
ATI CHLORINE ANALYZER PROBE; ATI CHLORINE 10.351.63 
ANA 
PHONE EXPENSES FOR AUGUST 2015 561.41 
GARNISHMENT CASE #200000001183524 FOR PPE 81 .69 
9/4 
COSTCO - 1.5" BINDERS & WRITING PADS 119.16 
HOOVER VACUUM CLEANER 
POLICE DISPATCH SERVICES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 2,075.00 



Run; ,10/28/2015 at:8f40iAM. 
.... ', -

, I'. 

~ 
0004123 
0004124 
0004125 
0004126 
0004127 

0004128 
0004129 

0004130 
0004131 
0004132 
0004133 
0004134 

0004135 

0004136 
0004137 

0004138 

0004139 
0004140 
0004141 

..... 
1.11 
00 

.,. 

!2m 
9/15/2015 
9/1512015 
9/1512015 
9115/2015 
9/1512015 

9/15/2015 
9/15/2015 

9/1512015 
9/15/2015 
9/15/2015 
911512015 
9115/2015 

9/15/2015 

9/15/2015 
9/15/2015 

9/15/2015 

9/15/2015 
911512015 
9115/2015 

CiTY ,eE'R/JlJ .I3E£.L . -',"'. J.e; . \. 
• _ ~ • -4 ,. ...... , __ ••• -..1":,....... ~ 

~\'l 

o 'GHEJ~ .. ~.lB~plS1TtJ;fj'_;'~k,..""d~ .•.. - y .. 
:'h.'U.i ~ ...,... • ~ )I.: .. { , 

GiitiiiiBl ChiiCkinq--:-rJS Biiiik-t:Jf~lIfoiii1a 

Vendor 
[2303) COAST CENTRAL CREDIT UNION 
[5127) DELTA DENTAL 
[4995) TAUME DEMARCO 
[5687) ENGINEERED FIRE SYSTEMS, INC. 
[2393) FASTENAL COMPANY 

(2405) FORTUNA ACE HARDWARE 
[2414) FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 

(5241) GE CAPITAL 
[5883) GROSSE, MICHAEL 
[2465) HUMBOLDT TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
(5334) J.B. FABRICATION 
[2499) J.P. COOKE CO. 

[490B) MITCHELL BRISSO DELANEY &VRIElE 

(2570) NILSEN COMPANY 
[2569) NORTH COAST LABORATORIES, INC. 

(4393) NYLEX.nel. Inc. 

(2603) PG&E 
[3343) PITNEY BOWES RESERVE ACCOUNT 
(2742) SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 

Description 

POA DUES FOR PPE 9/4/15 
DENTAL INSURANCE FOR OCTOBER 2015 
CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 
PLAN REVIEW FOR THE MONTH OF AUGUST 2015 
SAFETY GLASSES; GLOVES; EAR PLUGS 
MISC SMALL TOOLS & OPERATING SUPPLIES 
12 IC WB WHITE 170l 
MISC OPERATING SUPPLIES 
MISC OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR MAINTENANCE & 
REP 
PLUMBING TUBING 
EARNINGS WITHHOLDING ORDER FOR TAXES FOR 
PPE 
XEROX COPIER PAYMENT FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 
CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 
TDA MEMBER ASSESSMENT RTS· FY 2015·2016 
SLUDGE DRYER REPAIR 
ANIMAL LICENSE TAGS 
ANIMAL LICENSE TAGS 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR AUGUST 2015 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR AUGUST 2015 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR AUGUST 2015 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR AUGUST 2015 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR AUGUST 2015 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR AUGUST 2015 
63 • 40LB BAGS SOLAR ROCK SALT 
AMMONIA NITROGEN WIO DISTILLATION; NITRATEINI 
CHLORINATED ACIDS; DIOXINS·1613B; DRINKING 
WA 
GENERAL MINERAL & INORGANIC· MINERALS; 
HALOACE 
GATEWAY STANDARD PACKAGE ANNUAL 
SUBSCRIPTION 
UTILITY EXPENSES FOR AUGUST 2015 
POSTAGE PURCHASE FOR RESERVE 
2 LAG SCREWS & 56 LAG BOLTS 
3 BAGS 60LB CONCRETE MIX 
B8" STARTER ROPE/HANDLE 
2 4X4 POST BASE ZMAX 
5 MINUTE EPOXY; 2" BLK PLUG 
1·112 BLK PLUG; 1·114 BLK PLUG 

Check I Payment 

120.00 
1,987.67 

13.68 
450.00 

1,152.05 

63.2B 
351 .00 

4B2.13 
192.36 

41 ,865.00 
543.72 

70.48 

4,532.90 

330.00 
3,182.00 

580.00 

16,n3.49 
800.00 
116.90 

, • 



Check 

0004142 

0004143 
0004144 
0004145 
0004146 

0004147 
0004148 
0004149 

0004150 
0004151 
0004152 
0004153 

0004154 

0004155 
0004156 

0004157 

0004158 

0004159 
0004160 
0004161 

0004162 

.... 
VI 
lD 

Dale 

911512015 

911512015 
911512015 
911512015 
912312015 

912312015 
912312015 
912312015 

912312015 
912312015 
912312015 
912312015 

912312015 

912312015 
912912015 

912912015 

912912015 

912912015 
912912015 
912912015 

9/2912015 

)" ~~ .. ,. '1. 

Vendor 

(2694] SHELL OIL CO. 

(2710] STARPAGE 
(2319] SUDDEN LINK COMMUNICATIONS 
[2481J VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-304361 
(2237] BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD 

(3206] CALIFORNIA POLICE CHIEFS ASSOCIATION 
(2285) CC MARKET (1) 
(2619) PITNEY BOWES, INC. (OTR Pymnl) 

(4338) QUILL CORPORATION 
(3032) RENDEZVOUS MUSIC & VENDING 
(2655) RENNER PETROLEUM 
[2742J SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 

(5847] WHITCHURCH ENGINEERING. INC. 

(4310J CAMERON D YAPLE 
(5235) ADVANTAGE FINANCIAL SERVICES 

(5750) AERO-MOD 

(3975) AT&T - 5709 

[5769) BLUE SHIELD OF CALIFORNIA 
(2303J COAST CENTRAL CREDIT UNION 
(3485) CONN CONSTRUCTION 1 

[2411J DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

DescripUon Chock I Pa~ment 

PD FUEL EXPENSES FOR AUGUST 2015 1.848.72 
ADMIN CAR FUEL EXPENSES FOR AUGUST 2015 
PW FUEL EXPENSES FOR AUGUST 2015 
PD FUEL EXPENSES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 
PW FUEL EXPENSES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 
PAGING SERVICES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 12.95 
INTERNET SERVICE FROM 9110115 THROUGH 1019115 134.95 
RETIREMENT FOR PPE 914115 5,247.55 
AMAZON - HAWKING HMPS1U PORT USB 2.0 PRINT 1.596.49 
SE 
AMAZON - REFURBISHED LEXMARK T630 PRINTER 
DELL ONLINE - TWO DELL 2500 PAGE BLACK TONER 
DELL ONLINE - DELL 2500 PAGE BLACK TONER 
CART 
45 DAY JOB LISTING POSTED ON CPCA WEBSITE 150.00 
BIRTHDAY CAKE FOR THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 34.99 
QUARTERLY LEASING PAYMENT FOR JUNE 30, 2015 168.73 
T 
LOGITECH COMPUTER SPEAKER 17.31 
COFFEE 64.00 
300 GAL DYED DIESEL FUEL 794.25 
10.1 OZ BLACK LATEX SEALANT 46.81 
FOUR 112-13X5 CAP SCREWS; FOUR 112 NC ALL STE 
112X2 - 112 HEX LAG BOLT; HX LAG SCREW 
3/8 X2 - 112 LAG BOLT; HX LAG SCREW 
TWO 318-16 HEX NUTS; TWO 318X3 HEX LAG BOLTS; 
100PK 8" MOUNTING TIE 
BELLEVIEW & OGLE AVE DRAINAGE STUDY: 12,687.50 
SCREENIN 
REIMBURSEMENT FOR DMV PHYSICAL 80.00 
DOCSTAR 3.12 SOFTWARE PACKAGE 343.42 
DOCSTAI'! USER LICENSES & SYSTEM SOFTWARE 
GAS DRYER FOR AIR COMPRESSOR, 3/8" DO NYLON 2,135.51 
T 
INTERNET SERVICE FROM SEPTEMBER 16 158.75 
THRoUGHOC 
HEALTH INSURANCE FOR OCTOBER 2015 14,351.26 
POA DUES FOR PPE 9118115 60.00 
SEALCOATING CRACK FILLING 7346 SO FT WI TWO 6,403.80 
C 
CLEAN AND FILL CRACKS ON BLUE SLIDE ROAD 
LIFE INSURANCE FOR OCTOBER 2015 176.00 



Run: ~0I28j2015' atIB!4QrAM ~. 
·1:, .-.!<. ~~. .u·~ .',~ 

i! . ,.~/iljr;ll~n.L~.{cg4.~pllb.,~· -.~~" 
.dO< . J~HJE~~~Ii~.GlMiJi8~ -c,,~ .9" 

Check 

0004163 

0004164 

0004165 

0004166 

0004167 

0004168 
0004169 
0004170 

0004171 

0004172 

..... 
0-o 

Q!l£ 
9/29/2015 

912912015 

9129/2015 

912912015 

9/29/2015 

912912015 
9129/2015 
9/29/2015 

9/29/2015 

9/30/2015 

GeneraTCheClifnq - as Bank orCa1ilom7a 

Vendor Descriptfon 

(4382) DOCUSTATION, INC. MONTHLY MAINTENANCE & COPY CHARGES FOR 
SEPTEM 

[2414) FRANCHISE TAX BOARD EARNINGS WITHHOLDING ORDER FOR TAXES FOR 
PPE 

(2569) NORTH COAST LABORATORIES, INC. COLIFORM PRESENCE/ABSENCE 
AMMONIA NITROGEN WIO DISTILLATION; NITRATEJNI 
COLIFORM QUANTI-TRAY 

[27421 SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE NINE - 60LB CONCRETE MIX 
THREE - 60LB CONCRETE MIX 
TWO - 4PK 20Z GIANT DESTROYER 

[2709) STAPLES DEPT. 00-04079109 TWO - 200 PACK BRIGHT YELLOW 4-UP POSTCARD 
ST 
EIGHT - 200 PACK BRIGHT YELLOW 4-UP POSTCARD 
CLEANING KIT 

(2481) VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-304361 RETIREMENT FOR PPE 9/18/15 
[51661 VSP-VISION SERVICE PLAN VISION INSURANCE FOR OCTOBER 2015 
(2779) WILDWOOD SAW THREE BLADES FOR THE WEEDEATERS 

TWO EACH TRIMMER HEAD NUTS, THRUST 
WASHERS, R 

[5569) BROOKE D E WOODCOX REIMBURSEMENT FROM SCORE FOR MILEAGE TO 
ANDER 

[2757) US POSTMASTER POSTAGE FOR THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2015 
FORU 

Total CheckslDeposlls 

,. 

Check I Payment 

624.16 

351.00 

250.00 

86.86 

216.45 

4,566.82 
346.97 
164.17 

82.80 

375.40 

150,391.74 

'f'ilge; 04 



Check Date Vendor Deserlotlon Check I fa!mont 

0004173 10/09/2015 (4109) ACCESS HUMBOLDT ON BEHALF OF LFA'S PER AGREEMENT OF JUNE 1, 270.00 
2 

0004174 10109/2015 (5603) AKSELSEN, KENDRA CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 141 .24 
0004175 1010912015 (3975) AT&T · 5709 PHONE EXPENSES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 608.08 
0004176 10/09/2015 (2293) CIIY OF FORTUNA LAB TESTING FOR JULY THROUGH SEPTEMBER 4,140.00 

2015 
POLICE DISPATCH SERVICES FOR OCTOBER 2015 

0004177 10/09/2015 [2340) DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ACCOUNTING BLOOD ALCOHOL ANALYSIS FOR JULY 2015 35.00 
OFFICE 

0004178 10/09/2015 [2368) EEL RIVER DISPOSAL INC GARBAGE BAGS FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 498.25 
0004179 10/0912015 [5241) GE CAPITAL REIMBURSEMENT FOR PERSONAL PROPERlY 554.91 

TAXES ON 
XEROX COPIER PAYMENT FOR OCTOBER 2015 

0004180 10/09/2015 (5052) GHD, INC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR SDWSRF GRANT 1,104.50 
APPLICA 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR METROPOLITAN 
WELLRE 

0004181 10/09/2015 (5689) MENDES SUPPLY COMPANY TWO CASES TOILET TISSUE; THREE CASES PAPER 302.42 
TO 

0004182 10/0912015 (5290) BRITTANY MILLER CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 39.35 
0004183 10/09/2015 (4908) MITCHELL BRISSO DELANEY &VRIEZE LEGAL SERVICES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 3,949.40 

LEGAL SERVICES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 
LEGAL SERVICES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 

0004184 10/0912015 [2410) NORTH COAST CLEANING SERVICES, INC. MONTHLY CLEANING SERVICE FOR SEPTEMBER 471.00 
2015 

0004185 10/09/2015 (2569) NORTH COAST LABORATORIES, INC. AMMONIA NITROGEN WIO DISTILLATION; 194.00 
SUBCONTRAC 
ANIONS BY ION CHROMATOGRAPHY 

0004186 10/09/2015 [4393) NYLEX.net. Inc. MONTHLY MAINTENANCE FOR OCTOBER 15, 2015 900.00 
THRO 

0004187 10/09/2015 (2633) PURCHASE POWER METER POSTAGE OVERAGE FEE 6.50 
0004188 10/0912015 (4338) QUILL CORPORATION ONE PACK ADDING MACHINE TAPE; ONE PACK 127.75 

SCISSO 
ONE BOX 9X12 ENVELOPES; ONE BOX 1/3 CUT 
LETTE 
TWO BOXES PENS 

0004189 10/09/2015 (5222) R.J. RICCIARDI, INC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE PERIOD 1,475.00 
ENDINGS 

0004190 10/09/2015 (2659) RIO DELL PET'TY CASH CWEA MINI CONFERENCE FOR WASTEWATER 70.09 
SUPERVISO 

0004191 10/0912015 (2664) ROGERS MACHINERY INC LABOR TO REPLACE FINISH PUMPS 491.75 

..... 
a> ..... 



Check 

0004192 

0004193 

0004194 

0004195 

0004196 
0004197 

0004198 

0004199 
0004200 

0004201 
0004202 

0004203 
0004204 
0004205 

0004206 

0004207 
0004208 
0004209 
0004210 
0004211 
0004212 
0004213 
0004214 

.... 
a'I 
N 

Dale 

10/0912015 

10/0912015 

10/09/2015 

10/0912015 

10/09/2015 
10/0912015 

10/09/2015 

10/0912015 
10/1412015 

10/1412015 
10/1412015 

10/14/2015 
10/1412015 
10/14/2015 

10/14/2015 

10/14/2015 
10/14/2015 
10/14/2015 
10/1412015 
10/14/2015 
10/14/2015 
10/1412015 
10/1412015 

Vendor 

(4525J SHERLOCK RECORDS MGMT 

[2682J SMALL CITIES ORGANIZED RISK EFFORT 
(SCORE) 
[2710J STARPAGE 

[2319J SUDDENLINK COMMUNICATIONS 

[4818J THREE G's HAY & GRAIN 
[5907] TUFTS POLYGRAPH AND INVESTIGATION 

[2779J WILDWOOD SAW 

[2787] WYCKOFF'S 
[0576J 101 AUTO PARTS 

[5443J AIRGAS USA, LLC 
[2225J AQUA SIERRA CONTROLS, INC 

[2303J COAST CENTRAL CREDIT UNION 
(5127] DELTA DENTAL 
[2414J FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 

[2750J HD Supply Facility Maintenance DBA: USA 
BLUEBOOK 
[2461J HUMBOLDT COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR 
[4360J MODERN MARKETING, INC 
[25G9[ NORTH COAST LABORATORIES, INC. 
[2603J PG&E 
[3343J PITNEY BOWES RESERVE ACCOUNT 
[2619J PITNEY BOWES, INC. (QTR pymnl) 
[2684J ROGERS MACHINERY INC 
[2742J SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 

Description Check I Paxment 
STORAGE SERVICE, BOX RETRIEVAL AND REFILING 110.20 
F 
QUARTERLY PREMIUM FOR WORKER'S 20,217.00 
COMPENSATION I 
PAGING SERVICES FOR THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 12.95 
2015 
MONTHLY BROADBAND SERVICE FOR OCTOBER 250.00 
2015 
3000 14-1/2 X 24 SAND BAGS 1,360.80 
POLICE OFFICER APPLICANT BACKGROUND 200.00 
INVESTIGA 
WATER PUMP REPAIRS; AUTO CUT WEEDEATER 143.95 
BLADES 
DEEP LEAF RAKE; TEL ANOD POLE 39.35 
NEW STARTER FOR 2008 FORD F250 TRUCK 362.80 
TAIL LAMP 
BATTERY & CORE DEPOSIT 
STARTING FLUID 
AIR BRAKE TUBING 
CYLINDER RENTAL 21.00 
SHIPPING & HANDLING CHARGES TO SEND PUMP 49.91 
CONT 
POA DUES FOR PPE 1012115 60.00 
DENTAL INSURANCE FOR NOVEMBER 2015 1,987.67 
EARNINGS WITHHOLDING ORDER FOR TAXES FOR 351.00 
PPE 
TWO PACKS HACH NITRAVER 5 POWDER PILLOWS; 226.96 
50 
PROPERTY TAX 2015/2016 ASMT #205-111-039·000 2,241.78 
TWELVE NITRILE GLOVES 318.98 
TOTAL + FECAL COLIFORM 3 X 5 165.00 
UTILITY EXPENSES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 16,643.73 
POSTAGE PURCHASE FOR RESERVE 800.00 
TWO BOXES RED INK CARTRIDGES 133.39 
AQUAVAR CONTROLLER FOR WET WELL PUMP 8,547.59 
lTWO 1/16-118 WIRE ROPE CLIP 49.04 
8 PK DURACELL AA ALK BATTERIES 
1/4 CLOSE BRS STD NIPPLE 
TWO MP BASIC 9" 3/4" COVER 
3/4 X2 BLK NIPPLE; 3/4XCLOSE BLK NIPPLE; 3/4" 
12V UNIV ACCESSORY PLUG; 2W 12V ADAPTER 



~ Date Vendor Description Chock 1 Pa~!!l~nt 

0004215 10/14/2015 (2694) SHELL OIL CO. PO FUEL EXPENSES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 1,424.55 
PW FUEL EXPENSES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 
ADMIN CAR FUEL EXPENSES FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 
PO FUEL EXPENSES FOR OCTOBER 2015 

0004216 10/14/2015 (2724) STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND FINANCING 302,933.39 
AG 

0004217 10/1412015 (4152) STOKES & ASSOCIATES, DBA BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION FOR POLICE 650.00 
OFFICERC 

0004218 10/1412015 (2319) SUDDENLINK COMMUNICATIONS INTERNET SERVICE FROM 10110/15 TO 11/9/15 134.95 
0004219 10/1412015 (2481) VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-304381 RETIREMENT FOR PPE 1012115 4,591.76 
0004220 10/1412015 (2779) WILDWOOD SAW STIHL KM110R TRIMMER HEAD AND HL 135-KM 532.34 

HEDGE 
0004221 10/2212015 (2225) AQUA SIERRA CONTROLS, INC ATI RESIDUAL SULFITE ANAL VZER 8,988.76 
0004222 10/2212015 [2237] BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD U-HAUL OF EUREKA - BOXES 1,701 .11 

HARBOR FREIGHT- 21 PC 112" DR SAWIMET; 21 PC 
HARBOR FREIGHT - 6HP SUBMERSIBLE UTILITY 
PUMP 
CSMFO - REFUND FOR INTERMEDIATE GOV'T 
ACCOUNT 

0004223 1012212015 [4937] CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF SIGNALS & LIGHTING FOR JULY 2015 THROUGH 180.52 
TRANSPORTATION SEPT 

0004224 10/2212015 (5330) CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL COSTCO - HOT CUPS & SPONGES 40.75 
0004225 1012212015 (2301) MARK A. CLEMENTI, PH.D. PRE-EMPLOYMENT PSYCHOLOGICAL EVALUATION 625.00 
0004226 10/2212015 (2366) EEL RIVER DISPOSAL INC DEBRIS FROM CLEAN UP @ 61 MONUMENT- 584.75 

HUMBOLDTH 
0004227 10/2212015 (5052) GHD, INC ENGINEERING SERVICE FOR METROPOLITAN 264.50 

WELLSPR 
0004228 1012212015 (5909) ICMA MEMBERSHIP RENEWALS MEMBERSHIP DUES FOR 7/1115 - 6130116 974.70 
0004229 10/2212015 (2485) INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC REBUILD 30HP MOTOR FOR WATER PLANT 731.64 
0004230 10/2212015 (2521) LEAGUE OF CALIF. CITIES DIVISION MEETING ON AC -10/1115 40.00 
0004231 10/2212015 (3484) NATIONAL METER & AUTOMATION, INC SMALL PORTABLE TESTING METER 1,107.06 
0004232 10/2212015 (3032) RENDEZVOUS MUSIC & VENDING COFFEE 63.00 
0004233 1012212015 (2657) RIO DELL EMPLOYEES ASSOC DUES FOR QUARTER ENDING 9/30/15 92.00 
0004234 1012212015 (2662) RIO DELUSCOTIA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BUSINESS MEMBERSHIP DUES 50.00 
0004235 10/2212015 (2742) SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE TWO 80LB CONCRETE MIX 47.54 

FOUR 8 112" GREEN T FENCE POSTS FOR 61 
MONUME 

0004238 10/2212015 (4570) SHRED AWARE SHREDDING 70.00 
0004237 10/2212015 [5297] VERSATILE INFORMATION PRODUCTS, INC. ANNUAL SUPPORT FOR PUMA LITE MANAGEMENT 1,103.00 

APPLI 
0004238 1012212015 (2779) WILDWOOD SAW REPAIRS FOR THREE WEEDEATERS 403.88 
0004239 1012712015 (5235) ADVANTAGE FINANCIAL SERVICES DOCSTAR 3.12 SOFTWARE PACKAGE 343.42 

DOCSTAR USER LICENSES & SYSTEM SOFTWARE 
0004240 10/2712015 (4070) AMERICAN RIVER COLLEGE SACRAMENTO FIELD TRAINING OFFICER COURSE 36.00 

..... 
'" !.AI 



Check Date Vendor Description Check 1 Pa~mont 

0004241 10/27/2015 [3975) AT&T· 5709 INTERNET SERVICE FROM OCT 16, 2015 TO NOV 15, 55.90 
0004242 10127/2015 [5769) BLUE SHIELD OF CALIFORNIA HEALTH INSURANCE FOR NOVEMBER 2015 14,926.84 
0004243 1012712015 [5882) CASTELLANOS, SOCORRO CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 203.50 
0004244 1012712015 [2303) COAST CENTRAL CREDIT UNION POA DUES FOR PPE 10116/15 60.00 
0004245 10127/2015 [2411) DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE LIFE INSURANCE FOR NOVEMBER 2015 208.00 

COMPANY 
0004246 10127/2015 [2414) FRANCHISE TAX BOARD EARNINGS WITHHOLDING ORDER FOR TAXES FOR 37.40 

PPE 
0004247 10/27/2015 [2437) HACH THREE REAGENT SET, CHLORINE FREE CL 17 185.04 
0004248 10127/2015 [4780) HUMBOLDT COUNTY PLANNING DIVISION GIS SUPPORT 181.94 
0004249 1012712015 [2474) HUMMEL TIRE & WHEEL, INC 2008 FORD F·250 TRUCK THRUSTILINE ALIGNMENT 79.00 
0004250 1012712015 [5334) J.B. FABRICATION SANDBLASTING & POWDER COATING 500.00 
0004251 10/27/2015 [5676) KRUEGER, PETER CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 121.21 
0004252 10127/2015 [2569) NORTH COAST LABORATORIES, INC. COLIFORM QUANTI·TRAY 60.00 
0004253 10/27/2015 [2742) SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE FIVE ·1X2X18 WD STAKES 76.91 

TWO ZIP TIES 
FOUR - HWH NEO TEK 1/4 ·14X2; FOUR FENDER 
WAS 
HOME PRO BUSH CADDY; ONE GALLON ANTI· 
BASTERIC 

0004254 10/27/2015 [2319) SUDDENLINK COMMUNICATIONS MONTHLY BROADBAND SERVICE FOR NOVEMBER 250.00 
2015 

0004255 10127/2015 [2719) SWRCB OFFICE OF OPERATOR CERT APPLICATION FOR T3 WATER TREATMENT 90.00 
OPERATORC 

0004256 10/27/2015 [5907) TUFTS POLYGRAPH AND INVESTIGATION POLICE OFFICER APPLICANT BACKGROUND 200.00 
INVESTIGA 

0004257 10127/2015 [2481) VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS·304361 RETIREMENT FOR PPE 10/16115 4,589.57 
0004258 10/27/2015 [5166) VSP-VISION SERVICE PLAN VISION INSURANCE FOR NOVEMBER 2015 346.97 
0004259 1012912015 [2757) US POSTMASTER POSTAGE FOR UTILITY BILLING FOR THE MONTH OF 378.11 

Total Checks/Deposits 419,937.35 

• 

..... 
~ 


